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ORDERS OF REFERENCE

Housk or CoMMONS,
TaURsDAY, March 19, 1936.

Resolved,—That a Special Committee consisting of: Messrs. Beaubien,
Beaubier, Bertrand (Laurier), Bouchard, Campbell, Cardin, Cochrane, Dupuis,
~ Edwards, Grant, Hanson, Howard, Howe, Johnston (Bow River), MacKenzie
(Neepawa), Mackenzie (Vancouver Centre), McIntosh, Martin, Massey, Plun-
kett, Ryan, Slaght, Woodsworth, be appointed to inquire into the operations
of the Canadian Radio Commission and its administration of the Canadian

~ Radio Broadcasting Act of 1932 and Amendments, and the regulations made

- under authority thereof: to advise what, if any, changes shall be effected in the

existing system of radio broadcasting; and whether the said statutes and regula-
tions should be amended in whole or in part, and what, if any additions should
be made thereto; also to inquire into the extent to which there has been any
abuse of broadcasting privileges, either for political or advertising purposes,
and to advise as to what principles should govern the regulations or control
thereof; that Rule 65 be suspended in relation thereto; that the said Committee
be empowered to send for persons, papers and records, to examine witnesses for
evidence, to print such papers and evidence from day to day, as may be ordered
by the Committee for the use of the Committee and members of the House, and
to report from time to time. i

Attest.

ARTHUR BEAUCHESNE,
Clerk of the House.

Monpay, March 23, 1936.

Ordered,—That the name of Mr. Cahan be substituted for that of Mr.
Beaubier on the Special Committee appointed to inquire into the operations of
the Canadian Radio Commission and its administration of the Canadian Radio
Broadcasting Act of 1932 and Amendments, and the regulations made under
authority thereof.

Attest.

ARTHUR BEAUCHESNE,
Clerk of the House.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

House or CoMMONS,
CommirTee Room No. 429,
Tuespay, March 24, 1936.

(Organization Meeting)

The Special Committee appointed to inquire into the operations of the
Canadian Radio Commission and its administration of the Canadian Radio
Broadcasting Act of 1932 and amendments, and the regulations made thereunder,
met for organization at 11.00 o’clock a.m. this day, the following members of
the Committee being present:—

Messieurs:—Beaubien, Bouchard, Campbell, Cochrane, Edwards, Grant,
Hanson, Howard, Howe, Johnston (Bow River), Mackenzie (Vancouver Centre),
Martin, Massey and Woodsworth—14.

On motion of Mr. Hanson, seconded by Mr. Martin, Mr. Beaubien was
unanimously elected Chairman of the Committee.

Mr. Beaubien took the Chair. He thanked the Committee for the honour
shown him in selecting him to preside over the future meetings, and said he
hoped to have the full co-operation of the Committee to assist him in carrying
out his duties.

The Chairman stated that the Meeting to-day was only for purposes of
organization, but if any members had suggestions to make he would be glad to
hear them.

~The question of reducing the quorum was discussed, but it was finally
decided to leave the matter in abeyance.

The question of sitting while the House is sitting was discussed, but finally
decided that that matter also could be left in abeyance for a later decision.

The matter of appointing a Sub-Committee on Agenda was raised. After
discussion, Mr. Martin moved, seconded by Mr. Campbell: that the Chairman
appoint five members of the Committee to act in conjunction with himself as a
Sub-Committee on Agenda.

Mr. Cochrane, seconded by Mr. Grant, moved in amendment: that the
Sub-Commﬁ;tee be comprised of a sufficient number of Members to provide for
representation from each Province of the Dominion.

The Chairman submitted the amendment which was negatived on division
(Show of hands).

The original motion was then adopted by a show of hands vote, and the
Chairman named the following members as the Sub-Committee on Agenda:—

Hon. Mr. Howe, as Chairman of Sub-Committee, Hon. Mr. Cahan, Hon.
Mr. Mackenzie, Mr. Slaght, and Mr. Woodsworth.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

House or CoMMONS,
CommirTEE Room 268, 3
TugespAay, March 31, 1936.

The Special Committee on the Canadian Radio Commission, pursuant to
" notice, met at 11.00 o’clock this day, Mr. Beaubien, the Chairman, presiding.

The following Members of the Committee were present:—

Messieurs: Beaubien, Bertrand (Lauwrier), Bouchard, Cahan, Campbell,
Cardin, Cochrane, Dupuis, Edwards, Hanson, Howard, Howe, Johnston (Bow
. River) MacKenzie (Neepawa), Mackenzie (Vancowver Centre), Meclntosh,
.~ Martin, Massey, Plunkett, Ryan, Slaght, and Woodsworth—22. :

In Attendance: Mr. Charlesworth, Chairman, Lt.-Col. W. A. Steel, Commis-
~ sioner, Canadian Radio Commission; also Mr. E. L. Bushnell, Lt.-Col. Landry,
7 and Mr. E. C. Buchanan, officials of the Radio Commission.

Present: Commander C. P. Edwards, Director of Radio, and Mr. Donald
b Manson, Chief Supt. of Radio, Department of Marine. Mr. Alan Plaunt, repre-
- senting the Canadian Radio League, Toronto, and other interested persons.

The Chairman stated that correspondence from persons and organizations
- was coming to hand daily, and he wished to know the decision of the Committee
~ as to the best method of dealing with it. He head a letter from the Canadian
- Press, which expressed a desire to submit representations to the Committee before

the Easter Recess. (See evidence for letter).

After some discussion as to the disposition of the correspondence received

. from day to day, Mr. McIntosh moved, seconded by Mr. Hanson: That all

.~ communications received by the Chairman, or by others for the Committee, be

- listed in each day’s Minutes of Proceedings, and to be always available to the
- members of the Committee.

Motion adopted.

The Chairman submitted list of communications, as follows:—

Communications received up to Tuesday, March 31—

Thos. Ryan, London, Ontario. Feb. 20, 1936.

J. Norman Robertson, 4314 West, 13th Ave., Vancouver, B.C. March 9.

Frank Eliason, Sec. of United Farmers of Canada, Saskatoon, Sask,

& March 20.
L Alfred Morris, See. East Hamilton Canadian Legion, Hamilton, Ont.,
March 21.

Allan B. Plaunt, Hon. Sec. Canadian Radio League, Toronto, Ont.
March 21.

Mr. Eugene Brochu, St-Charles de Caplan, Que. March 24. ]

Mr. J. F. B. Livesay, Sec. The Canadian Press. 272 Bay St., Toronto.
March 25.
Mr. Floribert Godard, L’Annonciation, Que. March 27.
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Reverend Paul H. Pannetier, 5960-6iéme avenue, Rosemont, Montreal,
March 30.

Mr. Charlesworth called. In response to the Committee’s request, after the
previous meeting, Mr. Charlesworth submitted a list of the employees of the
Radio Commission throughout Canada, together with a book showing extra duties
performed. It was decided by the Committee that such information be for its
members only.

Mr. Howard moved, seconded by Mr. MecIntosh: That Mr. Slaght be asked
to put the necessary questions to Mr. Charlesworth, in order to bring out the
outstanding details of the 1934 report of the Special Committee on Radio.

Motion adopted.

Mr. Slaght proceeded to the examination of the witness along the line
suggested. Numerous questions were asked by other members of the Committee.

A certain recommendation made to the Government by the Commission
was mentioned by the witness, which Mr. Slaght asked to have furnished to the
Committee, if available.

Agreed to.

Report of the Radio Commission for 1935 to be filed and marked as
Exhibit 1. '

Regulations passed by Order-in-Council and by the Commission, not in
printed form, to be prepared by the Commission and a copy supplied for each
member of the Committee. Agreed to. To be marked as Exhibit No. 2.

A summary of complaints from organized bodies, together with favourable
comments, to be furnished by the Commission, for the information of the
Committee.

Agreed to.

Mr. Slaght and Mr. Campbell asked that the following information be
furnished to the Committee by the witness, so far as possible at the next sitting
of the Committee, viz;—

The line wire contract with the railway lines, C.N.R. and C.P.R.

Anything in writing pertaining to the arrangement with the Bell Telephone
Company, in connection with use of line.

A list of any persons or organizations using the time of the Commission
without charge.

A short summary of religious broadcasts, or of a philanthropic character,
that receive a special rate.

Special price schedule for broadecasts from different stations, per hour, per
half hour, and per quarter hour; and also any variation of these schedules.

Copy of any regulations with regard to time available for political broad-

casting, and cost of same, with other information pertaining thereto.

Agreed to.

The question of giving a hearing to the Canadian Press on April 7 next
was discussed. It was finally decided to leave matter in the hands of the sub-
committee on Agenda, for arrangement.

B i o e
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' The\ Commxﬁtee decided to request Mr Charlesworth to appear before the
] at its next meetmg

. , E. L. MORRIS, <ol
AN , Clerk of the Commaittee.
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MINUTES OF EVIDENCE

Housrk or Commons, Room 268,
OrTaws, March 31, 19

The speciél committee appointed to enquire into the administration of the
Canadian Radio Broadcasting Act of 1932 and amendments, met at 11 a.m., the
chairman, Mr. A. L. Beaubien, presiding.

The CHAIRMAN: As we have a quorum we shall proceed. Each of you has
a copy of the order of reference and it will not be necessary for me to read it.
At the last meeting a sub-committee was appointed by the chair and agreed to
by the committee to prepare the agenda for the committee. I think each of you
has a copy of that agenda. The first matter we have to deal with this morning
is the handling of the committee’s correspondence. I have received several
letters from organizations and individuals, and I should like to know the wish
of the committee in regard to that correspondence. I may say that I have
acknowledged all letters that I have received.

Mr. WoopsworTH: What is the nature of the correspondence?

. The CuamrMan: There are letters from certain organizations asking to be
given the privilege of presenting a brief or memorandum with someone to give
explanations of the brief or memorandum.

Mr. McIntosa: Do the letters come from all parts of the Dominion or
are they limited to any one part?

The CuAamrMAN: I have one from the Canadian Press and another from the
United Farmers of Canada. There are individual letters which are more of
complaints against certain wavelengths and that sort of thing. I have received
a special request from the Canadian Press, which reads as follows:—

ToroNTO, CANADA,
’ March 25, 1936.

A. L. Beausien, Esq., M.P.,
Chairman,

House of Commons Radio Committee,
Ottawa, Ont.

Drar Mr. BeauBien,—Mr. Carnegie, our Ottawa Superintendent, tells
me you have been good enough to talk with him about the representation
our President, Mr. Preston, and a small committee of our board of directors
would like to make before your radio committee in regard to news on
the air. With your kind consent we would like to present our view orally
and supplement this with a brief printed memorandum.

Our desire to make this representation sprang from the meeting of -
the Board of Directors last November. Our board meets again towards
the end of April prior to our annual meeting and if possible we would
like to be in a position to inform the board of what we have accomplished
before your committee. For this purpose we would greatly appreciate if
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you and your committee would be agreeable to receiving us before
adjournment for the Easter recess. Our presentation indeed would take up
but a very short time. Mr. Carnegie suggests you might perhaps arrange
this for Tuesday, April 7, and that would suit us admirably.

With kind regards,
Sincerely yours,

(Sgd.) J. F. B. LIVESAY,
General Manager.

Mr. WoopswortH: Was the committee appointed the other day supposed
to deal merely with the preliminary agenda, or was it supposed to be a per-
manent agenda committee?

The CHAIRMAN: The committee of five?

Mr. WoopswortH: Yes.

The Cramrman: That sub-committee was appointed to prepare the agenda,
to guide the committee in its deliberations.

Mr. McIntosH: At each meeting? ,

The Cuamvan: To suggest to the committee what subjects ought to be
discussed.

Mr. WoopsworrH: If that sub-committee is a permanent body it seems
- to me that submissions of this kind, or requests to be permitted to lay submis-
sions before this committee, should be referred to it. If it is not a permanent
committee then we ought to have such a body to suggest the program from
time to time. 3

Mr. McInTosH: That is what the sub-committee appointed last week was
supposed to do.

The CrarMAN: Yes.

Mr. McIxtosua: We have a sub-committee now; it is not necessary to
appoint another sub-committee.

The CuamrMaN: There is only one difficulty. Sometimes it is very hard
to get that number together. Probably if we had a sub-committee of three it
would be easier.

Hon. Mr. Howr: The sub-committee has been appointed, and I think it
should deal with matters such as these. I think that correspondence should be
referred to the sub-committee and the sub-committee should make a report
to the main committee on how the correspondence has been handled. The cor-
respondence might be tabled here so that anybody who desires to peruse it
will have the opportunity.

Mr. McIntosu: I think the correspondence should be made available to
all members as some members of the committee might want to read it.

Mr. SuagaT: I notice what they did in 1934, Mr.: Chairman, when dealing
with this matter. The previous committee investigating radio in 1934 llSt.ed
all communications to the chairman or to the committee and printed the list
in the Minutes of Proceedings. In that way they were always available to
the members of the committee. That saved the time of the committee. The
question then arose as to whether or not every communication received by the
chairman or the committee should be read by the chairman to the committee.
After discussion it was decided that it would be a waste of time; but it was
arranged that the communications should always be available.

Mr. McInTosu: I think that is a good idea.

Mr. Hanson: To have the correspondence entered in the minutes?




CANADIAN RADIO COMMISSION 3
~ Mr. SuacaT: No, that is not what they did. They merely listed in the
‘minutes the date of the communication and from whom the communication
came. They did not put on the minutes the contents of all the communications,
because some of them were important and some of them were not of much
importance; but they were always at the disposal of the committee. There is no
need to clutter up the record with all these communications.

Mr. MclIntosu: Classify the communications so that if any one person
wanted to read them they would be available.

The CHAIRMAN: Is it the wish of the committee that this correspondence be
referred to the sub-committee and after it has been dealt with, and the sub-
committee comes to the conclusion that it is essential that that correspondence—

Mr. SuagHT: No; the sub-committee did not exercise any discretion in
throwing anything out. They listed merely the name of the writer and the
date of the communication and the communications were available to all; and
any member of the general committee had the opportunity to bring up the
~ contents of any communication to be dealt wtih from time to time.

Mr. CampBiLL: I feel the sub-committee should decide whether these people
should be called or not.

The CHAIRMAN: Does the committee agree with Mr. Slaght’s suggestion?
Mr. McInTosH: I would make that motion, seconded by Mr. Hanson.
Motion agreed to.

Mr. SuacaT: I think the clerical work in regard to this correspondence
should be done by the clerk of the committee.

The CuamrMman: We did not invite any persons to appear before the com-
mittee to-day, but after consultation with the members and the minister, we
have invited the Radio commission to be present. I have asked the Radio com-
mission also, through the secretary of the committee, to bring with them a list
of their staff at headquarters and outside. The members of the commission
are here. Mr. Charlesworth and Mr. Steele are here, and if it is your wish I
shall ask Mr. Charlesworth to come forward.

Mr. WoopsworTH: I think the general feeling of the committee was that
we should not review the whole radio broadeasting set-up, but rather the points
particularly referred to; that is, what changes were necessary in order to make
radio broadeasting more efficient, and how it should be done. Was not that the
idea, instead of going over the whole radio broadcasting set-up, which has been
dealt with very fully by previous committees.

The CruamrMAN: Mr. Woodsworth, we shall have to stick to the order of
‘reference.

Mr. WoobpsworTH: I am referring to that.

Mr. McInTosH: You cannot go outside it. You must keep within the ambit
of the reference.

Mr. WoopsworTH: The order of reference, clause 2 says:

And whether the said statutes and regulations should be amended in
whole or in part, and what, if any additions should be made thereto.

The CaarMAN: I am entirely in the hands of the committee.

Hon. Mr. Mackenzie: I think you must review the present situation, and
to do so I think you should call Mr. Charlesworth first.

Mr. WoopsworTH: Quite so. All that I had in mind was we need not have
a long statistical review and analysis of the whole problem of radio broadeasting.
We already have that in the report of the commission and the report of the
committees that have studied the question; but rather we should come as soon

as possible to the practical problems that confront us such as are outlined in
the reference.



.\ Hméror CrarrpsworTH, called: . 7= 7 LT LA REERRE S

 Mr. Dupus: Before we leave the item of /cqrrespon.('len'ée: 1 should bk;

- to mention that I have in my hand a resolution which, I think, has been sent

to every member of the committee asking for the abolition of the French

language. I suppose in a few days we shall receive another resolution asking

~ for the abolition of the English language. As a compromise may I suggest we
abolish both languages, and allow only the music on the air. I think it would

be a good suggestion and would satisfy this unknown lodge, lodge No. blank.

This communication seems to come from the House of Commons— -‘

Mr. McInTosa: What province? '

Some hon. MeEmBERS: New Brunswick.

Mzr. Duruis: It seems to come from the House of Commons.

Mr. WoopswortH: Would you advocate that the songs be given in Italian?

Mr. Dupuis: In any language of the world, even Russian, or any other
language on the air. ; Y

Mr. Ryan: This is an anonymous communication. I think this committee
ought to disregard anonymous correspondence altogether.

The CrarrvAN: I agree. I threw mine in the basket.

Mr. Ryan: It is a scurrilous document.

Mr. McInTosH: I did not receive any document, so I did not have the
pleasure of throwing mine in the basket.

The CuarrMaN: Gentlemen, we have Mr. Charlesworth, chairman of the
Radio commission here, to give us the information we desire.

Wirness: Gentlemen, I brought a list of the staff as I was requested by
Mr. Morris. I have a complete list of the employees showing what they do, S
and if anything further is wanted, Colonel Landry is here with the book that i
shows the extra duties they perform. The list I have also has the salaries :
attached. I would suggest, however, that in using this list the salaries be
omitted. Some of them are not very large, and it would be unfair to the people
themselves. Their names are here, and I shall file the whole thing. I am just
making that suggestion in regard to the salaries of the individuals.

il

By the Chairman:

Q. You have just one copy?—A. I was going to file it.

Q. You have seen a copy of the reference?—A. I saw what I read in the
papers and I heard it read.

Q. Have you any suggestion as to how we should proceed, or what we
should investigate? Can you give any suggestions, as chairman of the Radio
Commission? You must have had a lot of complaints and commendations,
and so forth?—A. I should like to see the question of our employees gone into. .
We have never been in a position to make any permanent appointments or to =
get a permanent set-up. One thing or another has gone against it, and it makes :
it rather difficult. Then I think this committee should make some inquiry into = =
the whole question of coverage in this country. We, with our limited resources, : }
have tried to solve the problem to some extent, but we realize that we are not 1
attaining the ends that were expected in the Aird report, which demanded a
large capital expenditure. Coverage varies greatly in different parts of Canada.
There are certain parts of this country where a person who pays a two dol}ar h
license fee has a real grievance, because he is not getting the coverage to Wh.lch
he is entitled, and we are not in a position, financially, to give it to him. I think
the Aird report called for a large capital expenditure outside of any revenue,
but T doubt if this country would be prepared to go to that extent at the present
time. I think the committee should look into the question of coverage. Our

[Mr. Hector Charlesworth,.]
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technicians will be quite willing to discuss the question and give you the benefit
of their knowledge. We have very complete information in our technical depart- »
ment in regard to the question of coverage. That is one suggestion I ma.keE Fans
Generally speaking, I should like the committee, for our own sakes, to find ou

just what the scope of our work is as a commission. It is much larger than any-

~ body imagines. You hear about our programs in the press, our control of

~ advertising, our co-operation with government departments, and that sort of
thing. Our control of advertising is a very important item in our work, and we

" should like to have the opportunity to place before the committee just exactly

. what public utilities we perform outside entertainment. These are the things

that occur to me at the moment. I did not know I was going to be asked these
question, or I might have sat down and figured out something more. s

R By Hon. Mr. MacKenzie:

. Q. Are you ready to proceed under the terms of the reference this morning;
are you ready to give evidence on this point?—A. No, I am not; as a matter of
. fact, I should like to have a memorandum prepared on one other point. I have
not seen: your agenda, so I do not know what you intend to proceed with.

By Mr. Martin:

Q. You spoke as though you had been proceeding on the basis of the Aird
report. Are you not proceeding rather on the basis of the 1934 committee report?
—A. We were obliged to proceed on the basis of the 1932 committee -report,
whose recommendations were considerably revised in the House of Commons
by the act passed by the House of Commons in 1932, under which my position
and that of the others was created. This act bore a very small resemblance to
the general outline of the Aird report, which was a capital report. In 1932 I
had nothing whatever to do with radio and did not expect to have at that time.
In that year the committee, of which Mr. Cardin was a member, made a very
complete investigation. They found that the conditions of the country would
. not stand for such a large and expensive enterprise as was contemplated in the
. Aird report. For instance, if I remember rightly, it called for a $3 licence fee,
- and it called for capital expenditure on stations of something like four million

dollars. I have not a copy of that report with me. Our decisions have been

based entirely on the instructions, practically the instructions, that were received
from the parliamentary committee which created the commission. The recom-
mendations of the parliamentary committee of 1934 were more or less negligible
as affecting authority, except that they wanted to show us a little more Iatitugr
in the matter of controlling advertising. This provision was so incorporate
{ in the act. For instance, it limited advertising to 5 per cent of the total duration
~ of the hour, with a small margin of latitude left to the commission to let that
be expanded. The parliamentary committee of 1934 decided that we were a
little too severe on the advertiser. However, by that time we had got the..
~ advertiser educated, so that did not do much harm.

. By Mr. McIntosh:

~ Q. Has the Act of 1932 been amended in a minor 6r major way since then?
—A. The amendments since then have been purely minor. We found ourselves
in a predicament, because the Act of 1932 is more or less contradictory, as any
lawyer in this committee would see as soon as he read it, both in its financial

~ provisions and alsgo in the method of appointment. For instance, we were quite
willing that the Civil Service Commission should appoint our accountants,

* stenographers and that sort of thing; but when the Civil Service Commission

.~ was formed, there was no contemplation that a thing like radio would arise,

‘where you had to get hold of all kinds of performers to carry on the permanent
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work of broadcasting. So a provision was made whereby in the matter of radio
technicians, entertainers and that sort of thing, we had freedom of action,
subject, of course, to the Treasury Board. Everything has to pass the Treasury
Board. The Civil Service Commission took charge of providing for the staff
in connection with stenographers and so forth.

Mr. Massey: May I make a suggestion, Mr. Chairman? This whole question
has been considered on two previous occasions by committees. I think an
inspection of the reports of these committees will give the members of this
committee an idea of the enormity of the problem which we are met to discuss
and consider. I think we could spend a great deal of time in promiscuously
asking questions of the chairman of the Commission without really evolving
anything that is tangible or consecutive. The members of this committee,
individually and collectively, have questions that they wish to ask, questions
whose answers are important to them. May I suggest, in order to expedite
matters,—which I think would be in the best interests of all of us here and of
the problem itself,—that there be gathered together this morning a list of ques-
tions which are essentially general and wide in their scope; that Mr. Charlesworth
take those questions with him, and upon them prepare a memorandum and send
a copy of the memorandum to every member of the committee; and that he be
present in person at the next meeting so that we can discuss the memorandum
article by article. In that way I think perhaps we can go over the ground
much more rapidly. Further than that I think, just as Mr. Woodsworth has
said, a great deal of time can be lost in going over the same ground. After all,
there are certain basic and fundamental principles back of this whole question
which have not changed and will not change. It seems to me to be a waste
of time for this committee again to consider in full the whole broad problem.
There is a specific problem which we have in hand at the moment—and I think
the minister will agree with me—which is: Shall the present system continue
or shall we change the system? Accordingly, I suggest, and I put it in the
form of a motion, that there be prepared this morning from this committee a list
of questions upon which the chairman of the Radio Commission will build a
memorandum, a copy of which will be sent to every member of the committee;
that the chairman of the Radio Commission be present at our next meeting,
and that discussion be based upon the questions answered in that memorandum.

The CuarRMAN: Did you want to say something, Mr. Slaght?

Mr. SuacHT: I was not rising to second the motion. I understood my friend
made a motion. I wanted to make a suggestion. If the motion is seconded and
put, I do not see any objection to that course being followed. However, I have
put a little study on the report of the last committee of 1934 and skimmed
through in a very hurried way the evidence, the great mass of detail taken before
that committee. If you approved, I thought I might develop from Mr.
Charlesworth this morning in a very short time, a few matters that must really,
in my view, be explained to the committee before we go very far with any branch
of the inquiry. The thought came to me, as expressed by my friend Mr.
Woodsworth, that instead of going away back into too much ancient history—
of course, subject always to being able to go back—if we could make a start
with the report of the committee of 1934 first, which is part of the agenda in
the hands of each member, it might be well. It was my view that that might
perhaps put some broad general facts before the committee from Mr.
Charlesworth this morning, beginning largely with the report of 1934 and
bridging the interval. If it is approved, I would be prepared to do that, but
I do not want to interfere with my friend finding a seconder for his motion. I
do think our ideas, in effect, are similar perhaps.

Mr. Massey: Yes.
[Mr. Hector Charlesworth,]



~ Mr. SuagaT: I think we could really start usefully this morning by getting
- some facts from Mr. Charlesworth, not controversial ones perhaps, that would
! "put‘us off on the right foot for the next meeting. :

- Mr. Howagp: I think that is the proper way to proceed. Your agenda has
been prepared. Your first item is the handling of the committee’s correspondence.
~ We have disposed of that. The second item is the consideration of the recom-
" mendations of the 1934 committee. I shall be very pleased to move that we ask
~ Mr. Slaght to put the necessary questions to Mr. Charlesworth, in order to bring
~ out the outstanding details of the 1934 report. '

Mr. McIntosH: I second that. . ;

The CrArrMAN: I might say, Mr. Massey, that I think the proper way to
proceed is this: If you wish to ask any questions of the chairman of the Radio
Commission, you should ask those questions. Then if there are any that he
~ cannot answer, he would prepare a memorandum and bring it at the next
- meeting. I do not see how you can proceed otherwise.

It has been moved by Mr. Howard, and seconded by Mr. MecIntosh that

Mr. Slaght proceed. Are you in favour of the motion?

(Carried.)
w3 Will you proceed, Mr. Slaght?

R+ By Mr. Slaght:
Q. Mr. Charlesworth, just a word or two by way of introduction before we
.~ come to 1934. Your Commission operates under statute, of course, do they
- not?—A. Yes.
& Q. And the original act was chapter 51 of 1932?7—A. Yes.
Q. That was amended in 1933, or 1932-33, by chapter 357—A. Yes. It is
a brief act. It has been renewed from year to year.
Q. The 1935 act?—A. The 1932 act.
Q. The 1933 act, rather?—A. Yes.
Q. We may turn at once, if you have been furnished with a copy of the
report of 1934, to the sixth recommendation of the committee of 1934. The
~ report bears date June 28, 1934, and perhaps we should read the prelude, which
. is as-follows:—
¥ Your committee held twenty sessions and heard thirty-seven witnesses,
i including five members of parliament; and, after reviewing the evidence,
ol it has been made apparent to your committee that the establishing of
national broadecasting in Canada presents many difficulties, for the correc-
tion of which, time, experience and large expenditure of public money will
be necessary.
o Your committee therefore recommends:—
¢ 1. That in view of evidence given before this committee the govern-
ment should, during the recess, consider the advisability of amending the
Act, with a view to securing better broadcasting facilities throughout the
Dominion.

Pausing there, can you tell me whether any amendments to the Act were made,
having regard to that recommendation?—A. No. I do not think that was
considered by the government. That was a matter for the government; it was
- a matter of capital expenditure and they did not feel disposed to; you will see,
~ that would have involved a vote the following session to extend broadeasting
b facilities. I never heard of any amendment.
’ Q. That is my understanding of it, that although that recommendation
' was made by the committee in 1934, it was not followed by the government,
~  and no legislation ensued carrying out the suggestions that the committee made
. for such legislation?—A. Quite so.
150382
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Q. I have looked hurriedly at the Act, and I found none. That paragraph .
No. 1 contains a second recommendation that, “in the opinion of your com-
mittee, radio broadcasting could best be conducted by a general manager.” I
do not find that that has been followed. What do you say?—A. Well, so far as
that is concerned—

Q. Has it been followed, let me ask you first?—A. No.

Q. No, it has not.—A. T have been general manager, and Colonel Steele o
has been assistant general manager, with Mr. Maher. We carry on all branches 7
of the work, in the absence of any business managers.

Q. I take it that you are commissioners, are you not? You are the chief T
commissioner or chairman of the commission?—A. Yes, chairman of the com-
mission. -
Q. May I take it that that was your posmon prior to this report being =
made?—A. Yes. : W)

Q. And that the position of the commission as such, and your own position
as chief commissioner, has not been altered since prior to this report. Is that
so?—A. No, it had not been altered. As a matter of fact, that interpolation in
Clause 1 came as a surprise to us. If you read the evidence taken in that
parliamentary committee, of which I think Dr. Morand was chairman, you
will find that no evidence at all was taken on the subject of any general manager.

The Cramrman: Mr. Slaght, I think the Aird report recommends that.

Wrrness: Yes, the Aird report.

The CHA]RMAN And, of course, the commlttee of 1934 had the Aird report
before them.

Witness: No. We were guided, and we had to be guided by the report of
the parliamentary committee of 1932, which provided for the appointment of
a commission in its present form and gave us in rather complete detail our
instructions as to how we were to carry on our business.

By Mr. Slaght:

Q. The committee of 1934 had a very protracted hearing, and amongst
their recommendations is this: “In the opinion of your committee radio broad-
casting could best be conducted by a general manager.” You tell me now the
set up of the commission was the same then as now?—A. Yes.

Q. That is, the same as when they made this?—A. Yes.

Q. They meant something by that, and had a reason for it, I assume‘?—- <
A. Yes. X

Q. I had not the privilege of being on the committee. Will you tell me
whether you considered, after this report came in, carrying out their recom-
mendation in that regard; and if not, why not?—A. Well, we could not appoint
a general manager, Mr. Slaght. We had no powers of appointment. That was
for the Government to decide. To get an efficient general manager at that time,
or any time, they would probably have had to go and pay a larger salary than
any of the commissioners was getting. That was a suggestion for the govern-
ment. We were not in a position to appoint a general manager.

Q. Let me put it this way. I do not want to discuss with you now the
wisdom or otherwise of such recommendation. The finding is there—A. It
might be a wise act, but we were quite helpless in the matter.

Q. Well, the finding was there. Will you tell me whether any steps were
taken by the commission either by way of discussion with the government or :
recommendation that this recommendation of the committee should or should }
not be given effect to, either by legislation or regulation?—A. No. The gov- }

T .

ernment was very much in the position of Martha; it was busy with a multitude
of other things, and we did not hear anything about it.

Q. Then the answer is no, is it?—A. No.

Q. You did not discuss it?—A. No.

[Mr. Hector Charlesworth.]
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Q. You did not discuss with the government or pass on any recommenda-
~ tion to either adopt or reject that finding of the committee?—A. We did make
a recommendation that, as a first step, we should be given the powers of a
corporation.

Q. That would be in writing, would it?—A. Well, they speak of us in the
Act as a corporation and say we can be sued.

Q. You said you did make a recommendation?—A. Yes.

Q. I asked you to give it to the members of the committee?—A. Yes.

Q. That was in writing?—A. Yes.

Q. Would you forward us that, if you have not it now?—A. Yes, I will
try and find it.. It was in our file. It was sent out at the same time as this
recommendation. It was very brief.

Q. Well, brief or not, would you be good enough to let us have that?—A.
Yes, I will endeavour to find it.

Q. My purpose, rightly or wrongly, is this: We want to clear up the
recommendations and the work done by that committee?—A. Yes.

Q. And if they made recommendations that were not followed, we might
curselves endorse them?—A. Yes.

Q. You have told me you made this recommendation; does it touch this
point of the general manager?—A. No, it does not touch that. i

Q. We had better have it any way. That was a recommendation as a
result of this report?—A. Yes.

Q. Will you tell me then, and we will leave it, why you feel, if you do—

because you took no step to bring it into being—that there should not be a
general manager?—A. I do not feel that there should not be a general manager.
But as I say, if you will read through that report, there was no evidence taken
on that. We had nothing before us.
Hon. Mr. Howe: In order to clear the air, I might say this, the commission
was recommending something to the government, and it intended to do so, I
think. That is, the committee had made recommendations to the government,
ard it was intended by the committee that the government would pass legisla-
tion. The government did not do so; and so there was really no mandate to the
radio commission.

~ Mr. SuagaT: No, no, Mr. Howe. I am not suggesting a mandate. I thought
if this gentleman could throw any light on that question, we might be able to
take his answers and not trouble with it any more. )

Hon. Mr. Howe: Yes.

Mr. SuagaT: I want his mind, or opinion, if he has one, as why a general
manager should not be appointed; because if it was to be useful to you, you
have the recommendation of the committee in favour of it, and it would not
have been offensive for you to have brought to the attention of the proper
department the carrying out of that recommendation if you thought it ought
to be done. Can you very briefly tell us why you did not think it was neces-
sary?—A. Well, it was not a case of being necessary or unnecessary. At that
time it was very difficult for us to get any discussion with the government on
our problems at all. There were a great many other things constantly arising
- at that time.
By Mr. Slaght : :

Q. Not, I am sure, from the unimportance of your commission?—A. Well,
I don’t know what the attitude was. Let me give you an instance of where
some action was taken.

Q. I do not want to interrupt you unfairly, but we have got so much to do;

. if you would just direct your mind to this. I am merely seeking for the moment
I 159382}




business of their respective departments. They know their work, but if a

would have been this—we were having a hard time scratching through and
carrying on our work in broadecasting, and to add to the forces a general manager

whom I would have had to start in and teach—and, at a considerable salary—I

would have considered it an uneconomical method.
Q. It just occurs to me to suggest this, many large corporations, I think
most of them, have general managers; does anybody on your commission, or

any employee, do the work that a general manager if appointed would be

expected to do?—A. Our machine does that.

Q. I never heard of a machine being a general manager?—A. I mean by
that, our office organization.

Q. Well then, are there several general managers, or several gentlemen who

act as such?—A. No, because I have complete authority over.all. If any ques-

tion arises about which there is any dispute it comes to me for final settlement.

By Mr. Dupwis:

Q. You mean to say that you are acting as head of the commission and as
general manager at the same time?—A. Well, yes. There are several phases to
our work. Colonel Steele looks after certain things, and Colonel Landry, our
secretary, does a great deal of the work in a business way. We have staffs of
men, net-work experts, and men who arrange net-work schedules; and we have
men who arrange programs throughout Canada. All these men conduct the

question arises—which is not often—which they cannot dispose of, I make the

“decision as to what shall be done.

Q. Might I ask also, and if possible give me an answer by “yes” or “no”,
whether or not you are in favour of having a general manager?—A. I cannot
see the necessity— Y

Q. Can you say “yes” or “no”?—A. No. I cannot see the necessity for
one.

Mr. WoopswortH: Mr. Chairman, I think this is hardly a fair procedure.

Some hon. MemBERsS: Hear, hear.

Mr. WoopsworTH: I think the minister was correct in his interpretation
of this. They are recommendations by the committee to the government. It
would seem, therefore, that Mr. Charlesworth would have no responsibility
for initiating action; that is for the government. I do not think we ought to
catechize Mr. Charlesworth as to why he did not initiate action. Then, on the
second point, Mr. Slaght rather shifted his ground and asked Mr. Charlesworth
for his opinion as to the appointment of a general manager.

Mr. SuagaT: That is all. .

Mr. WoopswortH: By that you put him in the position of reflecting on the
committee. '

The CHAmRMAN: Of course, Mr. Woodsworth, I might interrupt there and
say that Mr. Charlesworth himself reflected on the report of the committee by
stating that they had made this recdmmendation without hearing any evidence.

Mr. WoopswortH: That may be, but that is another matter.

Mr. Jounson: Did Mr. Charlesworth have any authority to make recom-
mendations? He might have had to make a recommendation whether he liked
to, or whether he did not like to.

Wirness: No.

[Mr. Hector Charlesworth,]

to find out whether you think a general manager desirable, and if not why you
disagree with the opinion of the committee on that point. If there are reasons,
give us the benefit of them?—A. That is a question which was never submitted
to me either for approval or disapproval. To my mind the criticism at the time
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 Mr. Jouxstox: It seems to me that is beside the point, because whether he
liked the idea of a manager or whether he did not like the idea of a manager
 he had no say in the matter. It seems to me that Mr. Woodsworth is quite
- right there.

Mr. StagET: As far as I am concerned I did not intend to reflect on Mr.
Charlesworth for not taking the initiative if he was not responsible, as explained
by the minister; but I do think we might seek from him, since the committee
~ considered it and reported on it, his views upon it. There is no reflection involved
- in his giving us his views.

Mr. Jounson: That is sort of putting him on the spot, though.

Mr. WoopswortH: I have no objection to your asking Mr. Charlesworth
to give his opinion, but just in this connection I would like to know whether or
- not he had any authority to carry out the recommendations of the committee.

\ ~ Mr. Duruis: We do not want to cast any reflections on the chairman
- of the Radio Commission. If I understand it correctly Mr. Charlesworth is
 here for the purpose of giving information to the committee. As I understand
it Mr. Slaght, and other members of the committee, are making an effort to find
out from Mr. Charlesworth what his opinion is with respect to two different
items of the report. The report recommends the appointment of a general
manager. We want to know from Mr. Charlesworth whether or not he thinks
~ such an appointment advisable.

e ‘Mr. SuacaT: He has given us his opinion, and he has given us his reason
~ for it. Unless some other member wants to ask some question on the matter
- I shall go to the next question.

Wirnrss: Let me amend that a little, please. With the rapid expansion
which has taken place in radio broadeasting in this country it might be a desir-
able thing to have a general manager; but just at present it might not be
desirable. :

3 By Mr. Slaght: .

it Q. You think the time is not right yet?—A. Up to date we have managed
~ to run along with a fair degree of efficiency. I think we are one of the most
efficient branches of the public service, and people who have dealings with
us admit that. So far we have not seen the necessity for a general manager.
We have been able to get along without one.

By Mr. McIntosh:

] Q. Under the circumstances prevailing at that time, however, you were

-~ not sympathetic to the idea?—A. No. It would not have made any difference
if T had been. This was a matter for Mr. Duranleau to deal with, to consult
with Mr. Bennett.

By Mr. Campbell:

. Q. Your commission was not consulted at any time regarding those recom-
mendations?—A. Well—

By Mr. Ryan:

Q. If there was any correspondence between the government and your

- commission on that point I think we ought to have it?—A. T can tell you there

was no correspondence. I am very certain of that. I will have a look, but I

am quite certain there was no correspondence between the government and the
commission.

By the Chairman:
Q. I think, Mr. Charlesworth, that you made a statement a little while
~ago that you had madg a recommendation to the government?—A. I did dis-
. Cuss a certain matter with the government. I will go into that now if you like.
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Q. If you have it you can produce the correspondence, or bring it later?—
A. We got nowhere with it.

Q. I mean, you will bring that ret,ommendatmn if you have it?—A. It was
not in written form, it was a discussion. We were handxca.pped to some extent
in carrying on, because we could not do things without the government’s sup-
port. Anythlng we did had to go before the Treasury Board. There is a point
which I think is important, one which you will find in the recommendations
with respect to the Act of 1932. It is a point which would be of interest here
to-day, and that was the provision under which the Dominion government after
consultation with the provineial governments was to appoint assistant commis-
sioners to represent the several provinces. Well, the government for some
reason or other got it into its head that I—they had forgotten the Act—that I
was myself to a appoint these assistant commissioners. I said that I would be
very glad to do that, only the Act expressly stated that the Governor in Council
in consultation with the provincial governments was to do it. At Mr. Bennett’s
request I did look into that matter. I was going through Canada that first
year, and I had discussions with the provincial governments as to their recom-

mendations. They had several very satisfactory individuals. Well then, before

they got anywhere with it the political complexion of provincial governments
started to change so rapidly that many of the recommendations sent in were
invalid. The new government coming in would necessarily want to reject, or in
certain cases make different recommendations. That was the only action which
we took in the matter of those appointments; and there was nothing came of it.
However, that was due to the rapid changes in the political complexion of the
different governments.

By Mr. Slaght:

Q. Since you have been Chairman of the Commission have district, or
provincial officials been appointed to any of the provinces?—A. No.

Q. They have never been appointed?—A. No. It was not a good system,
not the way it was worded, anyway.

Q. Why?—A. It is perfectly absurd to have a commissioner for Prince
Edward Island which produces nothing on the air at all, and just one commis-
sioner from the province of Ontario.

Q. I have forgotten: Did the Act make it permissive or was it dictatorial?

—A. I should say it was permissive.

Q. You think it is? I haven’t looked at it—A. It is a long time since I
looked at the Act. That was the understanding; that in co-operation with the
provincial governments, the federal government should appoint assistant com-
missioners.

Q. And that has not been done?—A. No. We were to have had them
appointed. They were not to be paid, but we were to vote them an honorarium.

Q. So that British Columbia and Prince Edward Island are really run from
Ottawa, rather than by an assistant provincial commissioner?—A. Yes. Well,
we have our own superintendents in certain districts; we have the Marltlmes,

the West, and so on.

By Mr. Campbell :

How many districts have you?—A. We have, let me see; there is part
of Quebec, and part of Ontario; part of Western Ontarlo part of the prairies and
so on. It is arranged largely on the basis of telegraph lines.

By Myr. Slaght:
Q. Your report, which is in the hands of the Committee, will show each
one of the regional districts, will it not?—A. Yes.
[Mr. Hector Charlesworth,]
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~ Mr. SuagHT: Perhaps we might have that marked as an exhibit. Do you
wish to have exhibits entered and marked, Mr. Chairman?
B The Cuamman: Yes, if you like.
- Mr. SuacHT: Perhaps this report of 1935 might be marked as exhibit one.
-~ Mr. CampBeLL: Are we really getting anywhere? I would suggest that
~ Mr. Slaght be allowed to carry on. :
- Mr. SvacHT: Then, if you approve Mr. Chairman, I will pass to the item
~ about the collection of radio licence fees:—
That the collection of the fees for radio licences should be simplified
B - and that one licence fee should cover only one receiving set. ’

= By Mr. Slaght:
e Q. Now, I take it, as you have pointed. out with respect to the general .
.~ manager, this would be a matter for the government and not for your commis-
- sion?—A. That is purely a matter relating to the Department of Marine.
T Q. And the department fixes the fees, and collects the fees? As I under-
‘ stand it our inquiry does not affect that recommendation. You didn’t make any
change? Is that so?—A. I don’t think so. I have never heard of any change.

Q. Well, you would know of it, surely. Then, have you any view to express
on that recommendation; whether it was wise to ignore it or not?—A. No. I
am not going—

Q. You are not going to express a view?—A. It has nothing to do with us.

The CHAlRMAN: Mr. Slaght, do you wish to have that report of the com-
mission filed?

Mr. SvaguT: Yes, I think we better have it filed formally as an exhibit.

Mr. Duruis: I am wondering if any of the members have received letters
from rural districts, particularly from those listeners-in who operate only a
erystal set? These letters ask that in such cases the owners be exempt from the
$2 fee, or whatever the fee is; especially those farmers who have only small
crystal sets. I think that is a matter which should come before the committee
for consideration. '

Mr. StacuT: Perhaps that subject will come up better at a later stage,
when we are discussing licence fees, if we do.

By Mvr. Slaght:

Q. As I understand it, Mr. Charlesworth,—see if I am correct—this would
be a very controversial matter, because, if a man had a licence for a radio and
had two sets in his home he would be charged two fees?—A. Yes.

Q. He might have one upstairs and one down, and he would have to pay
two fees. I feel sure if that were so it would create a great deal of dissatisfaction.

The Crarrman: May I interject here? I think what Mr. Slaght is trying
to arrive at is, what part of the recommendations of this committee of 1934 was
put into effect.

Mr. SragHT: That is it.

The Cramman: I think the question of radio licences should come later on.

Mr. SuagaT: Yes, sir.

; The CaAatrMAN: This committee of 1934 made a lot of recommendations,
~ . and Mr. Slaght is trying to find out what part, if any, of those recommendations
e have been put into effect since that time.

' Mr. CampBenn: That comes under item 10 on our agenda.

Mr. Haxsox: The subject of radio licences in Canada is one which needs
special consideration, at least in so far as our portion of the country is concerned.
I would point out that most of our people use their sets when fall comes, and
I think that when an inspector or anyone goes around to collect fees they should
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do so around that time. I think that the radio year- should be changed to daf,e k

from September, or some such time in the year, when people start to use their
sets. I make that as a definite suggestion, that the radio year should be changed
from April to September. "

The Crmamman: I might tell Mr. Hanson that that is one of the questions

on our agenda and it will be reached for discussion later.
Mr. StagaT: It will come up under the discussion of licence fees.

Mr. Hanson: Might I suggest that at the same time consideration should
be given to the improvement of conditions and the remedying of difficulties
which exist in our district at the present time. I think it would be a good idea
if the commission arranged to see that the people in the district know when an
inspector is to make a visit so that they may arrange to take up with him any
}f)roblc;lrps they may have, and at the same time get authoritative information

rom him.

By Mr. Slaght:
Q. We will take item 3, then:—
That the provision of the Aect dealing with advertising should be
more liberally interpreted.
Now, in your preamble this morning you made mention of this matter. At the
time this recommendation was made there was a provision in the Act, as I
read it, that only 5 per cent of the time on the air should be devoted to adver-
tising. Is that correct?—A. Yes.

Q. That meant that out of one hour, or 60 minutes, only 3 minutes could be
devoted to advertising?—A. Yes.

Q. Now, this recommendation suggests that it should be more liberally
interpreted. Will you tell us what, if anything, was done? I suppose the
interpretation of that recommendation would be for your commission to con-
sider?—A. You will see that in the original Act there is a little rider which
says that the commission shall have some latitude in the matter. :

Q. Yes?—A. I was not anxious at the outset to exercise much latitude. I
was trying to clean up the advertising as far as possible. The conditions in
Canada had become very serious, but with respeet to certain classes of advertising
which we thought were not objectionable to the public we have shown a little
latitude. If we find an advertiser-sponsor grossly abusing the latitude accorded
to his half-hour or hour we stop it. We apply our rules to the small Canadian
stations, and we also apply them to the American advertisers using our net-
work through such outlets as Toronto and Montreal.

Q. This recommendation strengthened your hand a bit then in using your
discretion?—A. Yes.

Q. A little latitude, is that it?—A. Yes.

Q. Then, do I understand you that you did use that discretion, and in a
sense carry out that recommendation?—A. We used our diseretion. I do not
think there was any intention on the part of the committee of 1934 to let back
all the abuses that existed in Canada for a time, and which are very wide-
spread in the United States at the present time.

Q. Then, Mr. Chairman, if you approve, we have on the agenda the ques-
tion of alvertising. It is a big question. I wonder if there is some other general
question which we might better deal with just now. There is No. 4:

That a greater use ‘of electrical transcriptions be permitted.
A. That is rather eriptic as it stands? I ean explain to you what that means.

Q. I wish you would?—A. There was an old regulation in the Department
of Marine which the commission aceepted when it took over the work. Tt was
put in there in Mr. Cardin’s time. That regulation provided for the use of
records by large stations only during the day time, or up to 7.30 p.m., in the

[Mr, Hector Charlesworth_]
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~ evening, and that for the evening there should be “live” programs. We have

~ broadened the thing to the extent that in small towns or cities where it was very
~ difficult for them to get a “live” program we allowed them a little more latitude,
‘an extra half hour or an extra hour, in which they might use records. That is,
we did not comply with that suggestion.

Q. Were your regulations amended in any respect as a result of that sug-
gestion?—A. Yes, we cancelled one regulation. You see, regulations governing

~ radio are in the form of Minutes to Council.

Q. I have not read that through, perhaps you could just indicate the regula-
tion which was amended, and the previous regulation?—A. Those regulations
are not in any printed form. From time to time we sent out in mimeographed
form instructions to our own stations, and to every station we sent rules as to
advertising.

Q. Are the regulations before the committee?—A. But we can file with
you, if you want us to, a complete file of all the regulations.

Q. Your regulations are in printed form?—A. These regulations deal with
general questions.

Q. It occurs to me, Mr. Chairman, that we should have regulations filed at
an early stage— —A. These are regulations passed by order in council.

Q. —passed by order in council and otherwise. Have you many regulations
as distinct from regulations passed by council?—A. Yes. "

Q. You have both types? Are they in pamphlet form?—A. We have a
file of mimeographed regulations covering a great variety of subjects.

Q. Will you have your secretary give us one of the files?—A. Yes.

Q. Possibly you could have him give us one for each member?—A. I may
not be making myself clear, due to the short notice; but we have a regulation,
or order against advertising the sale of mining prospectuses.

Q. I notice that?—A. In co-operation with my friend John Godfrey.

Q. You had that in 1934?—A. No, last year.

Q. 1935?—A. Last year. I added that. There were certain complaints in
connection with the sale of prospectuses from the United States.

Q. Then I invite you to furnish as exhibit 2, a complete copy of the regu-
lations passed by order in council and passed by yourself. As a matter of
courtesy I should like your secretary to supply one to each of the members?—
A. Yes. :

Q. As soon as possible. That will facilitate the study of the regulations by
the individual members?—A. They cover a great many things in regard to
religious broadcasts and questions that arise.

Q. Can you indicate now what amendments to the regulations you brought
in as a result of this recommendation?—A. We brought in two amendments

_allowing stations in smaller places where it was difficult to get line programs to

use records for a longer time during the night. One of the things that was
insisted on in the original investigation was that if stations were permitted to
run all day long with records there would be no opportunity for Canadian
singers or performers at all.

Q. Quite so. Those records are mearly all manufactured in the United
States?—A. We carried out the regulations adopted by the Marine Department
almost in the same words. Then when they requested this, we went into the
question more fully, and found it would work no.injustice to anybody if we
allowed a station such as Chilliwack or Lethbridge to use records for a longer
period of time. .

Q. Am I correctly informed that practically all the records are manu-
factured in the United States or outside of Canada?—A. Well I think so—no,
they manufacture records in Canada. I was talking to one of the representa-
tives of the Canadian manufacturers, and he said that business was not good
in Canada. Most of them come from the United States. -
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Q. There would be two sides to the question, I suppose?—A. England—
Q. The Canadian merchants on the one hand— —A. England will not ship
into Canada for some reason or other. They have got the protection there

_that—the artists as well as authors have protection there. They are all involved

in these matters.
Q. We had better not get into that.

By Mr. Campbell: -

Q. Can you give us a copy of your regulations regarding changes?—
A. With reference to transcription?

Q. Yes—A. We classify records under the heading of transcription.

Q. Can you give us a copy of your recommendations regarding this change?
—A. Yes, with instructions sent out to the stations as to what they were
permitted to do. ¥

Q. Would that be included in the regulations we just asked for?—A. Yes,
it possibly would be. I do not know just whether it was filed or not. The
Commission passed it.

By Mr. Slaght:

Q. You can indicate at a later stage the particular regulation which amended
the previous one—A. Yes.

By Hon. Mr. Mackenzie:

Q. On looking through the proceedings of 1934 I find that on at least ten
pages the subject of a general manager was discussed. You are quite aware

‘ that the whole question was thoroughly discussed by the 1934 committee?—

A. Yes. If I remember rightly they were against—

Q. I gathered from you, perhaps erroneously, that no evidence whatever
was given with reference to the establishment of a general manager before 1934,
but I find in the proceedings evidence to show that that is not correct.—A. I
believe Tom Moore— :

Q. And three others.—A. —did mention that, but they never gave any reason
why they were in favour of it.

By Mr. McIntosh:

Q. Do you know whether or not the records are of an empire nature?—
A. Noj; the question of empire records did not come up.

By Mr. Johnston:

Q. In regard to the records, I take it it is absolutely necessary to put on a
program consisting of records because you have not sufficient original programs
of a quality that would permit you to continue your broadeast. Is not that so?
—A. Well you see, we feed a large number of programs to all stations in
Canada, and we keep them going pretty well. We have them fill in, in between,
in smaller places with records or electrical transeriptions. If it is a large place
like Winnipeg we expect the station to rely on our own sustaining programs,
which are line programs, or our own local programs, which are put on by
advertisers. It has been our desire to make things cheap for the advertiser.
He can go and buy an electrical transcription, and instead of employing talent,
put on an advertising program by means of electrical transcription.

Mr. Massey: If I may say so, electrical transcriptions as such, are used
in a number of ways. It has been suggested that electrical transeriptions came
from the States. I think a statement of that kind implies that electrical trans-
criptions are simply records that you purchase in a shop. * Electrical transerip-

[Mr. Hector Charlesworth,]
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‘tions cover a variety of advertising matter. For example, a man puts two
~ programs over the eastern network. He does not wish to spend money on two
~ programs, because there are line charges, which are very expensive. What
~ happens is this: the program is taken off the line and a transcription is made
of the program, and that program is reproduced in the western station, or even
in the maritimes. I have been in the ladvertising business, and we have had
occasions arise on which records were made and sent out in that way. A cer-
tain percentage of transcriptions are of this type: an advertiser will can his
program, which is produced in the city, and send his transeription up here. That
has been followed in the United Kingdom. An advertiser in the United
Kingdom who wishes to get on the air and cannot get on through the B.B.C.
makes a transcription of his program and sends it over to the continent, and
" it goes on the air through a continental station by means of electrical transerip-
tion. The words “electrical transcription” are very broad words, and cover
many things.

Wirness: It is a very fine type of record. The N.B.C. is making them up
very nicely, a very beautiful thing, very delicate in every way.

By Mr. Slaght:

Q. Do you agree with Mr. Massey’s explanation of electrical transeriptions,
as given to the committee?—A. Mr. Massey would know more about it than I.

Mr. Massey: I speak from experience.

By Mvr. Slaght:

Q. That will be helpful. Perhaps Mr. Massey’s explanation agrees with
your view?—A. It agrees with what my information is.

Mr. Massey: The reason I introduced it is this: many splendid programs
are put out by means of electrical transeription, and I think the committee
should consider it very carefully before replacing it. Take a program that was
put on in the east, but not available to the west. It would be proper policy to
have that program carefully recorded in the east by means of transeription and
sent to the west, and I think it would be perfectly permissible to reproduce it
by means of these records. It would be a perfectly good program, even though
it might be a transcription.

Wirness: That matter was before the committee in 1934. The wire com-
panies were here and spent an entire morning pointing out that if it were allowed
to go uncontrolled, the use of electrical transeription would destroy their invest-
ment and they had invested several million dollars in organizing radio trans-
mission. You cannot send broadcasts out from an ordinary rural telephone
or telegraph office. You will find in the report of the evidence taken in 1934
a very extended report made by the representatives of the Canadian National
Telegraphs and the C.P.R. communications, and if I remember rightly, the
Bell Telephone company—I am not sure about that.

By Mr. Slaght:

Q. That is what you mean by the three companies who have installed their
equipment?—A. Yes.

Q. This recommendation: a greater use of electrical transcription would be
received adversely by them because it would affect their revenue—A. It was
adversely received; but we permitted a greater use to allow us to show some
benevolence to the smaller stations that could not get line programs.

Q. We are coming to your amended recommendations later.

‘Mr. Massey: Electrical transeriptions are also used for this reason, and I
refer now to the larger cities or stations where a program is arranged. On this
program is to appear a great artist, and for some reason or another he may
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not appear. In this case there is a stand-by artist ready to take his place.
For example, that happened the first time that Heifetz came on the air. He
was very nervous and not at all well and there was a stand-by musician waiting
in another station to go on the air in case the artist did not. In most of the
large stations there are stand-by artists. The smaller stations cannot afford
to have a stand-by artist; they cannot afford to pay two or three artists for
doing nothing. Then again it may happen that through some unforeseen circum-
stance the artist is prevented from appearing at the time, in which case somebody
must fill in. It sometimes happens that a station finds itself in the position
of having to play a record for fifteen minutes in order to maintain its position
on the air, and all these things should be taken into consideration. I think
the chairman of the commission has that in mind in allowing latitude to the
stations between the hours of 7.30 and 11.

Wirness: Yes, we allow latitude to the stations.

By Mr. Slaght:

Q. We now come to recommendation No. 5: “That pending nationalization
of all stations, greater cooperation should be established between privately owned
stations and the Commission,” Did you carry that out or can you tell us about

at recommendation?—A"1 endeavoured from the very first week of my

"~ appointment to establish friendly relations with privately owned stations in

Canada, to oblige them in every possible way. So far as I know—I do not
know what they say behind my back—so far as they tell me, our relations
are perfectly good.
< Q. I point out the relations up to the time of this report. Now, this report
recommends greater cooperation be established. Was that done?—A. We were
going on with a policy looking towards a greater cooperation, and we have
cooperation constantly with the privately owned station. I do not know just
what they mean, because I never heard of any complaints from a privately
owned station except one here in Ottawa, which was interfering with everybody
all over the map in Ottawa. We made him take his transmitter up the river.
Tha was the only privately owned station. They claimed we did not cooperate
in one or two cases.
Q. Very well. You do not know why they made that recommendation?—
A. No.
Q. Then we come to No. 6, which is as follows:
That chapter 35 of the Statutes of Canada for 1933 which expired
on the 3rd of April, 1934, be renewed until the 31st day of March, 1935.

Now, I have chapter 35 here. It is not necessary for us to go into it in any detail.
Tell us in what way that was done?—A. Yes.

Mr. CampBELL: What is the substance of it?

Mr. SuacaT: It deals with the payment of officers and employees; deals
with the powers of the commission.

Hon. Mr. Howe: Certain officers from the Civil Service Commission.

Mr. SuacaT: I think I can perhaps summarize under two headings for you
really what they were aiming at there.

By Mr. Slaght:

Q. Would it be this, that under the original set-up under the Act, you
employed your own staff except clerical, or was that the amendment?—A. The
amendment was intended to put that into effect.

Q. The amendment was intended to put that into effect?—A. Yes.

Q. Under the original Act you were hampered in the employment of your
staff; it had to go through the Civil Service Commission?—A. No consideration

[Mr. Hector Charlesworth.]
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*’F;éas siven to that point in drafting the original Act. Then when the commission
started to function there was an impasse, because the Civil Service Commission
system would not permit of our getting busy with a broadcasting set-up.
Q. You would have to employ artists on three hours’ notice; would that
~ be it?—A. Yes, we would have to employ artists. 38
Q. You could not run them through the Civil Service Commlsmqn?—A. You
- could not advertise throughout Canada for a pianist. That question was dis-
~ cussed. The Chairman of the Civil Service Commission, Mr. Bland, was before
~ the committee in 1934, and he explained that so far as our broadcasting staff
 was concerned, the Civil Service Commission did not want any control over it
and realized it was impossible. '
Q. Let me ask you this: In sympathy with this recommendation No. 6,
. is the present position as follows, that the clerical staff is subject to the Civil
~ Service Commission, as other departments?—A. Yes. : :
o5 Q. And except for that, you employ your own staff outside the Civil Service?
o —A. Yes.
Q. That is the present position?—A. Yes; technicians, program artists and

so forth. v

§ Q. Do you regard that as a satisfactory arrangement?—A. Yes, it worked
fairly well. _

Q. Then there is a second point involved in this study. As I understand it,
under the earlier statute you had to have the authority of parliament in order
to build stations, and this amending act enabled the administration of the day
by order in council to authorize your commission to build and acquire stations.
Is that a fact?—A. Yes. It was mainly to cover leases.

Mr. SvaguT: I think, gentlemen, you will find probably those two points
cover it.

Wirness: That was an Act drafted by Mr. Bennett.

- By Mr. Slaght:
% Q. By whom?—A. By Mr. Bennett himself.
i Q. And it has been renewed from time to time?—A. Every year.
h Q. So it is the present law?—A. It is the operative feature of our con-
stitution.

Hon. Mr. Howe: It is the law today, but not tomorrow, because it expires
today. When you say it is the present law you are correct.

it By Mr. Slaght:

E Q. Your recommendation to the committee would be that that should be
~ carried on as heretofore?—A. Yes, or some other system that would be equally
: effective to enable us to run as a going concern. You see, we are a going concern.

I do not know whether that is absolutely essential, but certainly it is essential
that we should have freedom of action in connection with our programs, which
is the most important work we do. i

Q. Then I will leave the report of 1934.

-

;: By Mr. Dupuis:
3 Q. With the permission of the chairman, I should like to ask a question

before you leave that. Does your staff extend all over Canada or is it limited
to your office in Canada?—A. It is all over Canada. We have seven stations in

Canada.
3 By Mr. Howard:
- Q. How many?—A. We have seven stations.

Mr. Dupurs: Could you supply the committee with the number of employees
on the staff?
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made.
By Mr. Dupuis: -

Q. Does that give the details as to salaries and dates of appointments?—

A. Yes, it does.

The CuamrmaN: Mr. Charlesworth has made the request that the salaries
of these employees should not be made public, and I think he is right there.

Hon. Mr. Howe: That they not be put in the press.

The CualRMAN: Yes, not put in the press.

Mr. Jounsron: That information should be made available to the com-
mittee. ‘

Hon. Mr. CasAN: I should like to make one remark. Insofar as these
recommendations of a parliamentary committee referred to prospective or recom-
mended legislation, or recommending action which must be taken by the
governor in council, that is purely a responsibility of the government.

The WirNess: As I understand it, yes.

Hon. Mr. CanaN: The government initiates and takes the responsibility
of initiating legislation recommended by parliamentary committees; and if
the government, as a government, do not deem it expedient at the time to
recommend such legislation, it is a government responsibility and not the
responsibility of the commission. Secondly, so far as action that must be
taken by order in council is concerned, and with respect to some of these recom-
mendations, they can only be carried into effect by order in council of His
Excellency the Governor General in Council,—that is a governmental responsi-
bility, and is not a responsibility of the chairman of the commission or his
assoclate commissioners.

The Wrrness: I think that is a fair statement of the position, Mr. Cahan.

Hon. Mr. Howe: Just as a resume following up that line of thought, it
simply means this, that in spite of the report that was attached herewith of the
radio committee of 1934, the government did not take any action whatsoever
on the recommendations of the radio committee.

Hon. Mr. Caman: Well, it does amount to this, that any action taken
involves serious financial outlay; and from time to time the question of in-
creasing governmental appropriations for this purpose was duly considered;
and in view of the financial position of the country, the recommendations were
not carried into effect because the time was not deemed appropriate in view of
the resources and revenues of the country. ;

The CuAaRMAN: I think the committee is well seized of that fact, Mr.
Cahan. In 1934 there was a report made to the House of Commons by a com-
mittee which made quite an extensive inquiry into the radio situation. I think
all the committee is trying to do, and all that Mr. Slaght is trying to do now,
is to get Mr. Charlesworth’s opinion as to these recommendations, based on the
experience that he has aequired as chairman of the Radio Commission.

Hon. Mr. CaaAN: That is perfectly proper, to ascertain from the Chairman _

or chief commissioner as to what his general views are. But the committee
should not place Mr. Charlesworth, who is a government officer in a certain sense,
in the position of criticizing government action and the reasons for govern-
mental policy, with respect to which he probably has not accurate information.

Mr. StagHT: I think we would all be agreed on Mr. Cahan’s view.

Some Hon. MEMBERS: Yes.

Hon. Mr. CagrpIN: At the same time, I think the committee should be
free to ask the advice of Mr. Charlesworth, because he is a man of experience.
We are entitled to have his advice.

[Mr. Hector Charlesworth.]

The CaarMAN: I might state that we have that here. There will be copies :
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By Mr. Martin: ! .
Q. I should like to ask a question, a purely local one, arising out of one

" of your last answers, Mr. Charlesworth. You said that the commission had
~ the power to make leases based on orders in council. Is that right?—A. Yes.

Q. Tt is purely a local question, but I think it is convenient for me to

~ ask it now. With respect to the lease by the commission of space in Windsor

with regard to the radio station there, was that lease submitted to the governor

" in council?—A. No. Just on matters of securing additional floor space or
- larger floor space and accommodation, the government does not expect us to

go to them.

Q. That was a new building altogether?—A. The government does not
expect us to go to them on a matter of that kind. The matter is reported
usually to the minister, because the payments have to come under the control
of the Treasury Board.  But a matter of acquiring space or something of that
sort is not submitted to them. But, for instance, when we acquired three
stations from the Canadian National Railways—that was at Ottawa, Van-
couver and Moncton—the government had to pass on that. Then, when we
leased station CKCW in Toronto, the government had to pass on that. But
it does not expect us to come to it for everything in the way of putting in
air-conditioning or matters of that sort, or acquiring extra floor space.

Q. That was taken over completely?—A. The matter was referred, and a
report made to the minister, but I do not think it goes up to the government.

Mr. BerTrAND: Could we get from the members of the Commission a resumé
of the complaints that have been made by the general public against the present
radio commission® I do not mean complaints as to the administration. I mean,
if we had a resumé of the complaints made by the public against the commission,
either on account of the program or anything else, we would be in a position to

-~ take cognizance of them. We would know where we were at and what we could

do. :
Mr. Howarp: There would be some volume.

Wirness: We are in the happy position that we have not received more than
half a dozen complaints against our work as broadcasters during the past year.
Any complaints that come to us are lack of coverage, where they do not hear our
programs properly. Those complaints are usually accompanied by a statement
of their admiration for our Canadian programs, and that is why they desire to
hear them. The letters are kept and filed. Of course, a program that suits
one man does not suit another person. As the Hon. Charles Stewart said the
other day, you have got a wildeat by the tail, because the fellow that likes old
music does not like jazz, and the fellow that likes jazz does not like old musie.
However, we try to reconcile all interests. The only organized attack on the
commission in connection with its programs, sir, occurred early in 1933, and in fact
throughout the summer of 1933, when we were attacked for carrying French
programs on the air. A good many of those people had the idea that you could
wall up the air within the province of Quebec, and that there was no other
program in Canada. In fact, a celebrated radio authority, Mr. Ashcroft, got out
a manifesto that the use of French on the air outside of the province of Quebec
was an affront to every British speaking home. But that was the only really
organized campaign against the commission in connection with its programs that
I have encountered since I became Commissioner. For instance, we have a
“Young Tim” program, a thing everybody loves, or at least a great many people
love. Other people do not like it. We are up against that all the time. But we
got, as a matter of fact, very few complaints, except for this organized campaign
that I spoke of. The complaints against the radio commission would not number
more than about one-tenth of one per cent of the listening public of Canada.
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By Mr. Dupuwis: v : A
Q. You mean outside of the complaints against the French programs?—A.
Outside of complaints of that kind, which were organized complaints.

. By Mr. Bertrand:

Q. I suppose you do not get complaints against the use of Italians or Germans

in opera?—A. No. That was discussed at some length.

Q. I would like to have all the complaints about that. They could be
summarized?—A. I don’t know just where they would be. I will tell you, those
complaints were kept; those that were sent to me were sent to Mr. Bennett in the
form of a file, and I believe they were boxed up and they are somewhere in the
basement of this building. '

Mr. WoopswortH: Why resurrect them?

Mr. Svacnr: I should like to make a suggestion, which might satisfy Mr. .

Bertrand’s view, and might or might not be acceptable to the chairman. On that
point I was going to invite him to not go back of June 28, 1934, because I find
this evidence is chuck full of complaints set out in great detail and discussed by
that former committee, and I fancy we do not want to resurrect them.

Hon. Mr. Howe: No.

Mr. SraguT: My suggestion to the witness was to be that he might have his
clerical staff prepare for us a schedule of the complaints made to his commission
since June 28, 1934, with the name of the camplainant, the date of the document
of complaint, another column with the date of the commission’s reply, and another
column, just in a word, with the treatment accorded that complaint. You might
say we refused or accepted it. If you get us a schedule of those, I think we could
readily pick them out. It would show the character of the complaints, the com-
plaints as to the general policy that you are adopting. Then we might want to
look at that. Would that be too much trouble?

Wirness: It would be a great deal of trouble but it could be done. Of
course, my reply is usually to say that we have received their complaint and
contents noted.

Mr. SuacHT: Reply is not a good heading. Just let me put it this way:
“ Action by the commission.” Make the heading “ Action by the Commission ”’;
you either did or did not.

Wirness: No, we do not take action. Suppose we have a program on
the air that is, in our opinion, pretty well organized and pretty good.

The CuAirMAN: That is a big order, Mr. Slaght.

Wrirness: We do not take action to cut that off because three or four
fellows write and tell us they do not like it. What we do, we judge ourselves
as to whether this thing is a washout or whether it is gradually washing out,
and presently it drops off the air. Nobody misses it, and there is something
else substituted for it. That is the line we pursue. Of course, you cannot get
any program that satisfies everybody. We had the most beautiful program
that is heard in America, and one which we put across Canada by arrangement
with the Columbia Broadcasting Company, and the Philharmonic orchestra.
That is the finest program in the world. No other country has one like it. But
I am quite satisfied that there are plenty of listeners who would prefer a jazz
program. But my experience as a musical eritic is that if you give the proper
dilution of good music, as we are trying to do every night, it creates an appetite
for good music. I have seen that growing in Canada for orchestras in the past
three and a half years. Just because some persons wrote and said they did
not like a certain program because it had French in it or Italian in it, and they
suspected the morals of the person who wrote the song that was in it—that is
not an invention. I got a letter the other day from a dentist in the west. He

[Mr. Hector Charlesworth,]
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could spill his English pretty well and he was letting himself go strong because
we had an English song, “I learned to drink in Costa Rica,” on the air. He
said we were trying to turn his home into a brothel. You see, that is the nature
of a good many of the complaints that we receive.

; Mr. StagaT: Then Mr. Chairman, perhaps it would be in the judgment
~ of the committee as to whether we should press Mr. Charlesworth to prepare or
~ have his clerical staff prepare a schedule of complaints in that bald way or not.

Mr. WoopsworTH: Could we not just have a summary of the type of
complaint?
Wirness: Yes.
; Mr. StagaT: I think we ought to know something about what the public
 are saying to the commission directly. I think Mr. Woodsworth’s suggestion
~ would be good.

By Mr. Slaght:
Q. Could you work that out for us?—A. Yes, the nature of the complaint.
For the past two years, is it?
Q. Just since June 28, 1934, T suppose. That is the date of this last report.

I suggest that we do not bother back of that, because they had endless com-
plaints—A. Do you want the fan mail, too, on that?

Mr. WoopswortH: Oh, no.

Wirness: Because in nearly all these programs that they objected to, there
are dozens and more who like them.

. Hon. Mr. Howe: I think perhaps the committee have in mind the com-
plaints outside of the programs. For instance, we had a great many complaints
: on the allocation of wavelengths.

Wirxess: That is a different matter.

Hon. Mr. Howe: On the power of stations; I think that is the nature of
‘the thing the committee had in mind.

Mr. BertraND: That is what I had in mind.

Mzr. ScacaT: I think you were discussing programs.

Mr. Bertranp: I think we should know what the public is complaining of,
because we have a good many charges.

By Mr. Campbell:

Q. Do all the complaints sent to the local stations come to you here in
Ottawa?—A. They do not come to me, because—

Q. I mean, are they sent on here to Ottawa?—A. We hear of them. Nine-
tenths of the letters that come to a station are of a very flattering character.
When a good-looking fellow sings over the air a lot of women will sit down and
write him a letter.

The CramrMaN: That looks like one way of getting letters.

Wirness: The number of complaints is comparatively small.

Mr. SvacaT: It Wwill be better when we get television.

WirNess: If a complaint comes in to a commissioner it is usually in respect
to the matter of a program which the local manager has forwarded here. Other-
wise, if it is just, say, “I don’t like your damn rubbish,” “1 hate so-and-so
g snyway”___

By Mr. Bertrand:
Q. I mean, what is the public complaining of, in a general way; with respect

to the advertising, or to the program, but not the silly things?—A. Complaints
159383
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are mainly in connection with coverage, and that is entirely outside of our 17.}
~ control. You see, we have a limited number of frequencies allocated to us under

the international agreement. We would have to have a great many more if
we were to comply with the demand. We get many complaints because people
want a new frequency which is already allocated to another country, and that
isbi]usic something that I cannot do anything about, because they are not avail-
able to us. ;

By Mr. Woodsworth.:

Q. A little while ago you mentioned the matter of coverage. Is it possible.

to supply greater coverage without a capital expenditure?—A. I do not think
so. I do not think we can supply much greater coverage without capital expendi-
ture. We can do something by a little piece work here and a little piece work
there during the year, as we have been doing; but to go ahead and solve the
problem of coverage of Canada within one year’s vote and continue broadeast-
ing at the same time, is something which cannot be done.

Mr. SuacaT: Could we leave this? )

The CHAlRMAN: Mr. MacKenzie (Neepawa) wants to ask a question.

Mr. MacKenzie (Neepawa): Might I ask, Mr. Chairman, if the complaints
that come to the Department of Marine do not get to the commission?

Hon. Mr. Howr: Yes, I think they all get to the commission; but you will
have some idea of the general nature of these complaints when we get our
correspondence on this point in shape so that we can file it with you.

Mr. Massey: May I suggest that in addition to these there ought to be
placed with the committee comments that are lauditory.

The CrmamrMan: I think Mr. Massey, that the committee really is not
authorized by the reference here to investigate all phases of the report. I think
our special reference is to investigate conditions and try to improve the system.

Mr. Epwarps: How can we arrive at that point unless we follow the plan
suggested by Mr. Massey? If you are going to have only critical comments
filed, and if we do not have commendations as well, we will have no balance to
our finding,. ;

Mr. Massey: You see, Mr. Chairman, the situation is this: I speak of
experience of over a million radio letters in the last few years. You see, public
opinion, called such, is not public opinion by any manner of means, it is indi-
vidual opinion. It may be inspired by the man himself and the experience he
has with his own radio set. If you receive a complaint that the reception in a
certain area is not entirely what it should be, that there is interference from
such and such a station, you may actually find that the station eomplained of
may be as much as ten points away, and that this trouble is on the man’s own set.
No radio set owned in a home is ever at fault. It is always the station broad-
easting. I receive scores of complaints that whereas we used to be able to hear
your program—or whatever it may be—we can no longer hear your program.
I followed up a few of these complaints as a matter of curiosity. Probably the
set is five years old, with the same tubes; the tubes are worn out. You can get
into all corts of difficulties by following up individual complaints; and, as the
chairman well knows, a radio letter as such does not constitute public opinion.
And then, if you are going to consider 20 letters you have to bear in mind that
you really have hundreds of thousands of listeners and out of all of them you
have but 20 letters. What sort of a percentage is that? It is so small as not
to deserve consideration. On the other hand, if you receive a great many favour-
able comments saying that your programs are received in a particular district

and received well, why then you feel your program is received well. Why, that

makes all the difference; because perhaps it is a local condition. Those of us
who have radios in our cars know something about this. They know that as
[Mr. Hector Charlesworth.]
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is going along the highway one gets perfect reception in a certain area,
nd then for a certain distance there will be no reception at all. A program
~ which is coming in well may disappear entirely, and that is due to purely local
- conditions. I know of a case in my city where there are people who say they
ave never heard WEAF at all while people living five or six doors away say,
why we hear it every night. Much of this difficulty is due to certain peculiar
local conditions. I think it would be very dangerous for us to consider complaints
by individuals. I am sure, as the minister in his comments has suggested, there
~ may be a general picture which I think should be set out, and justly so. There
- are certain broad complaints that do have a definite bearing. On the other
~ hand, I think it is only fair to the present commissioners and the present com-
- mission to consider as against that those comments which are in their favour.
~ We are not here merely to destroy, we are not here saying that this commission
. is entirely at fault; I think we are here really to find out how Canadian broad-
- casting can be improved. Therefore, it is just as important for us to know what
is right with the commission as it is for us to know what is wrong with the com-
mission, if anything. I earnestly urge that if any memorandum on the subject
is to be presented to the committee it should be one giving both sides of the
~ question.
The CaamrMAN: You are referring to programs, of course.
. Mr. Massey: I am referring to the whole set up.
i Hon. Mr. Howe: I think a distinction should be drawn between trivial
complaints and important complaints.
Some Hon. MemBErs: Hear, hear. :
K Hon. Mr. Howr: There are very important complaints made; for instance,
we are to have the Canadian Press here next week. They have a very definite
complaint, that more time should be given for the dissemination of Canadian
news. Then, the telephone companies have a complaint. There are various .
complaints of that kind. There are certain organized bodies of opinion which
have complaints, and I think that is the sort of complaint we would like to have
before us. That is the sort of complaint that Mr. Charlesworth would pay
attention to in reporting here, and that is what I think our department can do;
we can summarize the complaints of the organized bodies of opinion that are
entitled to be heard.
Some Hon. MemBErs: Hear, hear.
Hon. Mr. Howr: I think when we have that it will give us some material
to work on.
Mr. SuagaTr: Let me add, if it meets the approval of the committee, Mr.
;Massey points out quite fairly, as against these complaints we have had much
in addition to what is complained of in a general way.
. Mr. Massey: What the minister has just said is what I have in mind.
E The Cmammax: Is it understood then, Mr. Slaght, that the complaints
. which come from organized bodies, together with favourable comments, should
. be placed before us?
: Mr. SvacaT: That is it, yes.

By Mr. Hanson:

: Q. T would like to ask Mr. Charlesworth a question as to what is being
¢ done to improve the situation in Vancouver. There has been nothing new there
. smce 1934, and I wonder if that condition is to go on indefinitely?—A. We have

already given consideration to that matter. We are providing a new transmitter
. for Vancouver. We have prepared plans and specifications, we have an option

Y

on a site, and we are ready to go ahead at once, as soon as supply is voted te
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us, to give Vancouver a first class station. Everything is ready just as soon

as we get our money.
Q. You have taken care of the situation there?—A. Yes. It will be a very

fine station, as far as I can judge, both from the standpoint of technique and

also the working out of the whole proposition.

By Mr. Ryan:

Q. I would like to ask a question as to whether or not you have any com-

plaints with respect to the employment of talent; that is to say, there are com-
plaints that certain sections of Canada are being discriminated against with
respect to the employment of talent?—A. We do get complaints that somebody
was not used on the air. We have a great many complaints of that kind. You

see, before an entertainer goes on the air he is given an audition, and it often
happens that the audition did not turn out quite as well as perhaps that

ambitious person expected. So, we get complaints denouncing us from musical
people. If they are not used they think there is a conspiracy against them. We
get a lot of that sort of thing.

The Cramrman: May I offer a suggestion to the committee? Probably
these questions should be asked Mr. Charlesworth at our next sitting. That is,
that he might place before this committee documents which will supply the
information we want. .

Mr. SuacuaT: Mr. Chairman, might I have the privilege of indicating to
Mr. Charlesworth some of the documents that I think would give us useful
information?

Wirness: I was going to ask you what it was you wanted. May I see that
paper you have?

Mr. SvagaT: Mr. Campbell is making a memorandum of those that you
have already been good enough to favour us with,

By Mr. Slaght:

Q. Is there not a contract between your Commission and what you call the
line wire companies?—A. Yes.

Q. A contract involving all three, or a separate contract?—A. Our contract
is with the two railways.

Q. Would you be kind enough at the next sitting to make a copy of that
available to the committee? 1 am now referring to your contract with the
C.N.R. and the C.P.R., a contract which involves a lot of money, I take it?—
A. Yes.

Q. For the use of the line. Have you a contract with the Bell Telephone
Company?—A. No. Any use of the Bell Telephone is made through the—

Q. Through the others?—A. Through the two railway companies.

Q. Do you not pay the Bell Telephone Company for work at all?>—A. I
do not think so, no.

Q. Will you look into that and see if you have a contract or an agreement
or anything that sets out the basis on which you use the Bell Telephone line?—
A. Yes. We use the Bell Telephone—the railway companies undertake to
supply us with a certain coverage, and they pass along to the telephone com-
panies—

Q. There is another point I should like information on. I think you
should make a note of this, as I am speaking quite rapidly. I should like
information on the agreement with the two railway companies and anything in
writing pertaining to the arrangement with the Bell Telephone Company.—
A. Yes.

[Mr. Hector Charlesworth,]
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Q. Do you do any dead-head, or have you done any dead-head business.
That is, do you permit the use of the Commission’s facilities by any individuals
or organizations without charge?—A. If it is of a national philanthropy aspect.

Q. Would you furnish us with a list covering the past three years of any
institutions who have used the Commission’s time, dead-head, as I put it. 'I_‘he’n
there are religious organizations, as we know, that have used the Commission’s
time for church broadcasts—A. They pay.

Q. Would you give us a memorandum of those, a short summary, and the
basis on which they pay for the use of the Commission’s facilities?—A. I can
tell you the basis now. They get a discount of 33 per cent on the regular Com-
mission programs. : :

Q. I should like you, if you could possibly do so, to give us a list of the
dead-head services on one schedule, and what you call religious or philanthropie
or services that receive special rate on another schedule. I understand that there
has been some change—A. I do not think we have any dead-head services,
except some very special appeal or some noted preacher.

Q. You have no dead-head services now. If you had them in the past
and have remedied it, when was the change made?—A. We have never gone
on the principle of dead-heads. There are church services. For some reason
or other there are many, many religious services, and if you allow one, you
would have to allow all of them, and there is not enough time or room on the
air in any station, for them all.

Q. I think you told me you had some dead-head?—A. We might have a
special appeal. For instance, take that great air pageant, the tenth anniversary
of the founding of the United Church of Canada. We broadcast that throughout
Canada. It was of great interest to the adherents of the United Church. That
was dead-head.

Q. Let us have a summary of them. T am hurrying along. Have you a
special price schedule for broadcasts over the air from different stations, set
out like a merchant would set it out, at so much per hour, so much per half hour,
so much per quarter hour; and if you vary that, having regard to the purpose
the customer is using it for, I should like to see it. I should like the Commis-
sion’s rate of charges of these three schedules and also any variation of the
schedules.—A. They are available in printed form.

Q. Will you see that we have them before us at the next meeting?—A. Yes;
I think there are copies.

Q. I think it is one o’clock—

Mr. WoobpsworrH: May I add one further request, in view of No. 3 in
the terms of reference. I think we should have a copy of your regulations with
regard to the time available for political broadcasting, and the cost of such
broadcasting.

Mr. SuacaT: That is an excellent addition.

Wirness: We did not make any regulations. Political broadcasting as a

whole is covered by amended regulation 90, and that just came under the ordinary
commercial programs.

By Mr. Woodsworth:

Q. It might come under a commercial basis, but we have had complaints
. in regard to political broadcasting, and these complaints were suggested before
this commission was set up. I am now referring to such programs as that of
Mr. Sage. There is no regulation to cover programs of that kind?—A. No,
except the general regulations against defamation.

Q. No special regulation dealing directly wth political broadcasts?—A. No
regulation specifically mentioning political broadcasts.

Q. But in a series of broadcasts you must have people who are ultimately
responsible?—A. Oh, yes.
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Q. That is what I mean. Oh, yes.

The CramrMAN: Gentlemen it is one o’clock. Before you go I should like for
you to decide whether we shall hear the Canadian Press on Tuesday, the 7th
of April, or not. .

' Mr. CameseLL: Leave it to the sub-committee to decide. It may be im-
possible for some of these people to come at the time you would wish them to
come. I think that should be put in the hands of the sub-committee.

Mr. McIntosu: Is Mr. Carnegie here? Perhaps he could enlighten us.

The CramrMAN: They have requested to be heard on the 7th of April.

Mr. McInTtosa: They will likely be ready, then.

Mr. WoopswortH : I suggest that is a matter for the sub-committee. May I
suggest, in view of the fact we are bound to discuss the matter of political
broadcasts, that we get full information from Mr. Charlesworth in regard
thereto,—we will have to get it sooner or later.

Wirness: About Mr. Sage?

Mr. WoopsworTH: And all such matters.

Wrirness: T have a file.

By Mr. Howard.:

Q. Give us those who ordered the broadeasts, and what was paid?—A. That
was filed in an order to the House, if I mistake not. :

Q. Only the commercials?—A. Only the commercials?

Q. Only the amounts that were unpaid?—A. There was also in that order
a lengthy statement as to commissions that were paid. However, that is not
a difficult matter. ;

Q. I understand that Mr. Woodsworth’s request is added to this, and Mr.
Charlesworth has assented.

By Mr. Slaght:

Q. Could you make that in some definite concrete form?—A. Yes. You
want particulars as to the amount of money—

Mr. Howarp: What we would like to have, if we are going to discuss this
intelligibly, is the number of political broadecasts, the time, what was paid for
same, and over what stations they were handled.

Mr. WoobpsworTH: And any regulations. Some are said to be absolutely
anonymous.

Mr. McIntosH: That should include the treatment meted out by the Com-
mission to each political party in Canada.

Mr. BertraND: And whether there were refusals or not.

Mr. Dupuis: May we ask that this report be distributed before the next
meeting?

Mr. Epwarps: Mr. Chairman, this is'not a very suitable room for a com-
mittee of this size. I suggest that we endeavour to arrange for, perhaps, a
senate committee room. A

The CuammaN: We will do that. Before we adjourn, Mr. Plaunt of the
Canadian Radio League desires to make a statement.

Mr. Praunt: I would like to request that the Canadian Radio League be
allowed to appear before this committee and make submissions.

The CuarrMAN: Would your submissions be in the form of a memorandum
or a brief? 7

Mr. PraunT: In memorandum form on which questions might later be asked.

Mr. McInTosu: Would those submissions be national in their scope?

[Mr. Hector Charlesworth ]
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‘Mr. PraunT: Yes, sir. _
- Mr. Ryan: Who are the Canadian Radio League?

Mr. Praunt: They are responsible for the main body of opinion in favour
of public ownership at the 1932 committee; they also made representations
before the 1934 committee. It is an association of organizations primarily, and
it is supported by a very considerable body of opinion .

Mr. Dupuis: Where is the head office?

Mr. Praunt: In Toronto. I would like to leave the date of our appearance
indefinite for the present—until after Easter, say.

Wirness: Now just what information is wanted of me?

Mr. CameBeLL: I will read this to you:—

The communication to the government after the report of 1934 in which you
spoke about your commission becoming a corporation and so forth.

We want that communication.

Second: The regulations of the commission regarding broadcasting—one
copy for our files here, and one copy for each member of the committee.

Third: The recommendation of the commission regarding the recommenda-
tion in No. 4, 1934 report, in connection with electrical transeriptions.

Fourth: Summary of complaints and commendations.

Fifth: Contracts between the railways and the commission regarding line
hire.

Sixth: The schedule of deadhead charges and special rates.

Seventh: The 'schedule re¢ time charges.

And then there is Mr. Woodsworth’s political matter.

Mr. SraguT: That does not include two or three that you have down your-
self, Mr. Charlesworth.

Wrirness: We have a very small staff. I do not think it will be possible
to give all this matter with twenty-three copies—I do not know how we are
going to do that by Thursday.

~ Mr. SvagHT: Bring us those contracts.

The CrAlRMAN: May I ask if it is the wish of the committee to have Mr.
Charlesworth here on Thursday?

Mr. SuagHT: Yes, with as many reports as he is able to bring.

Mr. MclInTosH: I think we should have Mr. Charlesworth here next Thurs-
day. ;
Mr. Massey: May I interject a personal note. I think we should express
our appreciation to Mr. Charlesworth for his presence here; he has been ill, and
his presence here this morning has been a great personal inconvenince to himself.

The CrarMAN: Yes. In fact, I was going to excuse Mr. Charlesworth this
morning, if he had not come, because I knew he was not feeling very well.

The committee adjourned to meet Thursday, April 2, 1936, at 11 a.m.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

Housk or Commons, Room 375,
THURSDAY, April 2, 1936.

The Special Committee on the Canadian Radio Commission, met at 11.00

. a.m. this day, Mr. Beaubien, the Chairman, presiding.

i Mem_bers of the Committee present:—

Messieurs: Beaubien, Bertrand (Laurter), Bouchard, Cahan, Campbell,
Cardin, Cochrane, Dupuis, Edwards, Grant, Hanson, Howard, Howe, Johnston
(Bow River), MacKenzie (Neepawa), Mackenzie (Vancouver Centre), McIntosh,
Martin, Massey, Plunkett, Ryan, Slaght, Woodsworth—23.

In Attendance: Mr. Charlesworth, Chairman, Lt.-Col. Steel, Commissioner,
and several other officials of the Canadian Radio Commission.

Present: Radio officials of the Department of Marine, and others concerned
in radio matters.

- Mr. Charlesworth -recalled. Before further examination, the witness, in
compliance with requests of the Committee, at its previous meeting, submitted
the following:—

1. Communication after report of 1934 re Commission becoming a
corporation. (Ex. 3).

2. Copies of Instructions issued by the Commission to Station Man-
agers (5 copies submitted; 20 additional copies to be prepared and sub-
mitted after the Easter holidays.) (Ex. 4).

3. Copies of Instructions re use of Records and Electrical Transerip-
tions (5 copies submitted; 20 additional copies to be prepared and sub-
mitted after the Easter holidays.) (Ex. 5).

4, 30 copies of summary of complaints and commendations.

(Files mentioned in summary are filed with clerk of the Committee,
and available for perusal to members of the Committee. This will obviate
the necessity of doing a tremendous amount of clerical work). (Ex. 6).

5. 2 copies of contract between the Commission and Wire Line Com-
panies (Recommended to be submitted to Committee in camera, and not
made available to press). (Ex. 7).

Schedules of what is termed “ dead head ” charges and special charges; time
charges, and political broadcasts, are being prepared and will be submitted at a
later date.

The Committee proceeded to further examine the witness; numerous
questions were asked by different members of the Committee and answered.

Mr. Slaght resumed his examination of the witness at the point where it
was left at the previous meeting. Witness continued to give evidence and
answer questions of the Committee until 1 o’clock.

The witness promised to produce a so-called minority report, which had
been prepared by a former commissioner, and to which the witness and Commis-
sioner Steel took strong objection, providing it could be found in the Commission’s
files. ~

16116—13
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Lt.-Col. Landry, Secretary of the Commission, for the witness, read an
extract from the Minutes of the 64th meeting of the Commission, dated May
1st, 1934 (incorporated in to-day’s evidence).

Files showing correspondence between Commission and the Comptroller of
the Treasury, to be produced for the Committee at its next sitting. °

Circular letters of instructions to stations to be produced.

_ Political broadcasts to which the Commission received objections, to be
supplied to the Committee at its next meeting.

Discussion arose in conneetion with making public, salaries of employees
of the Commission throughout Canada. The Committee finally decided that
there was no particular reason why such information could not be made publie,
as it would be available to the public in other ways.

After discussion Mr. Dupuis moved, seconded by Mr. Melntosh:—

That the list provided by the Commission, showing names of
employees and salaries, be placed in the record.

Motion adopted.
(See Appendix No. 1).

The Chairman asked to have the decision of the Committee with respect to
receiving the representations of the Canadian Press on Tuesday, April 7, as
spoken of at the last meeting.

It was agreed to hear the Canadian Press on Tuesday next; also that Mr.
Charlesworth should be present at the meeting for further questioning.

The Committee adjourned to Tuesday, April 7, at 11.00 o’clock, Room 375.

E. L. MORRIS,
Clerk of the Committee.




MINUTES OF EVIDENCE

House or Commoxs, Room 375,

Orrawa, April 2, 1936.

The special committee appointed to enquire into the administration of the
Canadian Radio Broadcasting Act of 1932 and amendments, met at 11 a.m.,,
the chairman, Mr. A. L. Beaubien, presiding.

The CuamrMaN: Now that we have a quorum, if you will kindly come to
order, we shall proceed. At our last meeting the committee asked Mr. Charles-
worth, chairman of the Commission, to produce certain documents. Mr. Charles-
worth informs me that there is a good deal of work attached to some of them,
and they have not been able to produce them all. He has supplied me with a
1istf01f1 those that he does produce, and I shall read that list to you. The list is
as follows:—

LIST OF DOCUMENTS SUBMITTED TO SPECIAL COMMITTEE
ON RADIO BROADCASTING ON APRIL 2, 1936

1. Communication after report of 1934 re Commission becoming
corporation.

Extract from the Minutes of the 64th meeting of the Commission
held on May 1, 1934. (Note.) This memorandum was submitted in
camera on behalf of Mr. Charlesworth and Colonel Steel personally, to the
special committee on the operations of the Commission in 1934.

2. Five (5) copies of instructions to stations re regulations, programs,
time, etc., are submitted. (Note.) Twenty (20) additional copies will
be prepared and submitted after the Easter recess.

3. Instructions and recommendations re No. 4 of 1934 Report. (Elec-
trical Transcriptions.) (Note) Five (5) copies submitted; twenty (20)
additional copies will be prepared and submitted after the Easter recess.
(See article 97 of Rules and Regulations.)

4. Thirty (30) copies of summary of complaints and commendations
are submitted. (Note.) All files mentioned in summary are available
to committee. It is suggested an offer be made to the Chairman of the
Committee to retain these and have the sub-commitee peruse them; this
will save a tremendous amount of unnecessary clerical work.

5. Two (2) copies of contract between the Commission and the wire
line companies are submited. (Note.) This contract should be sub-
mitted to the committee in camera and should not be made available to
the press.

6. A schedule re deadhead charges and special charges is being pre-
pared and will be submitted at a later date.

7. A schedule re time charges is being prepared and will be submitted
at a later date.

8. A schedule re political broadecasts is being prepared and will he
submitted at a later date.
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morning, Mr. Charlesworth?—A. Yes, but not as many copies as you desire.
We have not the clerical assistance.

copies of contracts between the Commission and the wire line companies which 1‘
are submitted. This contract should be submitted to the committee in camera, |

SPECIAL COMMITTEE
Mr. Hecror CHARLESWORTH, recalled.

By the Chairman:
Q. Out of the seven headings I have read, five are being produced this

By Mr. McIntosh:
Q. How many of these did you say were confidential?>—A. Number 5, the

and should not be made available to the press. ‘

Q. All the others will be available for publication?—A. Yes. : \
The CHAIRMAN: Yes. \
Mr. WoobpswortH: May I ask the reason why the others will not be avail- J

able?

committee as to whether they should be made public or not.

The CuairmaN: They are available, but it is left to the discretion of the

Mr. WoopswortH: I was going to ask the reason why the chairman of the

Commission asks or suggests that they should not be made publie. ‘,

The CHAIRMAN: I think the Minister of Marine can make a statement in

regard to that.

Hon. Mr. Howe: I might say that the communication business is highly

competitive. The railroad companies who have this contract have asked that ‘
it be not made public, and have given their reasons, which I think are good
reasons. 1, as minister in charge of the department, would prefer that they be
not published in the press. There is no objection, of course, to every member
of the committe going through it in detail. It is commercial business, and 1
think it should be treated as confidential. {

an intelligent discussion upon this business, which you say is competitive, I

Mr. WoopsworTH: My only reason in asking is, if you are going to have

do not know how we ean very well discuss it without making some reference
later on to the terms of the contract.

Hon. Mr. Howe: I do not want to muzzle discussion; but it seems to

me, if it is absolutely necessary to know the terms of the contract, in discussing
it we should avoid giving the figures to the press. That is the only objection-
able feature of it.

think the whole question of wire charges is bound to come up from time to
time, in the committee, and we think before this is discussed the other parties 1

WirNess: If T might be permitted to make a suggestion, Mr. Minister, I

to the contract should be represented here, and perhaps if it were advisable, ;
the committee might fix one session for the discussion of the whole business
of wire charges. It is a very important one, and I think everybody should |
be here. We could have our own technical men here, and the other parties
to the contract could have their men here, and any other wire interests who,

|
\
I believe, have made representations to the committee; at least, I understood

they were to make representations. I think there is sufficient business along

that line to take up one session of the committee, and they ought to be heard
in public or in any form you choose to adopt.

to make a statement that would be suitable for the press?

Mr. McIntosa: Would it not be wise, after we discuss the wire contraets, .

The CHAIRMAN: I think we can decide that when we come to it. It will ]

be discussed broadly, you know. +

[Mr. Hector Charlesworth,] # :
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Mr. McIntosH: That is the principle they follow in conferences. In
conferences when certain questions come up that should not be made public, a
statement is prepared for publication.

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, at the last meeting we decided we would ask
Mr. Charlesworth to obtain certain information for us. Mr. Slaght, I under-
stand, had not finished his questions when we adjourned last day, and if it is
the wish of the committee I think we shall let Mr. Slaght continue.

Mr. SuagHT: There are a few more general matters which I think should
be brought out. Mr. Chairman, would it be the wish of the committee that
we run over the documents that were asked for and which are produced, so
that the committee may know what they contain? I think that would be a good
way to start this morning.

The CualrMAN: I think so.

By Mr. Slaght:

Q. The first document asked for was a communication from the Commission
to the government after the report of 1934, in which the chairman spoke
about the Commission becoming a corporation. That is here this morning?
A. Tt is here. Of course, I was speaking from recollection. I did not expect
to speak. We also put that matter before the committee and sent copies to
the government. The reason it was discussed in camera was that the committee
itself suggested discussing our recommendations in that way. We have no
objection whatever to publication of this document —1I shall read it in a
moment or two. In an explanation of it, I may say that it is signed only by
myself as chairman, and Colonel Steel. The vice chairman at that time, Mr.
Thomas Maher, had an entirely different plan which he had taken to the govern-
ment. It had the complete disapproval of Colonel Steel and myself. It
involved, as I recollect it, certain propositions or suggestions that we thought,
on our part, were an invasion of the rights of government and parliament. It
detailed proposals to take away—

Q. Is that available also? A. No, it is not available unless you send for
Mr. Maher. I am giving you just a sketeh of it to show why we prepared this
memorandum on our own account, a separate memorandum. It proposed to
take away from the Marine department and put into the National Revenue
department,—which we thought might be regarded by the government as an
impertinence, — it proposed to take away from the Marine department all this
work, the introduction and expansion, and that sort of thing, to which 1 have
a.lways been particularly opposed, because I think our commission ought to
be the body to deal with it. That was the objection I had to it, and also
Colonel Steel. We were asked to give our views on it, and we held a commission
meeting. Mr. Maher refused to sign. This is the document that we drew up
and handed to the meeting of the committee, the first meeting after May 1st,
1934, when we provided this plan.

Q. That is, so to speak, the majority report of the commission? A. This
was the majority report.

Q. Mr. Maher made a mipority report which the committee might like
to have made available also. ‘A. Yes — well, it would not be regarded as a
report. of the commission at all. On dlccusemn of it, it was rejected holus
bolus by me. I looked at it and I said, “no; if you attempt to bring this to
the publie, I will shoot it full of holes.” So it did not get any farther. It
could not be regarded as a minority report. It was a suggestion he had prepared
for the committee itself.

Q. Notwithstanding that, T suggest, Mr. Chairman, that it is something for
the committee to see; as in arbltratlons sometimes very useful points are con-
tained in the report of minority arbitrators. If we are to have the mind of the
commission as it then existed, unless there is some good reason to the contrary,
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I suggest we should have produced from the files the minority recommendations
to which you refer, and which you say you would shoot full of holes, as well as
the majority recommendations.

By Mr. Edwards:
Q. Would it not be contained in the files>—A. It never went on our files.
There may be a copy of it in my own locker. I have a locker in my own room
where I lock up certain things.

By the Chairman:
Q. May I interject here—A. T have no objection to producing it.
Q. I do not think we should criticize or comment on a minority report or
suggestions, unless they are produced.

By Mr. McIntosh:
Q. I think it should be produced for members of the committee.—A. It was
prepared before the committee ever sat, as a matter of fact. We always refused
to consider it.

By the Chairman.:
Q. It is understood, Mr. Charlesworth, that you will produce it?—A. If I can

find it in my locker.

Q. It must be some place?—A. In the first place, it was taken to the
government without my knowledge before I had ever seen it. I think perhaps
now there may be one copy in my locker. I will bring it in on Tuesday, if
anybody wants to see it.

By Mr. Slaght:

Q. Have you any spare copies of the report you are going to read?—A..

I have two spare copies. We are very short-handed; we were unable to get
other assistance.

Hon. Mr. Howe: 1 authorized two this morning.

Wirness: They will be very welcome.

By Mr. Slaght:

Q. Is it a lengthy document?—A. It is around about 1,500 words.

Mr. Woopsworte: May I ask what purpose Mr. Slaght has in mind in
having this document read and discussed in detail? It seems to me that the
purpose of the committee was to get at certain recognized evils and suggest
certain remedies.

Mr. McIntosu: We want the picture just as complete as possible; that

is the reason.

Mr. WoopswortH: I think I am within my rights in asking what purpose
Mr. Slaght has in mind.

Mr. SuaguTr: I think I can answer that question. I am under the direc-
tion of the committee as to whether or not the document should be read; but
it does seem to me that when a committee which sat at great length in 1934
and brought down a very brief report, as we heard analysed yesterday, and
when the chairman of the commission makes a recommendation to the gov-
ernment dealing with the recommendations of the committee, that that would
be an excellent place to start, before wading through everything under the
sun. That was the only reason. I want to get on as fast as anybody, but I
think this is the place to have it read. I am entirely in the hands of the com-
‘mittee. I am not arbitrarily asking it to be read.

[Mr. Hector Charlesworth,]
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Some hoﬁ. MewMBERs: Let us have it read.
Mr. Bertraxp: We should know what the report is.

A Wirness: This was a document brought before the committee itself,
~ and naturally it went to the government also.

By Mr. Slaght:

Q. Before they made their report?—A Yes; it was during the sitting,
as you will see by the date, which is May 1st. There is a copy there. It is
dated May 1st. As I say, my memory—

Q. I did not understand it was that—A. I d1d not make myself clear.

Q. Was the communication made by you after the reort of the 1934 com-
‘mittee? If it was prior to the report of the committee, it may not be desir-
able to read it now.

Mr. Epwarps: That is a different story.

Wirness: After the reports of the committee were made.

The CuAmRMAN: Was it put in the record?

By Hon. Mr. MacKenzie:

Q. Is the report in the record?—A. I do not think it is; I do not know.

Mr. MarTin: We might have a summary of it now.

Wirness: There is nothing in it that should not be disclosed at all, but
the committee itself preferred to discuss it in camera.

Hon. Mr. Howg: If it is not very long, you might read it.
Wirness: I have no objection.

By Mr. Slaght:

- Q. Tt is dated May 1st, 1934. Obviously it was made before the com-
mittee made its report.—A. Yes.

Mr. BerrranDp: I prefer you read it.now.
Mr. Magrmin: Mr. Charlesworth might give us a summary of it.

Wirness: It is pretty well condensed as it is. My voice is not very good,
and perhaps Colonel Landry might read it to you.

Mr. SracaT: It is only two and a half pages.
Mr. LANDRY:

Extract from the Minutes of the 64th meeting of the Commission held on
Tuesday, May 1, 1934:—

Colonel Steel read the following memorandum which was approved
by the Chairman and himself: at this point Mr. Maher stated that the
memorandum should not be submitted as coming from the Commission
but should be signed by both the Chairman and Colonel Steel. This
was agreed to.

During the past year the Canadian Radio Broadcasting Comission
has had an excellent oportunity to put to a practical test the broadcast
legislation passed by the House of Commons in 1932 and later amended
in 1933. —

I would like to call your attention to the fact that as the law stands
at present the Broadcasting Commission is called upon to perform a
dual function: (@) controlling and regulating radio broadcasting in Can-
ada; (b) production and distribution of programs throughout Canada.

This means that the Commission is actively in the field in competi-
tion with private commercial stations in so far as the use of stations and
time is concerned. The Commission is also in competition with private
commercial stations to a very moderate extent, in connection with com-
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mercial programs over its own stations. The Commission has discovered
that the legislation as it exists is not sufficiently flexible to meet the

requirements of commercial work, but instead is only designed to cover.

the operations of a normal government department. fert 58 ;
We are of the opinion that the system should be continued, and for
this reason we would propose certain fundamental changes in the legis-
lation as it exists at presenyThese changes are enumerated and explained
in the following paragrapHs:—
1. Section 4 of the Act should be repealed and the following substi-
tuted therefor:

4. The Commission may appoint such technical, professional and
other officers, clerks and employees as the Commission may see fit,
all such persons shall receive such salaries or remuneration as may
be fixed by the Commission.

The Canadian Radio Broadcasting Commission is an independent
body appointed by parliament, not only to control and regulate all
broadcasting in Canada but also to produce and distribute national
programs. It is essential that the Commission should have very wide
powers with regard to the selection of suitable employees for this work.
The Civil Service Commission has not in the past been called upon to
employ personnel for such purposes and they are, therefore, not con-
versant with our requirements, further, it is not considered that the
Civil Service Act is a suitable vehicle through which the Commission
should obtain its employees, either technical or clerical.

2. Section 9 of the Act should be amended by striking out the words “ sub-
ject to the approval of the Governor General in Council ” where they occur in
paragraphs (b) and (c) thereof.

It is generally admitted that the work of the Commission should be as free
as possible from political and governmental influence. Parliament and Privy
Council have a very complete control over the operations of the Commission
through the voting of money from year to year for the operations of the Commis-
sion. It very frequently happens that action must be taken at short notice in
order to lease or purchase a station to give satisfactory coverage in some part
of the country. If it is necessary to submit each and every one of these cases
to Privy Council for decision; it will mean that such action will be delayed
many months and the Commission placed in a most inadvantageous position
with respect to private broadcasting stations in the country.

The Radio Commission should be free to take such steps as they may deem
necessary within the limits of the money provided yearly by parliament.

3. Section 14, as amended in 1933, should be retained with the exception of
subsection 3, which should be repealed and the following substituted therefor:
3. The Minister of Finance shall from time to time pay into a char-
tered bank to the credit of the Commission moneys appropriated by
parliament for the purposes of the Commission.

In view of the changes proposed in sections 15, 16 and 17, it would not be
necessary for the Commission to submit annually an estimate of the expendi-
tures which it proposed to make during the fiscal year.

4. Section 15 of the Act should be repealed and the following substituted
therefor:—

15. The Commission, notwithstanding anything contained in the
Consolidated Revenue and Audit Act or any other statute or law, shall
provide by regulation for (a) the audit and inspection of accounts, in-
cluding receipts, expenditures, and assets and liabilities of the Commis-
sion;

[Mr. Hector Charlesworth,]
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~ (b) the issue and signing of cheques and other instruments by or
- on behalf of the Commission. :

If the Commission is to be given control of its own finances, it should be
free to make ordinary business arrangements to handle such moneys as may
be received by it under the Act.

5. Section 16 of the Act should be repealed and the following substituted
therefor:—

16. An audit of the books of the Commission shall be made in
accordance with regulations made under the provision of section 15 of
this Act, by a firm of chartered accountants appointed for that purpose
by the Governor General in Couneil.

This would give parliament and privy council the same effective control
over the expenditures of the Commission that they have at the present time,
but it would make it unnecessary for the intimate details of the business of the
Commission to be debated on the floor of the House. It is obviously unwise for
matters pertaining to payments made in connection with the production of
~programs to be open to general debate in parliament.

6. Section 17 of the Act should be repealed.
Sections 15 and 16 as amended above will provide for the necessary audit
of the Commission’s financial operations.

7. Section 18 of the Act should be repealed and the following substituted
therefor:—
3 18. The Commission shall on or before the 1st March in every year
prepare an annual general report of operations for the preceding year
and attach thereto a duly certified statement of receipts and expenditures
and assets and liabilities prepared by the chartered accountants duly
appointed by the Governor in Council under this Act. Such report and
certified statement shall be submitted to the Minister and shall by him
be laid before parliament. ;

It is considered that section 18 should be eliminated and replaced by the section

proposed, which is similar to that contained in the charter of the British Broad-

casting Corporation. The arrangement under which the yearly report of the

B.B.C. is submitted to parliament is similar in all respects to the arrangements

made for the yearly report of the Canadian Farm Loan Board.

e Sltgazyage 1694, R.S. of Canada 1927, section 14 of the Canadian Farm Loan
ct, 4

By Mr. Campbell:

Q. Before we discuss that, I think we should clear up something regarding
what was asked the other day. On page 9 of the evidence you will find a ques-
tion by Mr. Slaght:—

Q. You did not discuss with the government or pass on any recom-
mendation to either adopt or reject that finding of the committee?—
A. We did make a recommendation that, as a first step, we should be
given the powers of a corporation.

Q. That would be in writing, would it?—A. Well, they speak of us
in the Act as a corporation and say we can be sued.

Q. You said you did make a recommendation?—A. Yes.

And so on. And then down further Mr. Slaght asked:
~ Q. You have told me you made this recommendation; does it touch

this point of the general manager?—A. No, it does not touch that.

Q. We had better have it anyway. That was a recommendation as
a result of this report?—A. Yes.
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A. T did not get that. ' ¥

Q. Mr. Slaght asked you to produce this recommendation. The impression
was left with the committee that it was a recommendation as a result of the
report of the 1934 committee. Apparently it is not.—A. No, it was not as a
result of that. The reference there was to the fact that when the report of the

committee was issued to the press, we were asked for a statement and we said we

had made a recommendation in favour of giving us the powers of a corporation.
I have the copies which I have dug out from our publicity department, of the
regulation to which that is an allusion.

By Mr. Slaght:

Q. Was there a recommendation made the committee reported?—A. No.
We made no recommendation at all.

Mg. CampBeLL:  Then this is an erroneous impression.

Wirness: The committee reported and the house adjourned and the
vacation started in July. I brought 25 copies of this. This was the statement
we handed out when the parliamentary committee’s report or recommendations
were published.

By Mr. Slaght:

Q. What is the date of that?—A. It is June 28. That was in the press
and copies sent to the prime minister.

MR. SraguT: Perhaps that could be marked and left here in the meantime.
TuaE CHAIRMAN: Yes. Shall we go back? :

By Mr. McIntosh:

Q. That is after the 1934 report?—A. Yes, on the same day. Naturally
the newspapers came after us.

By Mr. Campbell:

Q. Just to clear this up, you made no report to the government after the
report of the 1934 committee?—A. No.
Q. This document which Col. Landry just read is the one you refer to?—
A. No. I was referring to the public statement that I gave on the subject.
Q. We have that now?—A. Yes, you can have that now.
MRgr. SvacaT: You can have that whenever you want it.
Tae Cuamrman: We will put it in the record.
The document referred to is as follows:—
~~ The following statement was issued by the Canadian Radio Broad-
casting Commission this afternoon:

During the past few months there has been a good deal of dis-
cussion in the press and generally throughout the country with regard
to the position of the Broadeasting Commission on the question of
control and operation of radio in Canada. Very soon after coming
into office the Commission found out that its position was a very diffi-
cult one in view of the fact that it was called upon to administer
the regulations and at the same time to be in the business of producing
and distributing radio programs throughout the country. In view
of this experience the Radio Broadeasting Commission has found it
advisable this year to recommend that regulation and operation
should be separated; that the Radio Commission should be left in
charge of the regulation of broadecasting but that a corporation

[Mr. Hector Charlesworth,]
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should be formed owned by the Commission to be responsible for the

preparation and distribution of programs throughout the country.”
The Canadian Press. -~
HC/WAS/ILK.

28-6-34

Mg. SuacaT: If the committee pleases, there are two or three matters that
I think could readily be dealt with in the document just produced and which is
dated May 1, 1934, containing the recommendations of Col. Steel and Mr.
Charlesworth.

By Mr. Slaght:

Q. In section 1 of this document you recommend that section 4 of the Act
should be repealed and a substitution made allowing the commission to appoint
technical, professional and other officers, clerks and employees. What was done
as a result of that?—A. Nothing., ‘

Q. At the end of page 1, the commission recommended that it should not
only control and regulate all broadcasting, and so on, but it is not considered
that the Civil Service Act is a suitable vehicle through which the commission
should obtain its employees, either technical or clerical.” What was the result
of that?>—A. There was nothing done, as far as the commission was concerned,
in connection with it.

Q. So it is left as it is?—A. Yes. If I might make a suggestion, that is not
an official report. If you will notice at the top of that, Mr. Maher objected to
our putting that in as a decision of the commission.

Q. I think you made that quite clear, Sir—A. Yes.

Q. Then at the middle of page 2 it reads: “In view of the changes pro-
posed in sections 15, 16 and 17, it would not be necessary for the commission to
submit annually an estimate of the expenditures which it is proposed to make
during the fiscal year.” Did they adopt that suggestion to relieve you of the
necessity of estimates?—A. No. There was a reason for that suggestion, I may
say: At that time, just when we were starting, it was very difficult for us to make
estimates as to the actual cost of set-ups in various parts of the country. We
were extending our national network. Now we have the matter more systema-
tized, and it is much easier to make estimates than it was at that time.

Q. Then, to this committee today you would not reiterate that proposal, as
I understand it?—A. No. ;

Q. Then under heading 4 you recommend the repeal of section 15 and the
substitution of another section. Looking at clause (b) of the substituted section,
you recommend the issue and signing of cheques and other instruments by the
commission. Was that adopted?—A. No.

Q. That might be a convenient place to start from. What do you say
today as to that? Are you still recommending that?—A. It would be of great
convenience to us if we had in our institution an officer or comptroller of accounts
or something of that sort to keep a check on expenditures and issue cheques,
countersigned by a commissioner, if necessary. That matter of controlling our
accounts, keeping control of just how our money is going out, is rather a difficult
one under the present system whereby it goes to the comptroller of the treasury,
and various things go through and various things turn up.

Q. That brings me to an item I had on my list. Perhaps you will make clear

to the committee, as briefly as you can, just what the present system is, what
- your power to obligate the commission for expenditures is, and then to whom
you have to come to issue cheques. Let us have a bird’s eye view of the method
that is in force, as a business method, for running the thing—A. In connection
with programs, annually we allot so much money for programs.

Q. When you say you allot, do you include that in an estimate that you
furnish to someone in advance?—A. We fix a budget of our own.
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Q. Who does your budget go to?—A. Our budget goes to the Minister and
to the Comptroller of the Treasury. I think this year it went to the Minister of '
Finance as well. S

Q. Does it come back O.K.d or disapproved?—A. Well, they have the
power to O.K. or disapprove.

Q. On what authority? Where does that come from? Is it in the Act or by
regulation or how?—A. Well, council can cut it. One year we had a lump sum
of $250,000 cut on us without asking us for any explanation as to how we were
to get along without that $250,000, and what department of our administration
we were to take it off.

Q. Then let us get this clear. You budget, and submit a budget to whom?—
A. We budget in advance and we submit the budget to the Minister. This year
it went to the minister as early as January 15, if I remember right.

Q. Then it comes back from the minister with written approval or altera-
tions, does it?—A. If he is disposed to do so; not necessarily.

Q. I mean, there is power in the minister to do that?—A. Yes, the minister
has the power.

Hon. Mr. Caman: I think the honourable gentleman is just on the wrong
track. What he means when he says he submitted a budget is that that was the
basis of an estimate to be proposed by his minister and to be submitted by the
Minister of Finance to council with the other estimates, and council cuts down
these estimates very frequently.

By Mr. Slaght:

Q. Is that what you mean, Mr. Charleswoth?—A. Yes, that is the system.
Mr. SuacHT: Then we are clear on that. Thank you, Mr. Cahan.

By Mr. Slaght:

Q. When you begin to operate and take on obligations, how do cheques get
issued to pay for what you need?—A. We pass the accounts through our small
accountancy department and they go to the Comptroller of the Treasury, for
representative of the Comptroller of the Treasury in the National Research
Building, who has not merely charge of our accounts but of Tariff Board
accounts, I assume, and National Research accounts—everybody that is in that
building. He signs the cheques.

Q. He signs the cheques?—A. Yes.

Q. He has power, I take it, to refuse to sign cheques on your recommend-
ation?—A. I do not think he has power to refuse. He has power to hold up a
cheque until he has consulted with myself or with the Comptroller of the

Treasury or both.
Q. Suppose he consults and disapproves; what happens?

Hon. Mr. Cauan: It is only a matter of expenditure, the same as any
other department.

Mr. SuacHT: I just wondered. I think perhaps I should retire and let
Mr. Cahan conduct this.

Hon. Mr. CauaN: I beg your pardon?

Mr. SracHT: I say I can retire and let you conduct this.

Hon. Mr. Cagan: Oh, no. But these expenditure are handled just the
same as any other department.

Mr. StacHT: You may understand it, but I am not sure that all the com-
mittee do understand, and I thought it was essential for us to know that.

Hon. Mr. Canman: I suggest that Mr. Charlesworth is not the witness to
explain it.

[Mr. Hector Charlesworth ]
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Hon. Mr Hown Perhaps I could explam it.
- Mr. SuagaT: Then that would be an unhappy situation, if the chief com-
~ missioner did not understand where he had to come for money I cannot think
~ that that is the case.

Hon. Mr. CAHAN As to expenditures and how the cheques are issued, and
as to what verification is taken with respect to the accounts before cheques are
issued, is a matter that I think he has no special knowledge of. The Comptroller
of the Treasury would know that. It applies to every department.

Mr. SuacuT: What I was asking, sir, was as to what happens if the Comp-
troller of the Treasury disapproves of a payment recommended by him. I think
he can answer that, surely. He must have had it happen.

A Wirness: We have had no experience of that, except perhaps in an item

of $10 or something of that sort, where we have unwittingly violated certain
regulatlons Ordinarily with an expenditure, when the proper explanation was
given, there has been no difficulty. I can give you the sole instance in which
a payment has been refused, if you want it.

By Mr. Slaght:

Q. All right, let us have it. It will give us an understanding of what the
power is. Will you proceed?—A. Early in the winter the president of the Cana-
dian Radio Manufacturers’ Association died suddenly, and they desired that the
commission should be represented at the funeral. None of us could go, so we
sent a wreath and paid $10 for it. In doing that we had violated certain regu-
lations of the government founded on the government of Ireland, and so we
paid it ourselves. That was the only thing.

Q. Thank you, Mr. Charlesworth. Then as I understand what you are
telling us, except for that single instance, in your career as commissioner there

- has not been a veto power exercised by the comptroller against any payment to
amount to anything?—A. Our payments have all been honest and above-board,
so there could be no exception. taken to them when they knew the facts.

Mr. ScacaT: Following Mr. Cahan’s suggestion, it might be convenient
to have the minister give us what routine the Comptroller of the Treasury
or his department goes through.

Hon. Mr. Howe: Mr. Chairman, I might say that this Radio Commission
is operated as a department of government, but it is really a department separ-
ate from the Department of Marine, or any other department. The Minister “of
Marine is the channel through which the Radio Commission communicate with
the government; when they wish to communicate with council, it goes through
the Minister of Marine. If there is a dispute with the treasury board, it is
brought to the minister for his views or the views of the Comptroller of th
Treasury. But this is really a separate department of government and operatés
just as any other department of government. As you know, every government
account cheque is issued by an official of the Comptroller of the Treasury.
The Comptroller of the Treasury checks them as regards the funds available.
As commitments are made by a department, the appropriation for the depart-
ment is restricted by that commitment. That is, as a contract is made, the
amount of the commitment there is noted against the appropriation. If the
appropriation runs out, of course the Comptroller of the Treasury stops issuing
cheques. If the account is irregular in any way according to government,
regulations, again the Comptroller of the Treasury stops issuing cheques. If the
cheque is for some purpose that he thinks requires the attention and consent of
the minister, he refers it to the minister. That, I think, is the procedure.

Mr. SuagaT: Thank you, Mr. Howe.

T
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- By Mr. Slaght: :

Q. Then, Mr. Charlesworth, if you will look at the foot of page 2, paragraph
5, I see that you recommend the repeal of section 16 and to substitute therefor
a section which, without reading it, provides that the books of the commission
should be audited by a firm of chartered accountants appointed for that purpose.
Was that adopted?—A. No.

Q. Who audits the books under the existing system?—A. The auditor general.

Q. The auditor general audits them?—A. Yes.

Q. On page 3, you have a clause at the end of the first paragraph as fol-
lows: “It is obviously unwise for matters pertaining to payments made in
connection with the production of programs to be open to general debate in
parliament.” Was that recommendation adopted, shutting parliament off from
discussing matters pertaining to payments made in connection with the pro-
duction of programs?—A. The meaning of that is this—

Q. Will you tell us first whether it was adopted or whether it was not
adopted?—A. No, no action was taken on any of these things. I should explain
what that means. In dealing with musicians and temperamental people of that
sort, there is a good deal of jealousy and rivalry as to what this fellow is getting
and what that fellow is getting out of it.

By Mr. McIntosh:

Q. Are they any worse than the ordinary run of mortals?—A. I do not know.
But I have had a great deal to do with them all my life, and I know about that
phase of it. I have no doubt that some artists on the air will say, “I got $300
for that,” or -something of that sort, when perhaps he has only got $50. If
the discussion of all these matters, of how much you are paying a pianist, how
much you are paying a singer and all that sort of thing, were brought into the
open, it would just keep you in a continuous state of brawl in operating a
program system.

Q. Is there any other reason?—A. No other reason.

Q. Is there any other reason why you want to shut parliament off from
discussing such payments?—A. It was just to prevent bringing up the case of
some musicians and how much they get for such and such a program.

Q. Are you still recommending that parliament be debarred from discussing
the matter?™ —A. I am not recommending that parliament be debarred from
anything. We were asked for suggestions. That would be absurd. We thought
of that as something that was not a suitable subject for discussion in parliament.

Q. For the reason you stated?—A. Not in the public interest.

By Mr. Dupwis:

Q. Before this question passes, Mr. Charlesworth, I should like to ask if
it has come to your knowledge that there have been many abuses arising out
of private stations paying a very small salary to singers, pianists or other
musicians?—A. Well, we have heard complaints of that kind a good many
times. Of course, the private station is not under our control with regard to
what it pays its artists. A great many people, especially in the smaller cities,
will sing for nothing just for the privilege of hanging around the station. There
is a fascination about it for them. We ourselves make it a rule to pay every-
body decently within our means. As for the abuses with regard to privately
owned stations, we have heard about them; artists that have sung for us have
told us about what they had to suffer from private stations; but it is not a
matter within our control in any way.

Q. I have not got the draft of the bill before me; I do not believe we have
it— :

The Cuamman: The draft of which?
[Mr. Hector Charlesworth,]
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Mr. Dupuis: Of the proposed bill. : :
The CuamrMAN: I might inform you, Mr. Dupuis, that there is no proposed
bill before the committee.

Mr. Dupuis: I was informed that the sub-committee had drafted a bill.

Mr. SuagHT: No. .

Mr. Dupuis: Then that is all right. In the public interest, I think what
matters is that these artists or musicians should be protected. Last year there
was a large investigation conducted by Mr. Stevens upon price spreads, and
they talked of sweat shops and all those things. Would it not be a good thing,
Mr. Chairman, if the proposed bill contained some clause to protect the musicians
and the artists even in private stations, as there are so many abuses?

The CrARMAN: I think what Mr. Slaght is trying to do is this: The
commission has presented certain recommendations to the committee of 1934
and those recommendations, as far as I can gather from Mr. Charlesworth, were
submitted to the government as well.

Wirness: Naturally they would be submitted to the government.

The CrARMAN: Mr. Slaght is trying to find out what has been done fol-
lowing those recommendations of the commission, or whether anything has been
done, or whether the commission is just the same as it was previous to the
inquiry of 1934 and the report therefrom.

Mr. Dupuis: In my judgment the question I am submitting now is con-
nected with the question just put by Mr. Slaght; that is to say, is it wise to
put this question out of the control of parliament even with regard to employees
of the commission or the artists and musicians which are employed by the com-
mission?

Wirness: I think, with the chairman’s permission, I could clear that up
right now. So far as instrumental musicians are concerned in Canada, they
are very amply protected; in fact, they are more than amply protected by their
unions. It is a highly unionized business in all the centres. There is an inter-
national union and there is also a Canadian union, so that so far as instrumental
musicians are concerned, the matter is taken care of. There has never been any
charge that there was any sweating, except a charge might be made which was
just talk. So far as payment of singers in stations is concerned, that is largely
optional with the singer. It would be possible for any privately owned station
to fill its program with deadhead singers who were willing to sing on the air for
nothing, provided the public would listen to them.
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By Mr. Dupuis:

Q. You are talking about amateurs not professionals?—A. Well, we do not
make any distinction between amateur and professional ourselves. If a good
amateur comes along with a voice we think the public would like to hear on the
air, we put the amateur on just as quickly as we put the professional on.

By Mr. Martin:

Q. With regard to the musicians’ union, is it your practice to employ only
musicians who belong to the union?—A. No. By understanding with the inter-
national union, we have open shop, so to speak. In fact, that was threshed out
in July, 1934. We pointed out that no government institution can make any
contract or any arrangement to deal exclusively with members of one union.
We have always refused to recognize that principle.

By Mr. Slaght:

Q. Was there not a private memorandum prepared by you or one mem-
ber of the commission for the use of one member of the previous govern-
16116—2 :
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ment with respect to the visit of Mr. Gladstone Murray?—A. Not that I am
aware of; I heard nothing of it.

Q. Would you mind checking that up?—A. Certainly; it would not be on
our file. 1T shall see if it is on the files. I never saw it.

Q. Would you mind checking that up? I was told there was—A.
Prepared by a member of my commission?

Q. Yes—All I will look to see. We can look into the files of Gladstone
Murray.

Mr. SvagaT:  Mr. Chairman, that is all that occurs to me to ask Mr.
Charlesworth regarding the document which has been produced. Unless some
other member of the committee has something, I shall pass to another subject.

By Mr. Dupuis:

Q. If T understand you rightly, you think it is not in the public interest to
know the wages paid to artists or musicians employed by the commission.
Is that your recommendation?—A. If you want them, we can file the wage
scales paid for orchestral musicians in Toronto, Montreal and Windsor, and
centres where they are organized, which are practically all centres where we
use orchestral musicians. What I mean, Mr. Dupuis is, we do not think the
remuneration of individual artists should be a matter of public discussion.
For instance, an artist may have a regular concert fee of $250 a night; but it is
to the advantage of the artist to come and offer his services on a short 15
minute program for a very much smaller figure because of the advertising he
gets over the air. The individual artists themselves do not desire that the
remuneration they receive be made public. That is a long standing system
in all musical enterprises.

By Mr. Bertrand:

Q. All orchestral programs?—A. I have had a long association with grand
opera in a business way, especially when 1 was a younger man, and nobody
knew exactly what artists were getting. Nobody knows what the artists in
the Metropolitan Opera are paid. They do not want it discussed. It is not
advisable.

By Mr. Dupwis:

Q. I do not see why. At any rate, it would perhaps influence the private
stations to be more human in their employment of musicians?—A. T am afraid
you are asking too much of the commission when you ask them to run the
functions of the privately owned station.

By Mr. Slaght:

Q. Before you leave that, may I ask this: is there any gther departmgnt
of government that you know of where parliament is deprived of knowing
and discussing the public money that is paid?—A. I don’t think in any
department of the government—

By Mr. Dupuis:
Q. The Canadian National Railways?—A. The Canadian National Rail-
ways, and I think in nearly all departments.
Q. We have to many of these bodies—

By Mr. Slaght:

Q. If the committee pleases—A. I do not think the details of the busi-
ness of the Department of Justice are revealed to the public. I think most
departments—

[Mr. Hector Charlesworth,]
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Hon. Mr. MacKenzie: Every department is guided by public interest.
Wirness: Public interest guides everything.

By Mr. Slaght:

Q. We have your view on that. If I may, with the approval of the com-
mittee, again refer to the relations between your commission and the Comp-
troller of the Treasury for a moment, I should like to do so. I should like
you to direct your mind to the period since June, 1934, only because I do not
want to go back to the matters investigated by the former committee. June,
1934, to the present time is the period in which I am interested. Have you a
file which contains the correspondence between your commission and the Comp-
troller of the Treasury for that period?—A. Yes, we would have the file.

Q. A similar file to that already shown?—A. Yes.

Q. I would ask, subject to the approval of the committee, for the produc-
tion of both files at the next meeting of the committee. Would these files dis-
close the possible difference of opinion as to certain expenditure, or certain
contracts?—A. They are mostly explanatory. They write and ask for explana-
tion on certain matters; why we want a clerk or something like that.

Q. That will be produced?—A. Yes.

Q. You were good enough to produce for us a schedule of the head office
officials and the officials of each district, and I think a copy has been handed
to each member of the committee?—A. Yes.

Q. May I for a moment direct you, let us say, to the Toronto district,
which perhaps will be typical. I do not want to go over all of them. The
Toronto district will be found on page 4. I want to get some notion of the
set-up and duties of the officials.—A. You want the Toronto district?

Q. I am taking that as a large district, and perhaps a typical district.
You can tell us afterwards if there are any refinements as to other districts,
which we ought to know. Looking at page 4 I see you have collected under
station CRCT the Toronto employees with their salaries and titles. CRCT
is the official air name of your Toronto station?—A. That is our outlet at
Toronto.

Q. You have no other outlet at Toronto, officially ?—A. No.

Q. Then the first gentleman is the station manager and regional program
director, for Ontario I suppose? That man’s name is Mr. Stanley Maxted,
who receives $4,750 a year, and then there is a reference to P. C. 11/2868.
Is that the resolution appointing him?—A. Yes, that is the order in council.

Q. Have you that at hand?—A. Yes.

Q. It shows what his duties are?—A. Yes.

Q. Would you file a copy of that?>—A. I guess so, we can have a copy
made.

Q. Make a copy and file it. Will you refer to it a moment and see what
Mr. Maxted’s duties are?—A. Yes, we have them here.

Q. Let us hear them. You can put your finger on the clause which deals
with his duties?—A. “Stanley Maxted, under the direction of the Commission,
having charge of the management of station CRCT ; responsible for the direction
of the staff at station CRCT under the direction of the program department
having charge of production, presentation of programs, CRCT; regional
program director for Ontario and other related duties assigned by the Com-
mission.

Q. Well now, what other related duties were assigned to Maxted by the
commission, if any?—A. Well, anything that arose in the course of the day in
- that station; requests for the use of the air; request to have some service clubs,
who have a distinguished speaker, go on the air. Or, if a question arose or a
conflict as between two rivals for the use of an hour or half hour, he has to
deal with that, and if it is a matter that involves a good deal of difficulty he
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refers it to me at Ottawa. He is supposed to look after the smaller matters
himself, without bothering the commission, unless it is something he thmks the
commission should learn about.

Are there any other duties assigned to him that you have not given?—
A. No; Maxted himself occasionally steps in without remuneration and sings.
He is a very distinguished singer; but his duties do not involve singing.

Q. He is not paid to sing or perform?—A. he is not paid to sing or perform.
He is supposed to supervise programs.

Q. His salary is $4,750, and I take it he is a full time employee?—A. A full
time employee, about 16 hours a day.

Q. Has he any permission from you to absent himself and direct himself
to other matters and other means of earning money during the day?—A. Well,
we take no objection to his singing in a church choir. He is an attendant at
a church in Toronto, and sings there. He lives at the Royal York hotel, and
he has sung for years for the C.P.R. on their program. He was sent to
Toronto originally by the C.P.R.

Q. Your arrangement is covered by that memorandum?—A. We get the
program that he signs on. It is a very fine program, the Rex Battle
program. They distribute it and it goes on our stations in Canada. We
get the benefit.

Q. I gather from the order in council that he is a full time employee,
16 hours a day?—A. When I say 16 hours I mean he is occasionally on duty
16 hours; he is a 24 hour employee.

Q. May I ask you whether his right to use time for other purposes than
serving the commission is covered by any letter or any memorandum passing
between your commission and Maxted?—A. No.

Q. It is not?—A. No. We would not interfere with Maxted doing a little
singing any more than civil servants in Ottawa are interfered with. There
are dozens of fellows that sing and perform sometimes on our programs
here in Ottawa.

Q. Does that apply to dramatic performances that Maxted may engage
in, also? Is that done with your approval‘?—A I do not know of any dramatic
performances that he is engaged in. They have not come to my knowledge,
if there are any.

By Hon. Mr. Howe:

Q. If T may interject a question, I think what Mr. Slaght is getting at is
that civil servants, generally speaking, are not allowed to earn money through
outside activities. Does that apply to Mr. Maxted, or not?—A. I do not
know that he earns any money at outside activities.

Hon. Mr. CauaN: There is an order in council which discloses exactly the
outside services which they perform.

Hon. Mr. Howe: Yes.

By Mr. Slaght:

Q. Then, you say Maxted would deal with requests for the use of the air?—
A. Yes; he or one of the staff. He is the manager.

Q. Is he responsible for granting the use of the air on application so far
as the Toronto district is concerned?—A. Yes, he is the ultimate man respon-
sible. Of course, for an ordinary matter they ‘would come in and file an appli-
cation for time with one of the staff. If there is a difficult question arises, he
refers it to us at Ottawa, to Mr. Powell, the commercial director, and then to
myself, if it is a difficult question.

Q. Have these questions been referred to you at times?—A. Yes they have
occasionally.

[Mr. Hector Charlesworth, ]
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Q. They have occasionally?—A. In all large cities, stations, privately and

publicly owned have an great deal of pressure brought to bear for undesirable
broadeasts, and he has to deal with those. If they become pressing he refers the
matter to me, and I decide what is to be done. Ordinarily he refers to head
office when necessary. He is not supposed to bother us all the time.
Q. That may be a convenient time for you to furnish us with your regu-
lations—you can direct us to them shortly—and indicate to us what provision
there is guarding against undesirable broadcasts? Have you the regulations
there?—A. There is a recent amendment to section 90, to which you probably
refer, showing the position of the law now as regards regulations of undesirable
or desirable programmes.

Q. I want you to provide, if you will, a copy to show what power there is
to check in advance what is used on the air, and what regulations there are
after that, and who is responsible. Secondly, who is responsible for checking
up all programmes that may be complained of as undesirable, and decidi
whether they may be repeated or not?—A. So far as the use of the air is con-
cerner, every station manager, private or who own stations, is expected to see

that regulation 90 is observed; and if he suspects that there is likely to be a / '

breach of that regulation, to demand copy in advance, to demand the continuity
in advance. If there is no reason for such suspicion, we do not annoy the public
in that way. For instance, if a public man were going to speak over a station,
being brought on by somebody, a gentleman like yourself or Mr. Woodsworth,
the station manager would not, under any circumstance, demand your text in
advance. If there is reason to suspect—if the person in question has been
guilty of an offense on the air before, or has been on the public platform making
rather undesirable speeches, then the station manager is expected to look into
it in advance. e

Q. Now, is that duty covered by your written regulations and instructions
to your station manager in Toronto and throughtout Canada?—A. Yes.

Q. Perhaps your written instructions to the station manager are not in the
record, are they?—A. Yes—the instructions and verbal instructions—

Q. Take first the written instructions. There are the general written in-
structions which come to the station managers?—A. Yes.

Q. Would you produce them for us so that we shall have them at the next
meeting?—A. I can illustrate what I mean by this: just prior to the election
campaign, we had regulation 90 printed in both languages in type half an
inch long on big cards, and sent to every station in Canada, with instructions
to the station that they must observe them.

Q. I understand.

By Mr. Campbell:

Q. Private as well as your own stations?—A. Private stations as well as
our own.

By Mr. Slaght:

Q. I shall read regulation 90 to the committee, which was passed on the
12th of August 1935, having regard to what you indicate, the pending election.
—A. Yes. It was passed by the privy council, August 31st. It was previously,
at the end of the session, approved by the House of Commons unanimously.

1 Q. So I understand.—A. It then became an order in council six weeks
ater.

Q. It reads as follows:—

_ AmexpMENT. No broadcasting station may broadcast any speech,
printed matter or programme containing defamatory, libellous or obscene
statements with regard to persons or institutions, or statements of a

treasonable character or intended to promote change by unlawful means
16116—3
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and which might lead to a breach of the peace, or any advertising matter
containing false or deceptive statements.

As I understand it, that was printed and sent to all commission stations and all
private stations?—A. All stations in Canada.

Q. In addition to that you are going to produce for us some special instrue-
tions to station managers on this subject; is that right?—A. Well, special instruc-

tions? I do not know that they took the concrete form of writing, but any

station that raised the point with regard to specific broadcasts, a private station
or a publicly owned station, was replied to. That is a question that has been
asked me on countless occasions, and it took the form of commission letters to
individual station managers in Canada.

Q. Now we have here section 90, which is a prohibition against any broad-
casting station broadcasting such matter. You tell us that you exercised dis-
cretion when applications were made in seeking the text in advance, as I under-
stood you, or not troubling to do so, having regard to some institution or appli-
cant?—A. Yes.

Q. Are there any written regulations of your commission or any written
instructions to station managers which cover his duties as to exercising that
discretion of asking for the text in advance or not doing so; or is that a matter
entirely left in the air, so to speak?—A. That is a matter of instructions given
to all station managers, but they do not consult me on all local problems.

Q. Is there not a written memorandum?—A. When they have ground to
suspect that there is going to be a violation of that regulation they should
demand the text, and then they should watch the speaker to see that he observes
the text, and it is quite easy to cut him out if he attempts to insert something.
That is the penalty, cut him off.

Q. Is there any written regulation of that kind, or is it verbal?—A. No, it
is purely verbal. We despatch, perhaps, a circular letter telling them to exercise
extra caution in connection with certain matters. You will see these circular
letters.

Q. They will be produced?—A. We have a complete list here of the circular
letters.

By Mr. Dupuis:

Q. You say it is left to the arbitrary interpretation of the manager of any
broadecasting station— —A. No.

Q. —to decide?—A. No, not left to the arbitrary decision; but he is expected
to see that the law is observed.

Q. Suppose a man wants to broadeast a speech, and the speech is not written
before it is delivered, and there is a man in charge of the station who says that
the speech is not against peace or good government, or anything of that kind,
it is left to the— —A. Men have to exercise the very greatest degree of caution
in exercising powers. My policy has always been to avoid any arbitrary use of
power; but there are things that cannot be tolerated. In political campaigns,
things are liable to get out of hand, but men do the best they can.

By Mr. Slaght:

Q. I suppose someone has to have authority to try to enforce in advance
the provisions of section 90?7—A. Yes.

Q. I suppose, whether it is the local manager, or whether it is passed on to
you, one has to do something arbitrarily?—A. If it is a serious question that
arises—and they are always arising—it is passed on to me and I deal with it
myself.

By Mr. Dupuis:

Q. I say that if a man is appointed manager of a radio station here in
Ottawa, or any place else, he is to decide, if I want to make a speech against
Mr. King— —A. No.

[Mr. Hector Charlesworth,]
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Q. —stating certain facts, he might decide under his arbitrary power that
the speech is against peace, order, and good government?—A. No, that rule
means that you can criticize public policy, you can criticize Mr. King’s speech
on a certain question, but you cannot indulge in defamatory statements about
him.

Q. I understand. It is very clear now.—A. Our station manager, and
station managers generally, except in very small places, are sufficiently familiar
with their local situations to exercise judgment. They are useless to us as man-
agers unless they are able to exercise judgment, and cut off, if necessary.

Q. Have you any file— —A. We have had a good deal of that, I think, in
your own province, sir, of late, as you know.

Q. Just in my own province?—A. I mean of late.

Q. Have you a file, Mr. Charlesworth, containing letters from local mex
in charge of stations asking your advice— —A. Oh, yes.

o Q. —on allowing a certain speech to be made?—A. Yes, we have lots or
them. ‘

Q. Is the advice asked for by phone, or by letter?—A. Sometimes by phone.
more frequently by telegram, and a letter follows.

Q. Who decides that, yourself or the commission?—A. I submit those
questions to the commission; I issue the order.

By the Chairman:

Q. May I interject a question? Your grounds of suspicion in regard to a
speech that is about to be delivered are based on the action of the individual as
- 'known to your manager or to the commission?—A. Yes; the reputation of the
individual. For instance, I will give you an illustration of that. There was
an advertisement appeared in some western city that Tim Buck was going to
broadcast—I think at Saskatoon or somewhere—on the unsuccessful attempt
to murder him. The government’s unsuccessful attempt to murder him.
Well, the station manager immediately turned that down and referred
the question to me. There has been no attempt to murder him. He
could not go on the air. That is an extreme case. There are things that are
brought on the air that are unsuspected. The station manager usually knows
there is something contemplated.

By Mr. Dupwis:

Q. You do not need article 98 of the Criminal Code?—A. We need that
article, because it is our authority—you mean article 98 of the Criminal Code?
No, we do not; we are not the Department of Justice.

By Mr. Woodsworth.:

Q. Just on that question of Tim Buck—I do not think I shall be accused
of any favouritism since he ran against my colleague Mr. Heaps, in North
Winnipeg—suppose he offered to come forward, or was a candidate—A. Yes?

Q. —would his general reputation be regarded as such that he would not
be permitted to use the air?>—A. No. Tim Buck has spoken over our station in
Toronto, but on a pledge from him to keep within the regulations.

Q. It was simply with regard to the particular speech about which he was
advertised to speak?—A. That particular speech.

Q. It would not preclude him from speaking on any subject?—A. Tim Buck
has spoken on the air over our station in Toronto on a pledge, and showing his
continuity that he was keeping the law.

Mg. McInTtosa: On the basis that every Canadian citizen has the right
to broadeast if he fulfills the obligation?

16116—3%
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By Mr. Howard:

Q. May I ask this question, Mr. Chairman: were regulations tightened up
with regard to the Quebec or Federal elections, or were you following the same
principle as in the past?—A. Following the same—there were complaints made
by the Prime Minister of Quebec, and Attorney General, Mr. Taschereau, that
his rivals who have conducted their broadcasting since the general election,
were guilty of defamation; and I could not ignore complaints from Mr. Tasche-
reau. I know he would not deceive me. Therefore, orders were issued to all
stations that they should see that regulation 90 came to the attention of all
speakers, and that they should be instructed as to that. There were certain
speakers there that were a little bit inflammatory; things got very much out
of hand a few days before the elections and they were asked to submit their
continuity, and certain things were eliminated. We were thanked for that
course by the leaders of the Duplessis-Gouin party, because they said they could
not always control their fellows and their cause might be ruined by extremists.
They were entirely agreeable to that course.

By Mr. Slaght: _

Q. You have made it fully clear to us the precautions you take in advance
to enforce section 90. Just before we leave that, do I understand you to say
that your manager has to enquire into what goes over the air; that is to say,
not definitely, but he has to do the checking of what goes over the air?—A.Yes.

Q. Do you make any exceptions? Do you take some people for granted,
without knowing what they are going to say, or is it a definite rule of your
commission to make sure who is going to use the air, so you may apply tests
of character to know whether or not there is likely to be a breach—A. Yes,
quite.

Q. That is always done?—A. Yes. That is practically second nature in
radio business.

Q. Now who is responsible for seeing that the second nature is always
invoked, the local manager, primarily, I understand?—A. The local manager
is responsible.

Q. If he does not do it, does he get rapped over the knuckles?—A. He does.

Q. Have you had occasion to rap any knuckles on that score?—A. Well,
when we get complaints filed with us we communicate with the station manager
either by telegram or otherwise, and ask if these charges are true, and notify
them that this must cease. We are doing that every week in the year.

Q. You are doing that every week in the year?—A. Yes.

By Mr. Howard:

Q. Having in mind that statement, Mr. Charlesworth, I should like to
mention a matter in connection with the provincial campaign in Quebec. As
a listener on the radio says, many times certain people speaking, on 1.'eac.hlng
certain points, were turned off and turned on by the operator five or six times
in a speech, whoever the operator was, under your instructions; and when
the same man made his speech again the next night, or the following night, the
same thing happened. At certain points he was cut out. That must have been
the operator acting entirely on instructions from you?—A. Well yes. I under-
stand certain statements were buzzed out. Speakers were being watched. For
instance, if a fellow on the station were calling Premier Taschereau a serpent,
which was a favourite expression, the operator buzzed it out.

By Mr. Slaght:
Q. T want to clear up this question. You have given us the measures of
precaution in advance. Tell us what your regulations are or the practice you
[Mr. Hector Charlesworth.]
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~ follow, assuming that somebody gets away with it. Suppose a speech or a per-

- formance on the air is given which is thought to be objectionable. How do you
disciplinee the offender? What precautions are taken to see that he does not
repeat it later?>—A. If it is part of a series, we send word immediately that
this matter must be cleaned up or the broadecast will be cut off the air.

Q. Who do you send that to?—A. To the sponsor, the person responsible. We
give authority to the manager. We give the commission authority for that,
that the broadcast will be closed off the air unless it is properly cleaned up.

Q. Just on that point, tell me if there is a manuseript kept other than
your log, which I shall deal with in a moment. Is a manuseript kept of each per-
formance on the air over commission stations, so that if there is any question
about it, it may be submitted to you?—A. Manuscripts are kept in the case of
types of broadcasts where they are apt to infringe, especially in connection with
patent medicine broadeast advertising, where there are attempts to evade the law
and the regulations of the national health department and all that sort of thing.
There is a manuseript kept for reference there.

Q. Let me ask you this. I do not find in your regulations anything directing
the keeping of manuscripts. Is there anything?—A. No. ¥

Q. So you have not passed regulations?—A. No. It is just a matter of usage.

Q. Do you not think it would be a good idea if manusecripts were kept?—A.
Yes, I think it would be a good idea. Of course, your station is liable to get
cluttered up with a lot of matter that is of no importance whatever.

Q. Then if there is a broadcast which is part of a series and complaint is
made, do you adopt the precaution to keep a manuscript of the rest of the series?—
A. If complaint is made we demand a copy, that the manager procure a copy
and keep on file a copy of the objectionable broadcast; and if we want it, we send
for it ourselves and keep it at Ottawa.

Q. Do you keep these on file at your head office?—A. Yes, we keep them
on file.

Mr. Dupuis: Section 94 of the regulations seems to apply. Regulation 94
reads as follows:— ;

Each station shall keep on file a copy of: (a) the daily proces-
verbal: (b) the continuities of each paid program and announcement,
originating at the said station.

Does that cover it?
The Cuamrman: That is regulation 94?
Mr. Dupuis: That is just advertising.

Mr. Massey: May I say that that applies primarily to commercial pro-
grams.

Wirness: Yes.

Mr. Massey: The advertising sponsor must submit his continuity for
approval. If the continuity takes more than the 5 per cent limit, he must cut
back that continuity, and a file of that cut back continuity is retained by the
station. Apropos of what the chairman of the commission said a few minutes ago
in regard to infringement of the rule, if an advertising sponsor does by any
chance exceed his 5 per cent limit, for example, the announcer who has cut the
commercial may slow up on the broadcast itself and allow us 8 or 10 per cent.
That has been done. The client or agent, as the case may be, receives a letter
from the commission informing him that his client has infringed the rules and
will he kindly see that that does not occur again.

The CramrMaN: I think what Mr. Slaght is trying to get from Mr. Charles-
worth is this; if there is a broadeast in violation of regulation 90 here, does
the commission keep a manuscript? i

Mr. SpAGHT: Or objected to by somebody.
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The CuARMAN: Yes, or objected to by somebody. Does the commission
keep a record of the manuscripts, and are they available to the committee.
Is that your question?

Wirness: If we think the matter is important enough we send for the
manuscript, or endeavour to find out what the general content was.

By Mr. Slaght:

Q. You told me a moment ago, as I understood it, that you send for it
and keep it on file at the head office—A. Under the file on that particular
subject. We do not keep them in bulk. We keep them under that particular
subject.

By Mr. Dupuis:

Q. But you are not bound to by your regulations, I understand‘?—A No.

It is a matter of administration, of practlce

By Mr. Slaght:

Q. You have a section dealing with logging. You might refer to that with
me for a moment, if you will. It is on page 15 of the regulations. About two-
thirds of the way down is “A the program log,” and that is defined as
(a) Date, call letters, location, frequency, and so on. Then when we come
down to (¢) we find the following:—

113 s ”

(c¢) Entries briefly describing each program broadcast, such as ‘ musie,
“drama,” “speech,” etc., with the time of the beginning and ending,
so as to give a continuous record of each day’s broadcast. If a mechan-
ical reproduction is used, that fact shall be noted, together with an
indication whether announcement thereof was made. If a speech is
made by a political candidate, the name and political affiliation of
such speaker shall be entered.

(d) The name, character, and origin of each program, and announcement,
giving the time of commencement and termination of all programs
and announcements.

Is that log kept, as a matter of practice?—A. Yes.

Q. By the local station, in each instance?—A. And filed with us; as far
as our own stations are concerned, filed at head office also.

Q. A duplicate is kept at the local station and a carbon copy sent to you?
—A. Yes. 1 frequently refer to these logs.

Q. And that would disclose, in a dramatic performance, who took part
in it?—A. No, they do not mention any names; they mention the character
of the program, that is all.

Q. Do you think it would be a good idea to have a record made of those
who use the air?>—A. You will see down there further, if a speech is given, the
political candidate’s name and the political affiliation of such speaker shall be
entered.

Q. T mean in a dramatic or so-called dramatic performance?—A. A dramatic
or so-called dramatic performance? Well, the record of the performers is in
our accounts, you see. We get a bill for so many performances by such and
such a singer, and the dates, and we have the record.

Q. Suppose it is a dramatic performance or skit. Do you permit people
to use vour air without knowing who they are — anonymously?—A. No, not
as a rule. If you will look at our original Act, you will see that we are per-
mitted to buy features, and we might buy an enaemble feature.

Q. I am not speaking of something you buy. I am speaking of some
people on dramatic performances being used on the air. Do you find it desir-
able to check up as to who the users are, or do you just take it for granted
that they will be all right?—A. Well, we rely on the sponsor. For instance,

[Mr. Hector Charlesworth,]
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there is the case of the Canadian Legion. We gave them the facilities and
time for a national program, and they put on a special dramatic sketch
illustrating the life of the soldiers, and various things. I do not know who
those performers were. There were some very brilliant dramatic sketches.
They were all arranged by Mr. Leslie Chance of the Canadian Legion.

Q. Mr. Woodsworth asked a question the other day with regard to political
dramatic or so-called dramatic broadcasts. Perhaps I might round it out for
him by asking you whether, in the case of political dramatic or so-called
dramatic broadecasts, you are interested in who the people are who use your air?
—A. Well, in the case which I think Mr. Woodsworth had in mind we were
not. We knew nothing of the broadcast beforehand. But we took a big
interest in it afterwards.

Q. Taking a big interest, did you ascertain who the actors were?—A. No,
I did not bother specifically to find out who the actors were. I went after the
authors and the sponsors. After all, in a play that proves objectionable you go
after the author or man responsible for the production, not the person that
reads the seript.

By Mr. McIntosh:
Q. They could give the participants, could they not?—VYes.

By Mvr. Slaght:

Q. Perhaps, if Mr. Woodsworth will permit me to make it more complete
for him, unless he wants to do it himself, I might ask you if you did, in the case
to which he referred, secure the complete data as to who the alleged actors were
engaged in the broadcast?—A. Are you speaking of Mr. Sage?

Q. I think that is the name of the one he mentioned. Did you do that?—
A. Well, no, I did not go after the actors until I had gone after the sponsors.
Then when I learned that a certain individual had acted in the performance, I
said that that man must be taken out.or we would—the commission was
through with him.

Q. Perhaps we will go into that at a later stage. That is Mr. Woodsworth’s
matter, and I do not want to trespass. I shall continue my questions with
regard to your general information. But before we leave that, I might ask if
you have the script of the speeches or drama?—A. I have the seript in my
grip here, of the original broadeast of Mr. Sage. That is the one that came as
a surprise. That is the objectionable one. I have that seript here.

Mr. SuagHT: Do you suggest, Mr. Woodsworth, that we should ask for
that file?

Mr. WoopsworTH: Yes, I think that ought to come out. That was one of
the matters referred to us. That is the reason I brought it oft.

Wrrness: I can file this. It comes from the copy department of J. J. Gib-
bons Agency. It is on their paper. This was impounded and retained by our
station. As soon as I learned that this matter was likely to come up before
this committee, I endeavoured to secure the subsequent broadcasts which were
less objectionable than this, and the J. J. Gibbons agency refused to release
them. They took them away with them. It was not broadeast from our
station. They made use of a studio. The broadecasting studio was station CFRB
of Toronto.

By Mr. Slaght:

Q. Do you not carry network and hookup programs, using commission
studios?—A. Yes, a network with commission stations and other stations—net-
work arrangements.
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Q. Did that not give you an interest in the matter when .y‘ou were usiri‘g 5

commission stations to rebroadcast it?—A. Not merely that, but we had a long
—1I do not know whether there is time to-day to go into it, but I can tell you
the whole history. . ,

Q. No, I am not requesting you to do that at all. I think Mr. Woodsworth
may want to proceed with that at a later stage—A. All right.

By Mr. McIntosh:

Q. Was Toronto the only point at which the Sage broadecast took place?—
A. No. That was broadcast on time leased weeks in advance by the Conser-
vative party as a Conservative party broadecast, and was so advertised in the
papers. There was a schedule that came out in the papers, “Meet Mr. Sage.
Conservative Party Broadcast.”

By Mr. Slaght:

Q. Are you accurate in that statement?—A. I am accurate to this extent,
that the first I learned—

Q. No, but did the Conservative party adopt it at all>—A. No. But
finally I forced the Conservative party to sponsor the broadcast.

Q. And is it your statement that, as a result of your forcing them to, the
Conservative party did sponsor the broadcast?—A. Yes, ultimately.

Hon. Mr. Canax: If you are going into that, Mr. Chairman, I think we
will have to go into it in some detail.

Mr. StacHT: Yes. We should not get into that today.

Hon. Mr. CaHAN: As a matter of fact, I think we are proceeding rather
irregularly. There should be produced the contract, by whom made, who spon-
sored it; because that is all a matter of record, contained in written documents
or typewritten documents, and those should be produced.

Mr. SvacHT: I quite agree. If you will note it, Mr. Cahan, I questioned
the witness’s accuracy in the statement he made and invited him to correct it.

Hon. Mr. CanaN: He perhaps is not in any position to correct. I think
we should get at the original station at which these were produced, and the
original contracts made for their production.

Mr. SuAGHT: As far as T am concerned, I quite agree. I will pass from that.

Mr. Massey: May I interrupt for just a moment? May I suggest that if
there are to be filed documents relative to one particular broadcast, and as
that broadcast has not a monopoly on all which was objectionable on the air
during the campaign, there should be other documents brought down relative
to other broadcasts. I think differentiation is rather unfair. I say that not
from the purely party point of view, but trying to act on this committee from
the point of view on which this committee is organized, which is to improve
broadcasting in the Dominion of Canada. There were other objectionable
features on the air during the course of the campaign. Those objectionable
features were not confined to one single party. I think I can safely say, without
hurting anybody’s feelings, that all parties—and there were many parties—
released objectionable broadecasts during the course of that campaign. I think
if there is differentiation there, it would be unfair.

Mr. Woopsworta: T might say that one party did not have a broadeast, so
there was nothing objectionable there.

Hon. Mr. MacKe~xzie: Mr. Woodsworth cannot get away with that.

Mr. Massey: In reply to the hon. member for Winnipeg, I might say that
there was a voice on the air in the city of Toronto that occasionally followed
some of the more important broadecasts, which was only a voice crying in the

[Mr. Hector Charlesworth,]

Cidebcs il mmen U o
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wilderness. I am not at all sure that some of the statements made on that
broadcast were not poisonously objectionable. : _

Mr. McIntosH: Some hope it will still be a voice erying in the wilderness.

Mr. Massey: I did not go into that.

Mr. SuacHT: As far as I am concerned, I should like to facilitate the sug-
gestion to this extent: We have been told that a broadecast in which Mr. Woods-
worth showed especial interest at the last sitting, and known as Mr. Sage, was
objected to, as I understand it.

Wirness: Yes. ]

Mr. SuagaT: And he took special steps. 1 suggest that perhaps he could
lay before the committee at the next session any other broadecasts to which the
commission receive objections.

Some hon. MEMBERS: Yes.

" Mr. SuaguT: Any that were objected to, so that we will have them all, no
matter where they come from.

Mr. McInTosH: That will take in all parties?

Mr. SuacaT: All parties and groups, where objection was filed with the
commission. 3

Mr. Epwarps: Might T ask that the broadcast immediately following Mr.
Sage every evening be included?

Mr. Massey: Mr. Chairman, to clear up any possible misunderstanding,
I am sure that the hon. member from Winnipeg will not feel that I was con-
tradicting flatly what he said.

Mr. WoobpsworTH: No. I was thinking of the general hook-up.

Mr. Massey: I am quite sure that if the hon. gentleman from Winnipeg had
heard some of the broadcasts that I did, he would have equal objection.

Mr. WoopsworTH: Quite so. I was just thinking of the general hook-up in
connection with Mr. Sage. May I say a word with regard to one other matter
which was brought up. I do not think it is very important; but it was under-
stood that the salaries of the various officials should not be published. Mr.
Slaght did question one and published that one. It would seem to me that if
one is to be taken out in that way, there is no reason why the whole list should
not be published.

Mzr. StagaT: I would be glad to amend my question by leaving it blank
dollars, if that is possible. I have no desire to have it published. I am sure
the members of the press will be kind enough not to use that figure.

Mr, CampBern: There is no secret about the matter.

The CuAamrMAN: I think the salaries of all eivil servants are public; and
they are public to anybody. I do not see why we should treat one differently
than we treat another.

Mr. StaguT: You will find that in the blue book or official report.

Mr. Duruis: 1 think it should be published.

Hon. Mr. CarpiN: The whole list should be published.

Mr. WoobpsworrH: All I am urging is that if one is singled out, all others
should be published.

Mr. SuagHT: I assure you I have no desire to single out any one, but we
had to take a sample and start with the head. If it is agreeable, I shall proceed.

Mr. Massey: Do I understand that Mr. Charlesworth has been instructed
to bring to the next meeting of this committee the continuity or whatever record
there may be, and all documents pertaining thereto, of all the broadcasts to
which objection was taken?

Some Hon. MEMBERS: Yes.
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Mr. Massey: I understood that.

Mr. SuagaT: I think you should not ask him to go back of June, 1934, the
date of the last committee investigation.

Mr. Massey: No. ;
Mr. SuagaT: I am anxious that we should not get back of that.

Mr. Massey: I was referring particularly to the election campaign of last
year.

The CrAlRMAN: Yes. I think that is understood, Mr. Massey.

Wirness: As a matter of fact, I have not got any. The only continuity I
sent for was Mr. Sage. The public of Canada took these political attacks on
the air very much for granted, and we did not hear any complaints. I did not
feel occasion to send for a political speech after it was over and after it had
been heard. We did have kicks from the isolated listener, like that coming from
the old Tory lady who did not like to hear some Liberal on the air and vice versa,
and we had a telegram from Mr. Stevens’ organization about a celebrated speech

By Mr. Martin:

Q. Mr. who?—A. Mr. Stevens. We had various things, but I have really
no material to produce. I did not send for anybody else’s political speeches
at all.

Mr. Howarp: Mr. Slaght, have you noticed rule 83?

Mr. SragHT: Yes.

Mr. Howarp: When furnishing this information, that ought to be attached
to it. Regulation 83 provides that persons having actual knowledge of the facts
required shall sign the log when starting duty and again when going off duty.

Mr. SuacaT: I will direct the chairman’s attention to that now.

Wirness: These logs are signed.

By Mr. Slaght:

Q. Mr. Charlesworth, No. 83 of the regulations, at page 16, reads:—

Each log shall be kept by the person or persons competent to do so,
having actual knowledge of the facts required, and who shall sign the log
when starting duty and again when going off duty. The logs shall be
made available upon request by authorized commission’s representatives.

—A. Yes.

Q. Was it the practice to keep these logs as the regulation requires?—A. Yes.

Q. Were they kept in duplicate, did I understand you to say, one at the
particular station where the broadcast initiated, and the other sent to head
office?—A. One sent to head office; that is, on our own stations. A great many
of the privately owned stations send them to us voluntarily. We do not have
to send for them.

Q. You would have on your file any logs that we require; we will not have
to send out for them?—A. I think so. You see, certain of the larger stations do
not send us their logs. For instance, there is a good deal of controversy out in
Alberta just now about the use of the air, and I had occasion to send for the
logs of the Edmonton Journal station. I have them all there.

Q. Then again, on page 4 of the list of employees at Toronto, we had the
station managers. The first one is supervisor of studios, Mr. R. Lucas.—A. Yes.

Q. Who draws a salary which I will not read into the record.

Hon. Mr. CarpiN: You may read it.

The CHAIRMAN: Yes.

Mr. Duruis: Why not?

[Mr. Hector Charlesworth,]
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The CuairmAN: I might state, Mr. Slaght, that I think it was agreed by
the committee, without it being in the form of a motion, that there was no
objection to the information being given in regard to the personnel or the salaries
of the personnel. ;

Mr. Dupuis: I move that this be put on the record.

Mr. McInTosH: I will second that.

The CHAIRMAN: Moved by Mr. Dupuis, seconded by Mr. Meclntosh, that
the list provided by the commission, the salary list, and the names of their
employees, be put into the record. All in favour?

Mr. Massey: I ask as a matter of information, and hope you will pardon
my lack of knowledge—

The CralrMAN: Just a minute. Do you want to speak on the motion?

Mr. Massey: It was in connection with the publishing of the names. I pre-
sume I am in order. There are published in the estimates the salaries of the
various employees. But in the list of estimates are the names always pub-
lished of the individuals holding down the positions?

Hon. Mr. MacKenzie: They are available to any member of the house.

Mr. Massey: They are not published in the newspapers or anything of
that sort? ‘

Mr. Mcelnrtosu: That is up to the paper.

The CuamrmMaN: The newspapers can publish them if they see fit so to do.

Mr. Massey: It is hardly fair, perhaps, to the employees of the commis-
sion and the various stations, and all that sort of thing, to have their salaries
published in the daily press, if the other information was not available of a
similar character.

Wirxess: These salaries are subject to a 5 per cent cut. That is what the
position calls for, but they do not get it.

Mr. McInTosu: If the newspapers figure it is any news, they will publish
it, certainly. ‘

The CuamrMAN: Are you in favour of the motion?

Mr. Prunkerr: Did we not understand that this information would be
given to the members of the committee and would not be published in the
records of the house?

The CaamrrMaN: I might say, Mr. Plunkett, that Mr, Charlesworth was
of the opinion that it would not be in the interest of the public or the Radio

Commission to publish the names and salaries of these people mentioned in
the list here.

Wirness: I was thinking, Mr. Chairman, more of the very small-salaried
man that we have. T was thinking of him more than I was of the higher sal-
aried man. We have some men with very small salaries.

The CraRMAN: I do not suppose the press is going to make a special point
of publishing the salaries. I do not see how you are going to avoid naming
the person or mentioning the salary if you are going to discuss the operations
of the different stations. Any member can ask for this in the house and get it.

Hon. Mr. Carpin: Yes.
Mr. Dupuis: It is available to the public.
Mr. Martin: Why should it not be published?

The CramrMAN: Are you ready for the motion that the names of the
employees and salaries be put in the record of the proceedings?

Motion agreed to.
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By Mr. Slaght: ; :

Q. I am directing your attention now to the gentleman who comes second
in seniority, apparently, in Toronto, at station CRCT, who is supervisor of
studios: R. Lucas, $3,500 salary. Apparently his duties are covered by an
order in council. 'Can you conveniently turn to the order in council appoint-
ing Mr. Lucas, which is, P.C. 11/2868, and give us briefly his duties?—A. His
duties on our book here are defined as follows— _ -

Q. When you say “ on our book ” what do you mean?—A. We have a book
here which gives the duties of every employee on our staff.

Q. Is that as defined in the order in council, or does that differ from the
order in council?—A. No. It is a record of our employees. The order in
council is here.

Q. Would you first give us his duties as defined by the order in council;
and then, if the book differs, give us that—A. There are no duties defined.

Hon. Mr. Canan: Have the order in council placed on the record.

Mr. ScagaT: Or read the duties from it.

Wirness: The duties are, ¢ Supervisor of Studios,” it says. We have in
our own files a more extended account of what is expected of everybody.

By Mr. Slaght:

Q. Does the order in council merely say “ Supervisor of Studios”?—A. Yes.

Q. Or does it define what that means?—A. No.

Q. It does not?—A. No.

Q. We have what the order in council says. Now if you will read it,
we will have what the book says—A. Our book says: “ Duties, supervising \
commercial contracts and broadcasts at station CRCT; acting as liaison officer
between station CRCT and National Broadecasting Company; that station
happens to be an outlet for the broadcasting company for certain of its adver-
tising and some of its sustaining programs; supervising studios and studio
staff and related duties as assigned. Then we have a report from the general
superintendent. Mr. Bushnell reports: Mr. Lucas might be considered as the
office manager of CRCT reporting directly to Mr. Maxted. As he has had
experience in professional drama, he assists in the production of programs, par-
ticularly those of a dramatic type. He plays the leading role in practically
all the major dramatic productions originating at CRCT, such as “ Forgotten
Footsteps.” That is without extra remuneration. He gives his services as an 1
artist as well as those other duties. ‘

Q. What does the “R” stand for in Mr. Lucas’s name?—A. Rupert.

Q. Does he play leading roles in dramatic productions?>—A. Yes. Acting
is his hobby. There is no obligation on him to do so, but he likes to.

Q. Do you say that is without any additional remuneration under the
program of disbursements?—A. No additional remuneration to him. He
has had organization of certain programs. He likes to act.

Q. Does he appear in political broadcasts with your approval?—A. I learned
that he was —no, not with our approval; with our entire disapproval. If you ‘,
are alluding to the Mr. Sage matter, he was lured into that. |

Q. I was not alluding to that especially; I was inquiring just on the |
general principle as to whether he does—A. Not as a rule; not in commercials |
at all. He likes to play heroic leads, especially in dramatizations of things like i
The Scarlet Pimpernel. He is a very fine romantic actor. He is an amateur. :
He has never been on the professional stage. He is one of those beautiful
elocutionists. !

Q. Is he a full-time employee at $3,500?—A. Yes. J

Q. How many hours would that mean?—A. Possibly 16 to 18 hours a day. |
He is not there all the time. They generally arrange among themselves.

[Mr, Hector Charlesworth.]
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Q Dioes he do autmde work for remuneration with the approval of the
commission?—A. I beg your pardon?

Q. Does he do outside work for remuneration with the permission of the
commission?—A. No, I do not know that he does any outside work at all. He
attends church and puts on a Good Friday passion play, or something of that
sort.

Q. That is a contribution to the church?—A. Yes; but nothing—

MR. SvaguT: It is one o’clock now, Mr. Chairman.

Tae CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, before we disperse I should like you to settle
a matter. At the last meeting of the committee, it was decided that we would
grant the request of the Canadian Press who wish to present a brief or memoran-
dum to the committee. Is it the wish of the committee that we shall hear the
Canadian Press at the next meeting?

Mg. McInTosu: Will they take the whole morning?

Tuee CuAmMAN: No; I think Mr. Charlesworth should be here at the
next meeting. I think it was agreed at the last meeting that we should hear the
Canadian Press on Tuesday morning. Is that agreeable?

Agreed.
The committee adjourned to meet Tuesday, April 7th, 1936 at 11 a.m.
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APPENDIX NO. 1

CaNADIAN RAp1o BroapcasTiNG COMMISSION 1
OFFICIAL POSITION LIST ARRANGED BY LOCATION 3
HEADQUARTERS 3
Date of Salary
Position Incumbent Appt. Rate Authority
Chairman’ . ... d. sceseas H. Charlesworth ...... Oct. 31/38 $10,000 00 P.C. 2217
Vice Chairman ......... C. A Ghdtiverns .. Joas s Aug. 17/35 8,000 00 P.C. 2414
Commissioner ......... W AxRbeel v n i s VIS0 Jan. 17/33 8,000 00 PAL 2217
Station Manager ....... W. BaPowell [ .5 sses Apr. 1/33 3,600 00 P.C. 6/1405
Director of Pubhcxty E. C. Buchanan ........ Feb. 15/33 5,800 00 P.C. 1053
Super. Station Relat’s .. E. W. Jackson ......... Apr. 1/33 4,000 00 P.C. 6/1405
Commercial Director ...J. A. Dupont .......... Apr. 1/33 5,000 00 i
Senior Station Manager. E. L. Bushnell .......... Nov. 1/33 5,200 00 P.C. 113/2102
Regional Program' ‘Dir. . G.7A. Taggart ...ai.ee, Oct. " 25/33 2,700 00 2
% o »? K. A. MacKinnoni ...... Nov. 1/33 3,000 00 =
Continuity Writer ...... R, E.iSneyd "asisic s, Nov. 1/33 1,700 00 % |
Aceonntant . on i coeies M. Peterkin . .o . forany Sept. 15/33 1,200 00 s
Senior Radio Engmeer A W ZOliy e s s Apr. 1/33 4,800 00 P.C. 6/1405
Radio Engineer, Cl. II.. J. A. Ouimet .......... Nov. 26/34 2,000 00 P.C. 113/2102
Chief Broad. Operator O inlay R S S s Apr. 74 2,400 00 P.C. 6/1405
Asst. Broad. Operator .. C. E. Stiles ............ Nov. 8/33 1,540 00 o
Radio Electrician ...... R.\D . Cahoon: s s Mar. 15/33 1,800 00 P.C. 113/2102
Jr. Radio’ Electrician .. J. E. Hayes ...cccvvewoss Jan. 13/36 1,000 00 P.C. 4/49
Jr. Radio Electrician .. G. C. Gould ....c..ccv0e Nov. 1/33 1,000 00 P.C. 113/2102
Maintenance Man ...... J. Wi Houghton 20 bioes Oct. 30/33 1,000 00 &
Broadcast Inspector ....H. Chevrier ............ Qetli 133 2,000 00 P.C. 6/1405
ANNGUNCET  o's o oas oiale oalse AR eguin L T e ety Jan. 1/34 1,600 00 P.C. 113/2102
Publicity Helper ....... B H, Wooding 5 s Apr. 1/35 90 00 P.C. 2/1597
(per month)
Script Writer v oviivideus Horace Brown ......... Apr. 1/35 30 00 o
(per week)
Acoustical Engineer ... D. G. McKinstry ....... Sept. 1/35 2,280 00 P.C. 11/2868
Radio Engineer, C1. I ... H. M. Smith ,..... ... Sept. 1/35 3,420 .00 ed
B ECIBEaTY L ohiais s e odat BP Landey i ceien Feb. 18/33 5,000 00 C.S.C. Cert.
and P.C. 8/2056
Arch. Draughtsman ..... A. A. Bourke .......... Mar. 25/33 1,500 00 C8.C. Cert.
Clerk, Grade 2 8. Sehnobb 7 ok Jakiig o Nov. 23/34 1,080 00 2
Clerk, Grade 2 . oo sl 3R s Apr. 15/35 1,080 00 7
Stenographer, Gr, 2 ...s.J. Danig .. oo e im. Apr. 11/33. 1,080 00 2

%) i Y G R omon N S Jan. 31/34 1,080 00 &2

= ey e P Charbonneat fal e Oct. 4/34 1,080 00 9

& P2 e s KN R A fa s ST S Nov. 3732 1,080 00 K

4 LA A C. MeAnkin: e s Ehii June 17/33 1,200 00 bis

e 2 i B MeAuley A .. Feb. 1/33 1,080 00 2

it » """ B. O'Brien ... Apr. 1/33 1,380 00 g

< PRSP 0§58 & eR 0 g Halloran . Sept. 18/33 1,080 00 2

o ¥ e MG Tpneh s e Feb. 6/35 1,080 00 %

% PA 15t M. Spence .... May 8/35 1,080 00 2
Stenographer, Gr. 1 .... M. Bance ... « Nav." - 5/85 720 00 4
BYDIRE BE52 oot baans 0. Fayreau i valbineeh Feb. 1/35 1,080 00 &

Offce i Boy & i i see P Palef | ik b s Dec. 18/35 600 00 2

The loan of the following permanent employees of various departments
was arranged by the Civil Service Commission pursuant to Staff Control Regula-
tions; the date indicated is the date from which the loan was effective:—

Clerk, Grade 4 ....ios.d Lieethain .« o' onsas Apr. 10/33 $1,920 00 On loan |
= ip A WP . W. R Mortimer ' boedss June 30/33 1,740 00 ”’ |
, s SRS . G. Rlchardson . Sept. 22/33 1,800 00 4 {

i e e . G. Paradls ..... .Nov. 6/33 1,620 00 ”
i il SR .H. W. Gibson .May 1/33 1,140 00 7 .
Stenographer, Gr. 2 . .. G Appleby: i sl s July 5/33 1,380 00 ’: .
3 2t A. G. Gillespie ......... June 30/33 1,380 00 i !



(Part time)

Supervisor of Studios .. A. H. Houde .......... Sept
Broadcast Operator I 3

Continuity Writer ...... V. i .
ADNOUNCET .+ .cvioesssoaise i ~. Jan.

Clerk, Grade 4 ......... I Babler s Oct.
Stenographer, Qe 2 Yo Lo Rivet - snrigslans o Dec.
Chief Broad. Operator WA Reidia sl io ires Apr.
Broadcast Operator ....E. D. Roberts .......... Apr.
Asst. Broad. Operator ..G. Hudon ............. Nov.
Radio Electrician ...... C. Denonconrt: i oess Nov.
Superv. French Press ... L. Houlé ............... Oct.
Junior Amnouncer - ..... M. Gagnon ............ July
(Bilingual) :
Musical Director ....... o0 GagnIer s Ui e s Apr.
Music Librarian ....... Alice Myette .......... Apr.
AMIOUTICOR .o s > 40 etoin's .+ J. Desbaillets ......... Apr.

N e e s H, R."Pellebier s L %05 Apr
L T e S B T We L. Charland ....... Apr
AR 1 et oy A P ledue: nc ks o g tes Apr
e T A R M. Lrendron 5700 % a3 Oct.
Continuity Assistant ... Alberta Smith ......... Apr.
£ il O BalvietEr S 5 Apr,

Station Manager and
Regional Program

Broad. Service

Station Manager ....... Chas. Shearer. .......... May
(Broad. Super.)
Chief Broad. Operator .. H. E. S. Hamilton ..... May
Broadeast Operator ....R. K. Anderson ........ Apr.
Asst. Broad. Operator .. S. Howker .......c0u0es Apr.
o ° ] ..dJ. A. Pickard 4
& e e Sy Carlylel o L Apr.
Maintenance Man ..... T.C. R. Walsh .
s il sy J. Desautels
Announcer (Apprent’e).S. S. Brown ........... Apr.
o e AN s B.CADAOTEON s i s s o'n i sts Apr.
ot AL LAY, RS Maw o5 Sept.

Director, Ont. ....... Stanley Maxted ........ Sept.
Supervisor of Studios ..R. Lucas .............. Sept.
Music Librarian ....... B, Meigner': . .0 0000 Sept.
Music Arranger ........ o Waimnan ..k s i Apr.
Telephone Operator .... W. G. Milne ........... Sept.

ADI ..Mwo coumssmzv
EALIFA.I STUDIOS

’ Date of
Position Incumbent Appt.
Maritime Regional ;
all’rogra.m Pirector’ .ve JIB Willis ootais, unies e NOoW * °1/38
Stenographer, Gr. 1 ....G. M. Duff ............ Feb. 2/34
Asst. Broad. Operator .. L. A. Canning ......... Apr. 1/35

STATION ORCK, QUEBEC

9/34
1/33
1/34

9/33
11/33

STATION CRCO, OTTAWA

15/33

15/33
1/33
1/33
1/33
1/33

25/35
1/35

1/35
1/35
1/35

STATION CRCOT, TORONTO

1/35
1/35
1/35
1/35

1/35

Salary
Rate

$3,000 00

7200 00

25 00
(per week)

25 00
(per week)
70 00

(per week)
30 00
(per week)
45 00
(per week)
45 00
(per week)
35 00
(per week)
25 00
(per week)
35 00
(per week)
90 00
(per month)
90 00
(per month)

$4,000 00

2,400 00
2,100 00
1.800 00
1,800 00
1,800 00
1,350 00
25 00
(per week)
23 00

(per week)
20 00
(per week)
23 08

(per week)

$4.750 00
3,600 00
1,080 00

35 00

(per week)

1 00

5

Authority

P.C:
C8.C.C

PG

P.C.

113/2102
ert.
2/1597

7/1235

»
»

C.8.C. Cert.
On loan

B.C;

PC.
P

B.C:

P,
15O

1

ke
Qa

PiC:

P.C.

PC.
£.CL

(}/ 1405

})13/2102
10/2056
2/1597

»
»
»
»

»

1/3206
2/1597

»

6/1405

»
»
»
»
»

. 1/1597
. 2/1597

!,l /2868

2/1597
11/2868
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STATION CROT, TORONTO—Concluded
B ; Date of Salary
Position Incumbent Appt. Rute
Telephone Operator ....D. E King ....ov0vina.n Sept. 1/35 720 00
Broad. Service d
Telephone Operator ....B. E. Deacon .......... Sept. 1/35 900 00
Broad. Service
Traffic Clerk ...... Ve B WeoBakert St e Sept. 1/35 1,500 00
Broadcast Operator .....F. J. Garrod ....... ..Sept. 1/35 1.800 00
» i oo J. N. Mogridge .. ept. 1/35 1,800 00
Asst. Broad. Operator ..J. A. Spalding ... Sept. 1/35 1,800 00
2 2 % .. C. W. Speer . Sept. 1/35 1,800 00
b & i .. 8. J. Demert . Nov. 1/35 1,800 00
% o) ” . J. A. Murphy .. ..Nov. 1/35 1,620 00
2 2 % was kL el VRIS 2 S Rt Nov. 1/35 1,500 00
2 2 5 vo MEvVd Wierry et Do Sept. 1/35 1,320 00
Chief Announcer .......C. Jennings ............ Sept. 1/35 46 15
: (per week)
Senior Announcer ...... H. G. Walker ......... Sept. 1/35 32 30
(per week)
ANNOUNCEL ss+vesnses P L o s BRI O Sept. 1/35 $ 28 84
: (per week)
A TR A ooy vk A I AN o e sl iialata e Sept. 1/35 28 84
(per week)
AR A R JeNorman Lucas ... e.-4. Sept. 1/35 28 84
(per week)
JARIEOT | eialor 5 olea A e Wi Burke Lo e Sept. 1/35 1,140 00
District Publ’y Agent ol M Ballltissmo ineng Sept. 24/33 2,000 00
Stenographer, Gr. 3 ....C. Wares .....c.covvnnn Oct. 9/33 1,620 00
8 P e e NE - Bl aier (S S Gl Sept. 1/35 1,200 00
» bl e . Storey L savattiay Sept. 1/35 780 00

STATION COROT, BOWMANVILLE (Transmitter)
Radio Engineer, Cl. 3 .. W. A. Shane .......... 15/33 2,500 00

Asst. Broad. Operator .. A. R. McDonald .. 15/33 1,800 00

2 2 % vee K O, Fostér & 15/33 1,800 00

i 2 i <+ C. E. Bounsall . 15/33 1,800 00

7 % it ees L. S. Morley ... ; 15/33 1,800 00

4 i = vt B O AT % « M. 15/33 1,800 00

Maintenance Man ...... B G, Brown Uirln i S0 15/33 1,350 00

STATION CRCW, WINDSOR

Station Manager ....... Vacant i SNt i e 3,600 00

ANNOUNCET +v.vseeesosss Pas Aglen fo il s R Sl Apr. 1/33 1,800 00

42 R e S OBl SRR Nov. 1/35 25 00
(per week)

T N e S R s A G IS S e e Nov. 1/35 0 00
(per week)

Asst. Broad. Operator SR R 05N o bR SRR g - Sept. 1/35 1.500 00

% it # .A. W. Holmes ......... Nov. 1/35 1,320 00

Stenographer, Gr. 2 ....J. H. Murphy ......... Jan. 24/35 1,080 00

STRATHBURN FREQUENCY MONITORING STATION

Radio Engineer, Cl. 2 .. W. G. Richardson ..... July 1/35 2,100 00
REGINA
Western Regional
Program Director .... H. N. Stovin ... ...... Oct. 19/33 $3,000 00
Stenographer; Gr. 2 u.» ColiMachn 13,0 in o visens Nov. 13/33 1,080 00

STATION CRCV, VANCOUVER

Station Manager ....... J R Radford o nsis bs Jan. 1/35 3,600 00
Chief Broad. Operator .. F. B. C. Hilton ........ Jan. 1/35 2,400 00
Station Manager ....... J. G. McMurtrie ....... Jan. 1/35 2,400 00

(Transferred from H.Q. to CRCV as Broadcast Operator, Sept. 1/35)
Asst. Broad. Operator .. D. Claringbull ......... Apr. 16/33 1,800 00
Maintenance Man ...... G. A. Humphries ....... Apr. 1/33 %,(%58 88

Stenographer, Gr. 2 .... D. A, Yeomans ........ Sept. 1/33

March 31, 1936.

Authority
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

House or Commons, Room 375,
Tusspay, April 7, 1936.

The Special Parliamentary Committee on Radio matters met at 11 o’clock
this day, the Chairman, Mr. Beaubien, presiding; the following members of the
Committee were present:

Messieurs: Beaubien, Bertrand (Laurier), Bouchard, Cahan, Campbell,
Cochrane, Edwards, Howard, Howe, Johnston (Bow River), MecIntosh, Martin,
Massey, Plunkett, Ryan, Slaght and Woodsworth—17.

In attendance: Representatives of the Canadian Press; Messieurs: W. B.
Preston, Chairman (Brantford Expositor) ; Senator W. A. Buchanan (Lethbridge
Herald) ; E. T. Archibald (Montreal Star) ; Oswald Mayrand (La Presse, Mont-
real); V. A. McNeil (Montreal Gazette) ; E. Norman Smith (Ottawa Journal);
W. Rupert Davies (Kingston Whig-Standard); J. F. B. Livesay, General
Manager, R. K. Carnegie, Parliamentary Supt., The Canadian Press.

Also in attendance: Mr. Charlesworth, Chairman, Commissioner Steel and
several other officers of the Canadian Radio Commission.

Also present: Officers of the Radio Branch, Department of Marine, and
others concerned in radio matters.

The Chairman submitted the following list of letters received up to and
including to-day’s date, viz:—
. Mrs. George Lumley, Ash Grove, Aubernton, Sask. March the 28th.
. Mr. P. F. Focht, Quinton, Sask. March the 28th.
. Mr. Watson Bair, 20 Shirley Ave., Moncton, N.B. March the 28th.
Mr. Roland E. Redmonds, Syke St., Meaford, Ont. March the 30th.
Mr. C. Lamb, R.R. No. 1, Kelso, Sask. March the 30th.
Hon. W. J. Major, Attorney General, Winnipeg, Man. March the 31st.
Mr. R. W. Asheroft, C.P.R. Building, Toronto, Ont. March the 31st.
Mr. J. J. Monerieff, The Winnipeg Tribune, Winnipeg Man. March 31st.

Mr. D. Swailes, Sec.-Treas., Winnipeg Musicians’ Association, Winni-
peg, Man. April the 1st.

10. Mr. Henri Miro, 1233 MacKay St., Montreal, Que. April the 3rd.

11. Mr. Paul Coffey, Sec.-Treas., Young Men’s Canadian Club, Montreal,
Que. April the 3rd.

12. Mr. George Christie, Eckville, Alta. March the 27th.
13. Mr. Arthur Richford, 443 Kinistino, Crescent Hill, Sask. March the 30th.

14. Madame Laurence Lavoie Durieux, 5603 Bordeaux, Montreal, Que.
April the 3rd.

15. Mr. J. Evims, Hinchliffe, Sask. April the 3rd.

16. J. A. Fugere, Priest, Amos, Que. April the 1st.

17. Mr. Phil. Lalonde, 980 Ste-Catherine St., Montreal, Que. April the 3rd.
18. Mr. W. W. Lindley, Semans, Sask. March the 30th.

19. Cercle St-Jacques de I’A.C.J.C., Causapscal, Que. April the 2nd.
16205—13
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iv SPECIAL COMMITTEE

~ Mr. Charlesworth, for the Radio Commission, submitted the following,
viz:— ‘

1. Recommendation submitted by Mr. Thomas Maher to the Chairman,
Parliamentary Committee on Radio Broadcasting, 1934, and to the Rt. Hon.
I({EB.Sl?ennett, Prime Minister, on national broadcasting in Canada, May, 1934.

x. 8).
2. Copies of correspondence—
(a) Between the Comptroller of the Treasury and the Canadian Radio
Broadcasting Commission.
(b) Between the Auditor General and the Canadian Radio Broadeasting
Commission. (Ex. 9).

3. Twenty-five copies of P.C. 11/2868, dated September 16, 1935, authoriz-
ing appointment of certain staff at Station CRCT, Toronto. (Ex. 10).

4. Twenty-five copies of instructions to Station Managers re observance of
Article 90, as amended, of Rules and Regulations Canadian Radio Broadcasting
Commission. (Ex. 11).

5. Copy of poster, with covering letter, sent to Station Managers, re
Article 90. (Ex. 12).

6. Twenty-five copies of list of national institutions, universities, societies,
clubs, ete.,, and Departments of Dominion and Provincial Governments, pro-
vided free time for broadecast purposes. (Ex. 13).

7. Schedule of station rates for commercially sponsored programs. (Ex. 14).

8. Schedule of network broadcasts, Conservative Party, 1935. (Ex. 15).

9. Schedule of network broadcasts, Liberal Party, 1935. (Ex. 16).

10. Schedule of network broadcasts, Co-Operative Commonwealth Federa-
tion, 1935. (Ex. 17).

11. Schedule of network broadcasts, Reconstruction Party, 1935. (Ex. 20).

Hon. Mr. Howe presented a statement of complaints, as referred to at the
previous meeting; same to be placed in the record. (Incorporated in this day’s
evidence).

The Chairman informed the Committee that he had received some com-
munications in the form of short briefs, and would like to have the opinion of
the Committee with respect to the disposition of them; whether they should be
printed in the record, or merely listed amongst other communications received,
in the Minutes of Proceedings.

After some discussion, Mr. Edwards moved, seconded by Mr. Plunkett, that
briefs from organized bodies be printed in the record.

After further discussion, Mr. Edwards withdrew his motion, and on motion
of Mr. Massey, seconded by Mr. Howard, it was

Ordered: That a brief précis be made of such communications, and entered
in the Minutes of Proceedings; then placed in the hands of the sub-committee
on agenda for decision as to a further disposition of same.

A brief summary follows:

A letter, somewhat in the form of a brief, from Mr. Watson Baird, of Mone-
ton, N.B. (above listed as No. 3, list of communications), praising the Commission
for its many improvements, and offering various suggestions for still further
improvement. Advocating a more general knowledge of both languages in
Canada. v
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" CANADIAN RADIO COMMISSION v

A letter in the form of a short brief, from Mr. J. J. Moncrieff, of the

~ Winnipeg Tribune, formerly a conductor of a large choral organization of 250
members, advocating a great orchestra for Canada, as a National Orchestra,
including the finest talent to be procured in Canada, on the lines of the BBC
in the British Isles. (This communication is listed above as No. 8.)

Comments submitted by Mr. D. Swailes, Secretary-Treasurer of the Winni-
peg Musicians’ Association, suggesting that the operations of the Canadian Radio
Commission have resulted in increased unemployment for Canadian musicians;
gives his reasons. He advocates the inclusion of a competent, outstanding
musician in a new radio organization, and suggests that their organization of

~ professional musicians should be invited to sit in joint conference with the
national radio organization, to organize musical broadcasts. (This communica-
tion is listed above as No. 9.)

Recommendations from the United Farmers of Canada, signed by Mr. Frank
Eliason, Secretary, That the Commission continue as a publicly owned utility,
making 12 additional recommendations for its improvement.

Long letter from Mr. J. Norman Robertson, of Vancouver, B.C., who states
he has had an application for a considerable time before the Department of
Marine and Radio Commission, for the installation and operation of a 15,000
Watt Broadcasting station, in Vancouver. The reason given for refusal to his
request, thus far is, he states, due to lack of an available channel. The repre-
sentation is of considerable length; a proper summary cannot very well be made
in the Minutes of Proceedings.

Mr. W. B. Preston, President, Canadian Press, called, submitted the repre-
gentations of the Canadian Press, and was questioned at length.

Printed memoranda were supplied by the Canadian Press, and handed to
each member of the Committée present.

The witness retired.

Mr. J. F. B. Livesay, General Manager, Canadian Press, called and addressed
the Committee, and answered numerous questions.

The witness retired.

By request, Commander C. P. Edwards, Director of Radio, Department
of Marine, read a prepared statement of Stations licensed for reception of Press
messages, 1935-36.

(Incorporated in this day’s Minutes of Evidence.)

Mr. E. Norman Smith, Vice President, Canadian Press (Ottawa Journal)
addressed the Committee, giving his views regarding overseas foreign news,
United States news and Canadian news.

The witness retired.

Mr. Charlesworth recalled. He submitted a statement prepared by Mr.
Buchanan, Director of Publicity for the Commission, giving a summary of
complaints and commendations that have come in to the Commission. A copy
of same was distributed to each member of the Committee.

‘The witness was examined briefly in connection with Canadian Press broad-
casting. It being one o’clock, the witness retired.

The Chairman asked for a decision of the Committee as to the next day of
meeting after the Easter recess. After discussion it was decided to meet on
Thursday, April 23, at 11 o’clock.

The Committee adjourned.
E. L. MORRIS,

Clerk of the Commaittee.
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MINUTES OF EVIDENCE

House or ComMmons, Room 375,
OrTAwA, April 7, 1936.

The special committee appointed to enquire into the administration of the
Canadian Radio Broadcasting Act of 1932 and amendments, met at 11 a.m.,
the Chairman, Mr. A. L. Beaubien, presiding.

The CuamrMmaN: Gentlemen, we have a quorum now, and if you will come
to order we shall begin our meeting. At the last meeting of the committee the
chairman of the commission was asked to produce certain files and documents.
This list has been handed to me, which I shall read. It is as follows:—

LIST OF DOCUMENTS SUBMITTED TO SPECIAL COMMITTEE
OF HOUSE OF COMMONS ON RADIO BROADCASTING
ON APRIL 7, 1936

1. Recommendation submitted by Mr. Thomas Maher to the Chair-
man, Parliamentary Committee on Radio Broadecasting, 1934, and to the
Rt. Hon. R. B. Bennett, Prime Minister, on national broadcasting in
Canada, May, 1934.

2. Copies of correspondence—

(a) Between the Comptroller of the Treasury and the Canadian
Radio Broadcasting Commission;

(b) Between the Auditor General and the Canadian Radio
Broadcasting Commission.

3. Twenty-five copies of P.C. 11/2868, dated September 16, 1935,
authorizing appointment of certain staff at Station CRCT, Toronto.

4. Twenty-five copies of instructions to Station Managers re observ-
ance of Article 90, as amended, of Rules and Regulations Canadian Radio
Broadcasting Commission.

5. Copy of poster, with covering letter, sent to Station Managers re
Article 90.

6. Twenty-five copies of list of national institutions, universities,
societies, clubs, ete., and Departments of Dominion and Provincial Gov-
ernments, provided free time for broadcast purposes.

7. Schedule of station rates for commercially sponsored programs.

8. Schedule of network broadcasts, Conservative Party, 1935.

9. Schedule of network broadcasts, Liberal Party, 1935.

10. Schedule of network broadcasts, Co-operative Commonwealth
Federation, 1935.

11. Schedule of network broadcasts, Reconstruction Party, 1935.
Explanatory—

1. The Commission has no record of any memorandum prepared by
any one member of the Commission concerning Major Gladstone Murray.

2. Complaints and objections to broadcasts in Dominion election
campaign are on Files No. 4-2-14, and No. 4-2-22, submitted to Com-
mittee on April 2, 1936.

3. The Commission allows a discount of 33% per cent on church ser-
vices broadcast by stations operated by the Commission.
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.Mr. Howe, th'e minister, has just handed me a statement of the complaints
received, which will be put into the record unless you want me to read it now.
I d{?hm)t Wisc}il to take the time to do it unless you wish it read. It will be printed
in the record.

STATEMENT FILED WITH SPECIAL COMMITTEE ON THE
CANADIAN RADIO COMMISSION, 1936, BY THE
MINISTER OF MARINE, OTTAWA

CoMPLAINTS AND COMMENDATIONS RECEIVED IN THE DEPARTMENT OF
MARINE CONCERNING CANADIAN BROADCASTING AND THE CANADIAN
Rapio Broapcasting CommissioN BETWEEN JUNE 28,

1934 AxD APpriL 6, 1936

(These communications were referred to the Radio Commission, as
received.)

I. Complaints—Total: 262.
(1) Against Programs broadeast: 50:—

(a¢) Too much French—13 complaints.
(b) Not enough French—8 complaints.
(¢) Quality of programs broadeast—29 complaints.

(2) Interference: 69:—

(a) Between Canadian stations—6 complaints.
(b) United States stations interfering with Canadian stations
—29 complaints.
(¢) Mexican stations interfering with Canadian stations—30
complaints.
(d) Canadian stations interfering with United States stations
—4 complaints.
(3) Poor reception of Canadian stations: 118.
(4) Wavelengths assigned to Canadian stations: 18.
(5) General, unclassified: 7.

+

II. Commendation: 8.
Eight letters of commendation of work of Commission.
I have received quite a lot of correspondence. Some of it is in the form of a
brief or memorandum, and some is just in the form of a letter setting out com-
plaints or just making suggestions. I should like to have your advice with
regard to it.

Mr. McInTtosu: Are those briefs lengthy?

The Cuairman: They are not very lengthy, but the secretary of the com-
mittee informs me that it is usual for these briefs to be printed in the proceed-
ings so that those who send the briefs will know that they have been given full
consideration, the members being made acquainted with the contents by that
means. What is the wish of the committee in that regard?

Mr. Ryan: Could you give us an idea as to where they come from?

The CuamrMAN: I can give you the details. Some are from Saskatchewan,
from the United Farmers of Saskatchewan.

Mr. McIxTosa: Would you print all of those briefs?

The CuarMaN: They are not very voluminous.

Mr. McIntosH: Or would the sub-committee read them first and decide
whether they are worth printing?

B Lt



B e e

CANADIA}V RADIO COMMISSION - 65

" The CuamMan: It is up to the committee. I am just asking what you want
to do. I might state that the sub-committee has not been able to meet on
account of the fact that the members belonging to it have been so busy. Some
of the ministers are on the sub-committee.

Mr. BerrranD: I think the sub-committee should read them first and decide
whether they should be printed. There might be two or three briefs on the same
question. :

Mr. McInrtosu: I think the sub-committee should peruse them first, and
then you will know where you are at in regard to publishing them.

Mr. Ryan: Mr. Chairman, I have every confidence in the sub-committee.
At the same time there is nobody on it from the Maritime Provinces, and they
might leave out certain matters that those provinces might consider important.
1 would prefer to see them printed, if possible.

The CHAIRMAN: I might state that they are not very voluminous.

Mr. Mcl~tosu: I think, if there is anything of importance in them, they
should be printed. That is my idea. But there might be one or two, when
you came to read the contents, that might not be worth printing.

Mr. Epwarps: I move that they all be printed in the record.

Mr. PuunkerT: I second that motion.

Mr. Epwarps: That is, providing they are not going to be too long.

Mr. StacHT: Before you put that motion, Mr. Chairman, I should like to
say a word. I am afraid that will let you in for some very voluminous printing
as the weeks go by. While I think the sub-committee should have the right to
reject any brief that is put forward, I would make the suggestion that all
briefs be listed as they come in, showing who they are from and what topic
they deal with, and that this list be shown in our day’s proceedings. Then we
can read that before the next meeting. I would suggest that they all be avail-
able, in the hands of the clerk, to all members of the committee. Then at some
later stage it may be decided by someone as to what shall be printed and what
shall not. There is the possibility that you might get a brief from an individual
away back somewhere that was 50 pages long and which dealt with some little
matter with respect to his own station but which was not of national concern. It
seems to me that it is a little bit dangerous to put on record now the motion for
the printing of all briefs that might reach us.

_ Mr. WoopsworrH: It seems to me that the suggestion is a very good one,
if we could have it enlarged a little bit, and have a précis given; that is, com-
plaint with regard to such and such. Then anyone who is interested can turn up
the original brief and follow it up. That would be about all any of us would
get read anyway. We are interested in this, that or the other thing; and as long
as we had it available on the table, as it were, it would be all right.

Mr. Prunkerr: What are you going to do if there is the statement made
that some were printed and some were not? It seems to me that the only open
way is to print all or none at all.

Mr. Epwarps: We can decide that later.

Hon. Mr. Howe: In any event, they will all be laid on the table.

Mr. Epwarps: So long as they are all available, I am not so fussy about
them being printed, if they are voluminous.

_ The CrarMAN: I might inform you that they will all be available, because
I intend to put them in the hands of the clerk of the committee. Any member
will be able to peruse them at any time he may wish. They will be listed so
that any member of the committee may consult them with ease.

Mr. Massey: Might it not be desirable to print the source or origin and
a very concise digest of the contents, so that if it is of interest to any one mem-
bpr of the committee to see that particular brief, he will know where he is at?
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If you just say it is by such and such a person, it may deal with matters that
are not worth his while, and he has to read a lot of matter to no purpose. I
think a digest should be added as to what they deal with.

The CuHARMAN: Do you withdraw your motion, Mr. Edwards?

Mr. Epwarps: Yes.

Mr. Massey: I will make that suggestion of mine in the form of a motion.
Mr. Howarp: I will second that.

Motion agreed to.
The CHAIRMAN: At our last meeting, gen‘tlemeri, it was decided that the

Canadian Press would be given the right of way this morning, and we have
representatives here from the Canadian Press. I understand that Mr. Preston

is going to present the brief. Is it your pleasure that I should ecall on Mr.

Preston?
Some Hon. MEMBERS: Yes.

The Cramrmax: Will you come forward, Mr. Preston? I might say that
we are going to distribute to the members of the committee a copy of the brief
which the Canadian Press is presenting and which is headed “ News on the Air.”

WirLiam B. Preston, President of the Canadian Press, called.

Wirness: Mr. Chairman, members of the Radio Committee and gentle-
men: Firstly, let me say that, as representatives of the Canadian Press, we are
very much indebted to you indeed for this opportunity of making a very brief
representation on the subject of “ News on the Air.” Before I proceed with that,
however, T should like to take the opportunity of introducing to you my col-
leagues on this radio committee which was appointed by the board of directors
of the Canadian Press at a recent meeting. 1 might say that, owing to the
great distance involved, we were unable to bring the entire committee with us
to-day, some of them being as far away as Vancouver and some in the east in
St. John. But we have about half of the committee; and as their chairman, I
shall introduce them, asking the members to stand as I call them out, so that
they may be seen.

First, there is Mr. Norman Smith, of the Ottawa Journal; Senator Buchanan,
with whom you are all familiar; Mr. Maynard, of La Presse, Montreal; Mr.
MecNeil, of the Montreal Gazette; Mr. Archibald, of the Montreal Star; Mr.
Davies, of the Kingston Whig-Standard; Mr. Livesay, manager of the Canadian
Press; and Mr. Carnegie, the parliamentary representative of the Canadian
Press, as well.

I do not suppose it is at all necessary for me to introduce to you or make you
acquainted with the Canadian Press. I do wish, however, to distinguish in your
minds between the Canadian Press and the Canadian Daily Newspaper As_so-
ciation. The Canadian Daily Newspaper Association is the business organization
of the Daily Publishers of Canada. The Canadian Press is the great news-
gathering and distributing association of the daily publishers of this country.
The Canadian Press is in this country what the Associated Press is in the United
States, what Reuters is in England; and we hope that you will agree with us when
we say that it is supplying the people of this country with a very efficient news
service. Through its own representatives at London and at Geneva, and through
the efforts of its allies—the Associated Press in New York, Reuters in London
and the Havas Agency in Paris—it covers the news from the four corners of the
world. In Canada, by a system of leased telegraph wires running from one end
of the country to the other, from Halifax to Victoria, it gathers and distributes,

[Mr. W. B. Preston.]
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through the co-operation of its publisher members, the daily newspapers of this
country, a very complete domestic news service, the accuracy and the
impartiallity of which, I think, is very generally recognized throughout the entire
dominion.

I have no thought in the world of recounting to you a history of the
Canadian Press; but perhaps it is well that I should recall just for a moment
the fact that the Canadian Press was created in 1917 through the nationalization
of all the independent news agencies of the dominion by Act of Parliament. This
Act of Parliament made a grant to the Canadian Press of $50,000 per annum,
to assist that organization in bridging, in a news sense, those great gaps between
Saint John, New Brunswick and Quebec, between Ottawa and Winnipeg and
between Calgary, and Vancouver over the mountains. This grant of $50,000 was
continued until 1924 when, at the request of the Canadian Press, it was abolished.
The members of the Canadian Press felt, at that time, that the acceptance
of a subsidy in any form from the government might jeopardize its freedom, and
it was for this very reason that the. Canadian Press declined the offer from the
Radio commission of a fee for the news bulletins that we have been supplying to
the commission during the last two or three years.

The question of news on the air has engaged the very thoughtful considera-
tion of the directors and members of the Canadian Press for the last five years.
During that period news on the air has become progressively more inmportant.
News has come through from the United States, had been coming through from
the United States, infilterated across the border, most of it quite unreliable, some
of it very misleading and a great deal of it filled with propaganda. It was for
that reason that the Canadian Press made an arrangement with the Radio
Broadcasting commission for two five-minute news emissions in each evening.
A little later cn it was decided for various reasons to consolidate those two
emissions in one emission of ten minutes at 10.45 each evening. Backed by the
reputation of the Canadian Press, its record for reliability and accuracy, we
believe that that news bulletin which has been broadcast each evening at 10.45,
has been generally regarded in this country as an accurate survey and review
of the news of the day. But if the Canadian Press is to provide an alernative to
the incessant radio news that is coming from across the border, it is necessary
for the Canadian Press to be on the air, instead of once a day, at least three or
four times a day.

The Canadian Press is quite agreeable to supplying the news bulletins free
of charge. It merely asks that some method of distribution be evolved, and it is
in that connection that we are asking the co-operation of this committee.

The Canadian Press feels that in offering to supply this news, it is offering
a commodity of very great value. We do so because we believe it is in the
national interest that the news in this country be safeguarded and kept under
Canadian sponsorship. The Canadian Press feels that news on the air should
be just as accurate, just as reliable, just as impartial, and just as free from
propaganda as the news that the Canadian Press is supplying by land.

In a general way that is the position of the Canadian Press on this matter
of news on the air. But to summarize, with your permission I shall read to

you the memorandum, copies of which you have. I have to change my glasses
to do this job.

By Mr. Martin:

Q. Before you go on, I should like to clear up one point. You said the
Canadian Press had declined to accept any remuneration from the commission
for the use of its service. Did you not at one time receive $500 a month, and
then discontinue it?—A. No; it was offered but never accepted.
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WirNess: The memorandum is as follows:—

CONCERNING NEWS ON THE AIR, SUBMITTED BY THE CANADIAN PRESS
FOR CONSIDERATION OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE HOUSE or COMMONS ON
Rabi0.

Honourable Mr. Chairman and genltemen of the committee:

On behalf of the Canadian Press we beg to submit:—

(1) News has become an outstanding feature in all radio programs
An increasing number of Canadian commercial stations pick off the air
at nominal cost short-wave news broadcasts originating in the United
States. These lack British character and in some cases are quite irre-
sponsible, misleading and inaccurate.

(2) The Canadian Press is concerned that news on the air be as
accurate and reliable, as Canadian and British, as that it supplies the
daily newspapers of Canada. Three years ago with that object in view
the Canadian Press agreed to furnish to the Canadian Radio Broad-
casting Commission news bulletins for its national network. At present
a bulletin of about 1,200 words requiring 10 minutes emission is broad-
cast from Head Office of the Canadian Press in Toronto at 10.45 p.m.
supplemented by earlier bulletins for the Commission’s Maritime and
French networks. The value of this bulletin is firmly established.

(3) The first tentative agreement between the Commission and the
Canadian Press called for the payment by the Commission of the sum 1
of $500 a month. This was to cover the cost of preparing the bulletins. ‘
The directors of The Canadian Press subsequently decided to make no ]
charge for this service to the Commission, believing it was a publie i
duty to assist in the dissemination of accurate news by radio. i

:
l
i
i
i
|

(4) Because the commission’s network operates only in the evening,

The Canadian Press broadcast is unable to meet foreign competition

during day hours. The Canadian Press believes that with the co-

operation of the government it can meet this competition by:

(@) daytime commission network facilities extended to cover the entire
broadecasting field; or

(b) short-wave-emission by Canadian Marconi at stated hours capable of

being copied off the air by all broadcasting stations; or |
(c) telegraph hookup of Canadian National and Canadian Pacific land ‘wA

lines at stated hours directly available to all broadcasting stations. !

At present the commission network (a) is confined to evening heurs
and does not include every station.

Under short-wave emission (b) each broadcasting station would pay
a small fee to be credited to the cost of emission by Canadian Marconi.
In addition the station would pay the cost of the operator copying the
bulletins off the air.

Under telegraph hookup (c) each broadcasting station would pay
a small fee to be credited to the cost of transmission and be divisible
between the two telegraph companies. There would be no further cost
for a copying operator because the bulletins would be automatically
received on telegraph printers at all radio stations. Speed, accuracy and
continuity of reception thus would be assured.

(5) Believing it is in the national interest news on the air should be
thoroughly Canadian and British in character, and an effective substitute
for foreign services, The Canadian Press invites the co- operation of your
committee and of the government to that end. As its contribution The
Canadian Press offers to prepare free of cost at its head office a service
of radio news bulletins for emission at convenient periods by the Cana-

[Mr. W. B. Preston.]
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dian Radio Broadcasting Commission and individual broadcasting sta-
tions, provided that these news bulletins when put on the air shall
be free from advertising and shall not in any way be used with sponsored
programs.

(6) The Canadian Press asks that the Canadian Radio Broadcasting
Commission, or other controlling body, shall continue to protect Cana-
dian newspapers and The Canadian Press from the unauthorized use of
their news by any radio station.

The Canadian Press further suggests that all broadcasting of news,
including its character, volume and periods of emission, should be sub-
ject to regulation by the Commission.

All of which is respectfully submitted on behalf of the Radio com-
mittee, The Canadian Press.

Orrawa, April-7, 1936.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Preston, is there any other member of your executive
who desires to say anything?
Wirness: Not unless you have some questions to ask.

The CHAIRMAN: Are there any members of the committee who wish to ask
questions on this memorandum?

Mr. Ryan: I should like to ask a question.

By Mr. Ryan:

Q. Has there been a time when this proposition was put forward to the
Radio commission? Is this the first time that you have made a suggestion such
as this to the Radio commission?—A. Yes.

Q. Have you taken up with the commission at any time anything along
these lines?—A. No, not along these lines, sir.

By Mr. Slaght:

- Q. Mr. Preston, in clause 6 of your concise memorandum you indicate that
“the Canadian Press asks that the Canadian Radio Broadcasting Commission
or other controlling body shall continue to protect Canadian newspapers and
the Canadian Press from the unauthorized use of their news by any radio
station.” Can you elaborate that- a little bit? Frankly, I do not know what
regulation you seek. If it is desired that this committee make a recommendation
as to that, we ought to know, perhaps, what the meaning of it is—A. I shall be
very glad to explain that. I shall ask Mr. Livesay to explain that.

Mr. Livesay: Under the rules and regulations of the Canadian Radio Broad-
casting Commission of April 1, 1933, Mr. Slaght, under the heading of News
Broadcasts, which are found on page 18, the following appear:—

“101. Canadian radio broadcasting stations shall not transmit any
news or information of any kind published in any newspaper or obtained,
collected, collated or co-ordinated by any newspaper or association of
newspapers, or any news agency or service, except the following:—

(a) Such news bulletins as are released regularly from the
various bureaus of Canadian Press for the express use of broadcasting
stations in Canada.

(b) Local news under arrangements to be made by each station
individually with its local newspaper or newspapers, or such news as
it may collect through its own employees or through such collection
agency or agencies as may be employed by the said station.

(¢) Newspapers broadcasting false or misleading news shall be

prohibited from further broadcasting unless extenuating circumstances
can be shown.”
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May I explain, Mr. Chairman, very briefly, how this affects us? Before the
Radio Broadcasting commission came into being, we were subjected to the pirat-
ing of our news, both Canadian Press and the individual newspapers, by various
radio broadcasting stations throughout the country; and apparently we had no
redress. It was doubtful. Under the copyright law we have really no redress
because by altering the actual text of the despatch it could be got away with,
if T may use that expression. There had not been established in this country,
as there has been elsewhere in the world, property in news. So we were wide
open to this, and it was not until the commission came into being and we began
talking to Mr. Charlesworth and put before him our case, that we made any
headway at all. We did not absolutely ask for this regulation; we did not see
the regulation text before it was passed by order in council. If we had we might
have suggested one or two alterations in it; but there is no question that the
passing of this regulation has stopped completely the theft of our news and that
of the newspapers. We therefore hope that it will be continued as a safeguard.

Mr. SuagaT: As I understand you, Mr. Livesay, the regulations you refer
to, which exist as far as the commission is concerned, you regard as ample
protection for you now.

Mr. Livesay: I do, with perhaps a little change.

Mr. SvacHT: You are asking to-day only for a continuation of that
protection?

Mr. Livesay: Yes.

Mr. SuacaT: Has there been any suggestion that they might be dropped, or
anything to cause any fear that they might be dropped, so far as the present
commission is concerned ?

Mr. Livesay: No, Mr. Slaght; but you understand the committee is looking
into the whole question of radio. We should like in the first place to make our
very grateful acknowledgment for this regulation and express the hope that
whatever new form radio may take this regulation will be continued.

Mr. WoopsworTH: Does this protection mean that any American news
agency would be precluded from being used or information obtained from any
American news agency could not be used by any Canadian station?

Mr. Livesay: No Mr. Woodsworth. As a matter of fact the American
service which we consider most dangerous from a national point of view is
brought directly into this country and rebroadeast from Canadian stations. It
can be bought at a very small cost, and it can be put out with sponsored pro-
grams; whereas Canadian Press news cannot be. Our difficulty is that we
cannot meet the competition of, for instance, Trans-radio; because we are only
on the air once in the evening,. We want to be on the air thrée or four times in
the day opposite Trans-radio so that the Canadian public may choose.

Mr. Martin: Would you include the Christian Science Monitor broad-
casts in the same category as Trans-radio?

Mzr. Livesay: No, sir; that is a very. fine service.

Mr. MarTiN: Has you association any objection to that service?

Mr. Livesay: I have never heard it mentioned in any meeting we have had
sir. I have employed it myself.

Mr. SvagHT: There is another point. Your report recommends or suggests
in the first place your present ten minutes on the air should be lengthened. You
think it desirable that you should be on the air three or four times a day?

Mr. Livesay: Yes.

Mr. SuaGgHT: And as I recall the way Mr. Preston put it, that would offset
the undesirable news from the south coming in, or rather to put you on where you
could compete with it?

[Mr. W. B. Preston.]
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Mr. Livesay: Yes.

' Mr. StacHT: Now, there are two or three matters I want to ask you about,

~ in the main, that might help the committee. First, have you taken that matter
up with the present commission and been refused, or is this the first request;
secondly, can you tell us what the practice is in Britain with Reuters, which is
the corresponding service that you spoke of of to-day; thirdly, can you tell us
what the practice is with the A.P. in the United States? In other words, in
Britain and the United States do the press services go on the air three or four
times a day as you are suggesting? There are three matters involved there.
Have you taken this up with the commission and been refused, or is this the
first suggestion?

Mr. Livesay: We have taken this matter up informally with the commission,
but the reply has been, “ unfortunately we are not on the air except in the
evening hours from 5.30 until midnight.” Therefore they have not the
facilities. A couple of months ago Mr. Preston, Mr. Norman Smith and myself
had an informal talk about it in Ottawa here, but it was confined entirely to
whether or not some avenue of distribution could be arranged to enable the
commission to go on the air during daylight hours. We do not ask, of course,
the commission to go on the air during daylight hours because we know it
involves formidable expense. We only ask that if they are on the air during
daylight hours then we be allowed to put out three extra news casts. That
is No. 1.

Mr. SuacHT: What is the practice in Britain as to the press service, Reuters,
going on the air once a day or several times a day?

Mr. Livesay: B.B.C. buys the four leading news services, which are delivered
to them in bulk by Reuters, Press Association, Central News and Exchange
Telegraph—there may be one other. Then it puts out its first news bulletin at
six o’clock in the evening. That runs half an hour. It puts out another one
at 9.30 in the evening, and it too runs half an hour. Then there is a small
regional one they put out at 1.30. That news goes out to regional stations. That
is the practice; they have no regular news during the day. If we were isolated
in this country as they are over there; if we were not subjected to the infiltration
at all hours of American broadcasting, no doubt it would be in the interest of
newspapers to have no broadcast before five in the evening. But we recognize
we have to meet this competition, and for this reason we want to get out and
meet it in the only way we can, which is offering every radio station a better
service for less money. Does that answer your second question?

Mr. SuacuT: Yes, as far as I am concerned.

Mr. Livesay: It is rather a long story, but there is a very bitter war
between the leading radio interests and the leading U.S. news associations—

Mr. SraguT: Personally I do not intend to provoke any long story.

Mr. Livesay: No; I am not going to say that.

Mr. StacHT: Just condense it and tell us what the practice is.

Mr, Livesay: Well the practice broke down, I might say. Now there is a
w_arfare going on, and the Associated Press will not allow its news to be sold
with advertising; neither will we. There was an agreement and it broke down.
The breakdown of that agreement, which was perhaps unduly restrictive, left
discretion to the member furnished with the news, which has behind it no
newspaper responsibility at all.

Mr. BoucHarp: May I ask if you contemplate putting the broadcast on
the air on standard time or daylight saving time? It is very important from
the standpoint, of the country people.

Mr. Livesay: We hope to arrange those bulletins on staggered time through-
out the country; but we find in practice that we cannot do it because it is on
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network and on telegraph lines, and therefore goes over the Radio. comﬁiésion,
station simultaneously to all parts of the country. In the summer time the

commission asks us to alter that time to daylight time; in the winter time we

are back on the old time. There is an earlier broadcast for the maritimes and

also for the French network. ' ’»

i Mr. MarTin: The headquarters of the Trans-radio unit is in Newark, New
ersey.

Mr. Livesay: Yes, the Bamburger deﬁartment store.

Mr. MartiN: What other agencies have you in mind, non-newspaper
agencies, to which you are objecting?

Mr. Livesay: That is the only one that has come actively into this country
and sold services to large Canadian stations to be rebroadecast. :

Mr. MarTin: Are you including in your recommendations or your requests
newspaper comments by individuals emanating in the United States like Walter
Winchell and that sort of thing?

Mr. Livesay: No; we do not regard that as being news, it seldom is.

Mr. McIntosa: The Canadian Press trans-Canada bulletin service is at
10.45?

Mr. Livesay: Yes.

Mr. MclInTosu: You want that extended into a larger and more compre-
hensive service. What hours do you prefer?

Mr. Livesay: We have been talking informally, but nothing is settled. I
think, in order to meet Trans-radio, it would have to be four times a day. We
would have to go on the air in the morning at about 8 or 8.30; in the afternoon
at about 12.30, and about 5 in the evening, and also what we have now. That
would meet Trans-radio.

Mr. SuacaT: I have one other point, Mr. Livesay. As I understood Mr.
Preston you were rendering this service'free prior to the creation of the Radio
commission in 1932?

Mr. Livesay: Noj; there was no service at all. Individual newspapers per-
haps were on the air, but there was no Canadian Press service.

Mr. StacHT: When did the Canadian Press service begin?

Mr. Livesay: July 17, 1933.

Mr. ScacaT: It was a free service at the outset?

Mr. Livesay: At the outset.

Mr. StacaT: When and under what circumstances did the commission seek
to pay you for the services you are rendering free?

Mr. Livesay: The answer to that is this: I negotiated on my own responsi-
bility with the commission and the commission’asked me what price. I said I
thought we should get enough to cover the cost of preparing these bulletins and
some other incidental expenses, and I put the figure at $6,000 a year. They
accepted that. We drafted a contract along that line. When I submitted it to
our board the board threw out this $6,000.

Mr. Ryan: Do you know through what stations the Trans-radio broad-
casts come?

Mr. Livesay: I have not got that, but I think Mr. Edwards will have the
complete list.

Mr. Ryan: Could you file a list of the stations? I should like to find out
the stations through which the Trans-radio broadcasts come.

The CuamrMaN: You mean the Canadian Press?

Mr. Ryan: No, the Trans-radio.
[Mr. W. B. Preston.]




Mr CAMPBELL Probably Mr Edwards can explain it.
Commander EpwArDs:

STATIONS LICENSED FOR RECEPTION OF PRESS MESSAGES

1935-36
Private commer- ] » Licensed to
cial Broadcast- Call Location of Station Owner of Station receive press
ing call sign sign ’ messages from:
8 ....... CZ3Q.... 1225 Nelson St., G. C. Chandler, Hicksville,
Vancouver, B.C. 846 Howe St., N.Y. (WCX) and
Vancouver, B.C. San Francisco
7 (KJH)
CPON <o, oo QZ2Z. ... Broadcasting Station ~W. W. Grant & H. G. Hicksville,
CFCON, Strathmore, Love, Toronto Gen- N.Y. (WCX,
Alta. eral Trusts Bldg. WPU, WAFH,
Calgary, Alta. W'&FP) and
San Franecisco,
Cal. (KJH)
CIFRM: 0 s CZ3P.... Regina, Sask. J. Richardson & Hicksville, A
Sons, Ltd. N.Y. (WCX,
Winnipeg, Man. WPU and
WAFH)
KRN0 25 o e CZ30. ... Winnipeg, Man. Wy o
(Stevenson’s Fleld)
ARGH a0 CZ3Y....North Bay, Ont. Northern Broad- Hicksville,
casting Co. Ltd. N.Y. (WCX, WPU,
North Bay, Ont. WAFH, WAFP) &
San Francisco,
Cal. (KJH)
CJKL ........CZ3Z....Kirkland Lake, Ont. Northern Broad- chksvﬂle NY
casting Co. Ltd. (WCX
North Bay, Ont. WAFH WAFP) &
A San Franmsco,
Cal. (KJH
CROR ..0 CZ5H. ... Timmins, Ont. Timmins Press, Ltd. 2
CJCB ........CZ5T....Sydney, N.S. N. Nathanson 2

Mr, Livesay: There is a Montreal one.

. C}?mmander Epwarps: It is not officially licensed. We will check that up;
though.

Mr. MarTiN: Mr, Livesay, are there any non-newspaper controlled commer-
cial agencies in Canada?

Mr. Livesay: I beg your pardon?

Mr. Marrin: Are there any agencies not controlled by new spapers covering
news views in Canada?

Mr. Livesay: No, I do not think so.

Mr. CampBeLL: Mr. Livesay, in speaking about the regulations, I believe
you said that these were sufficient with the exception of probably one change.
Would you elaborate that?

Mr. Livesay: Well, T think we misunderstood that section 101, clause (b),
when this thing came up. We thought it gave us protection against the sort of
competition that Transradio furnishes. I had better read the section. It says:—

Local news under arrangements to be made by each station indi-
vidually with its loeal newspaper or newspapers, or such as it may collect
through its own employees or through such collection agency or agencies
as may be employed by the said station.

“Through its own employees” is, of course, all right. The last line, “or through
such collection agency or agencies as may be employed by the said station”

opens the door to Transradio. We are not asking this committee to recommend
16205—2
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that Transradio be shut out of this country. We feel that the only way we can
meet it is on equal terms, and do a much better Canadian job of it. But the
way it is, that paragraph is rather obscure. If it was redrafted so that every-
body would be sure as to exactly what it means, I think it would be an improve-
ment. If I may, Mr. Chairman, I should like to add just one word to Mr. Slaght’s
third question. The Associated Press has got complete protection through the
establishment in the United States of property in news. Radio stations, there-
fore, are not able to steal its news; or if they do so, it is under hazard. We
have not got that protection in this country. That is the reason that we are so
awfully vulnerable, and were awfully grateful for the measure of protection that
this clause gave us.

Mr. StacET: Have you ever suggested an amendment to our Copyright Act
in that regard?

Mr. Livesay: Our counsel has told us, Mr. Slaght, that the only way that
can be done is by establishing property in news here, as it has been established
almost everywhere else in the world except in the United Kingdom. It could be
done. He thinks if we took a case into court, as the law stands, we would lose.
I myself advocated to our board that we some time make a test case, and then
if we lose we might have the right to go to parliament for relief.

Mr. WoopsworTH: In line with Mr. Martin’s question, I should like to ask
~ who sponsors that broadcast of Dr. Stewart?

Mr. Livesay: Well, that is done by the Commission. I was not thinking
about that, but that is more in the way of editorial comment or interpretative
newscast, as they call it. We confine our whole argument to what we call spot
news, without any interpretation—factual, objective. Transradio is in that class,
though occasionally there is some interpretation that is not so good.

Mr. MasseEy: Mr. Chairman, I think the whole matter hinges on two or three
main central points, as far as this committee is concerned. Of the desirability
of Canadian and British news being transmitted accurately and efficiently several
times a day, there can be little doubt. There are, however, several factors to be
taken into consideration in connection with the mechanical possibilities of such
a service being executed economically. There is also another faetor which is a
" little more difficult to describe without going into it at too great length. There
have been, both in this country and in the United States, more or less Wars of
the Roses between the radio stations and the newspapers, in which, incidentally,
the objects of exchange have not been roses by any manner of means. The
newspapers have been very bitter in regard to radio in years gone by. Radio
was attempting to establish itself as an advertising medium primarily. The
vast majority of newspapers felt that a great many advertiser dollars might
be diverted to the air that might otherwise have been expended for the printed
page. Radio having now established itself as a distinct advertising medium, the
newspapers are in great part taking a different attitude.

When you touch news, sir, you are touching distinctly the quick centres
of the whole newspapers field and you are entering into the midst of their baili-
wick. We have heard the views presented this morning both by Mr. Preston
and Mr. Livesay on behalf of the Canadian Press. There is a question as to
what the reaction of the newspapers may be.

Newscasts that emanate from newspapers, whose number is legion in
Canada, are done upon the responsibility of that newspaper and the one who is
the radio editor or whoever he may be, charged with the responsibility of dealing
with the news and placing it on the air. If the circulation of the newspaper
decreases as a result of this service, that is the newspaper’s own responsibility.
The Canadian press at the present time is giving a service every evening which
has reached a point of listener acceptance that is almost as great as that of
any commercial program on the air. In selling advertising time for either a

[Mr. W. B. Preston.]
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~ spot announcement or even a short program it is to be remembered that it is
desirable for a sponsor to be on the air immediately before the Canadian press
broadecasts or immediately after. In other words audiences peak at that par-
ticular point, thereby demonstrating the value of this service. There has been
considerable experience in the United States in regard to newscasts, which has
shown a-certain effect upon newspapers one way or another. As to just what
that effect is, there is some doubt, and there has been a good deal of discussion.
No doubt the Canadian Daily Newspaper Association has its ideas upon this
particular point that is under discussion this morning: Will the frequent trans-
mission of news emanating from the Canadian press three or four times a day
be detrimental to or advantageous to the Canadian newspapers as a whole?
It would seem to me to be desirable that either Mr. Preston or Mr. Livesay
give us the answer to this-question this morning or else due representation
be made to this committee by the Canadian Daily Newspaper Association before
we come to any decision.

The second point is with regard to the immediate possibility of successfully
supplying these newscasts across Canada. There are three suggestions in this
regard contained in this memorandum. KEach one of these suggestions has its
good points and each one has its weaknesses. There is the problem of four
time changes that we have in Canada, as against three time changes in the
United States. There is also the bilingual problem, all of which must be
considered. _

"Then, in the third place, there is not only the efficiency of any of these three
systems or some other system which may not be listed here, but there is also
the cost, even granted that the Canadian Press graciously submits its bulletins
for broadeasting without cost to the commission or whatever body there may be,
and that news is disseminated at the expense of the commission. We may feel
that in Canada we have an engineer who is second to none in radio, in the person
of Colonel Steel who is a commissioner. Colonel Steel is in a position to give
an estimate of the cost in connection with each one of these three suggestions,
which should be of value to this committee. After all, we might sit here to-day
and decide that this or that is a most excellent thing to do. We might listen to
a representation from the C.D.N.A. or whatever it may be and decide what
to do. But we may be deciding something or recommending something which
will be of extended cost. I think therefore, before we proceed much further
with this matter, Mr. Chairman, we should ascertain what the attitude of the
C.D.N.A. is and what their reaction is and secondly, the feasibility—

Mr. MarTiN: What is the CD.N.A.?

Mr. Massey: The Canadian Daily Newspaper Association. Secondly, I
think we should consider the feasibility and practicability of what is suggested,
and the cost of any one of the three methods of procedure. Having obtained
this information, then we can decide whether or not we should recommend that
such suggestions as are contained in this memorandum or revised suggestions
be proceeded with. I think we can all assume that it is highly to be desired
that Canadian and British news, as such, be released on the air in Canada as
against what we are hearing constantly during the day. The daytime broadecast
is of exceedingly great importance and is becoming of greater importance. The
Red and Blue networks, Columbia and other chains in the States have made a
definite set on daytime hours, in order to increase the salability of their time.
If one listens to his radio at odd times during the morning or the afternoon, he
will hear artists that are being trained for the major programs of the evening
hours. There are programs on the air during the day which are exceedingly
fine programs, with comparatively unknown artists, yet artists who are very
efficient and able to entertain effectively. Artists are built in this way and are
later sold to commercial sponsors of evening programs. The daytime audience
is big. Experience has shown that there are peaks in the various hours during

1620523 '
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the morning and during the afternoon, and that the-morning and afternoon hours,
as I have stated, are increasing in importance very rapidly. Therefore we may
assume that newscasts coming from the States are not of light importance as
far as Canadians are concerned because they are listened to by many, many
people. Granted it is not a man audience—it is more inclined to be a woman
audience—nevertheless the audience is there. From the cultural point of view,
from the purely national point of view and the purely British point of view, T
think it is highly to be desired that we recognize these things and govern our-
selves accordingly. Therefore I think it is of very great importance to this
committee that full consideration should be given to the suggestions that have
been made.

“The CrAlRMAN: I might say that, as far as the Canadian newspapers are
concerned, this brief that was presented this morning, and the answers to the
questions will be published. TIf the Canadian newspapers have any desire to
make any representation to this committee, they will be afforded every oppor-
tunity. As far as calling Colonel Steel is concerned, I do not think we should
call him just at the present moment. This brief is put into the record for our
consideration. If we want to ask Colonel Steel any questions in regard to costs,
or the technical part of it and so forth, I think we can do so later on.

Mr. Massey: May I suggest, Mr. Chairman, that the matter before the
committee to-day is not very clear by any means. It is not a question of getting
down to exact dollars and cents in determining the cost of, but we should have
some idea of the approximate cost that is suggested; as cost is a definite and
perhaps controlling factor in the whole matter.

The CuarRMAN: I know; but this is not the last meeting of this committee.
We are just at the beginning.

Mr. Jounston: May I ask a question here? I did not get down on time.

The CuHAIRMAN: Yes.

Mr. Jounston: I should like to know just what arrangements the newspapers
have to get the use of the facilities for radio broadecasting? What method do
they use to get these permits?

The CuaRMAN: You were not here when the brief was presented?

Mr. JounsTon: No.

The CuamrmaN: I think if you get a copy of that brief, you will find the
answer to your question.

Mr. SuagHT: By friendly arrangement.

Mr. Jounstoxn: Is there any arrangement whereby they make an agreement
with a private license holder so that they may get the use of his privileges as
well as the privileges they have themselves?

The Cuamrman: Will you answer that question, Mr. Preston.

Mr. PresToN: Yes. As we say in our proposal we are quite prepared to have
our news bulletins supplied not only to the commission but to the individual
stations, to any individual station that might not be covered by the commission’s
network. We are quite agreeable to supplying the bulletins.

The CuarrMaN: Would that be free of charge? ]

Mr. PrestoN: Free of charge so far as we are concerned, yes.

Mr. JounsToN: That does not just cover what I meant. Is there any
arrangement whereby the newspapers, if I might use this expression, buy a
license from a private individual?

Mr. CampBeELL: That is from the commission.

Mr. Jounston: My point is, thereby getting a monopoly of the use of the
radio.

[Mr. W. B. Preston.]
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‘Mr. StaceT: This is the Canadian Press, as an association.
Mr. CampBerLL: They have nothing to do with it.
Mr. JounstoN: Then my question will probably come out later on.

The CuarrMAN: Well, gentlemen, are you through with your questions?
Mr. Preston: I am not just sure what the gentleman means.

The CmamrrMAN: I think he understands now. Do you wish to go any
further, Mr. Johnston?

Mr. JounstoN: No, I think it will come up later on.

Mr. Prestox: If I may, Mr. Beaubien, I should like to answer Mr.
Massey, as far as I am able to. In my preliminary remarks, T asked you
gentlemen to distinguish in your minds between the Canadian Daily Newspaper
Association and the Canadian Press. Mr. Massey, of course, is quite familiar
with the two organizations. The Canadian Daily Newspaper Association is
the business organization of the publishers in this country. The Canadian Press
is concerned solely with the gathering and distribution of news; and to make it
quite clear to your minds, I likened it to the Associated Press in the United
States or to Reuter’s in England. To answer Mr. Massey as to what would be
the attitude of a Canadian Daily Newspaper Association towards the increase
in the number of news emissions a day, I am sure I would be quite unable to
speak the mind of that organization. I think perhaps we might say that the
publishers of this country have been concerned over the increase in the number
of news emissions. As I said in my introductory remarks, the Canadian
Press have given this matter very thoughtful consideration for five years, because
they naturaly were loathe to place free on the air news that is gathered at great
expense. However, the tremendous increase in the number of news broad-
casts, mostly coming from the United States, during that peried has made
is necessary in the national interest, in the minds ef the publishers, for someone
to supply the Canadian news, probably safeguarded with the British viewpoint
instead of the American. That is the reason for our presentation to-day. As
an offset to the news that is coming from the United States—that is, with the
American viewpoint rather than the British or Canadian viewpoint—the Cana-
dian Press is agreeable to supply to the radio stations, through the commission
or to the stations direct, a Canadian press bulletin service free of charge.
To answer Mr. Massey in regard to the cost of number three, in the case of
number three there would be no cost to the government at all. The telegraph
companies would take from the Canadian Press the news bulletins, and over
its own wires place those bulletins in the hands of any radio station anywhere in
the country, at a small fee to that station, that fee being considerably less than
this particular station may be paying now. Transradio was a semi-commercial
new? agency. Under number three there would be no cost to the government
at all.

Mr. Ryan: Mr. Preston, it is a fact, I think, that several private stations
are owned and controlled by newspapers. Is that so?

Mr. PresToN: Yes.

Mr. Ryan: Have you any objection to stations of that kind broadecasting

news containing Canadian Press dispatches, if these particular papers are
associated with the Canadian Press?

Mr. Preston: They do that now, and under our authority.

Mr. Ryan: I do not think that they are allowed to under the rules, as
I read them. -It is local news.

Mzr. Preston: No. Local stations, that is, stations operated by the news-

II))apers are broadcasting Canadian news with the full authority of the Canadian
ress.
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Mr. Martin: There is something that I was not very clear about. In

answer to a question of Mr. Woodsworth’s, Mr. Livesay, you said that your
objection to Transradio service was a different kind of objection than the one
you had to the service given by Dr. Stewart. You said that the Transradio
Service gave nearly spot news, and that there was, generally speaking, no
interpretation of the news events. If that is the case, how can there be any
serious objection to it? How can you charge that service with being a source
of propaganda, if they merely recite facts as they take place from day to day?

Mr. Livesay: The most powerful propaganda that was discovered in the
late war was the selection of news. But I went perhaps a little further than
I should when I say that it is not interpreted. What I meant was that it is
not like some of these well known men, for instance, in the United States,
who are on the air. It is not a personal account of, say, an international situa-
tion as it appears at that hour to that man. But it is an interpretation to the
extent that it is very intensely American.- And I have found, on listening in
to them, that they are very often anti-British, particularly when we have a
crisis in London or Geneva or elsewhere. But its form, generally, is more what
I would call spot news as against interpretative news.

Mr. Marrmin: I should like to just follow that one step further. That is why
I asked you about it. I quite agree with you; but if you objeect to that kind of
service in that it misinterprets particularly a matter of foreign affairs, would
you not apply the same objection to the broadecasts of the Christian Science
Monitor, a very good newspaper. Its broadcasts certainly have interpreted news
from foreign places pretty much along the lines of the Transradio service. If
you object to the one, I cannot see why you do not object to the other.

Mr. Livesay: I have not heard the Christian Science Monitor broadeast, but
I know it is a very admirable newspaper; every newspaper man recognizes that
it 1s a very admirable newspaper. Is it being broadcast in Canada?

Mr. Martin: Yes; several of the papers have it. It gives us a service at
that station around 5.15.

Mr. Livesay: The best answer to Mr. Martin is that the Canadian Press
feels that it is necessary, as an offset to these various emissions that he speaks
of, for the Canadian Press to be on the air more frequently than it is, supplying
a news service that is British and Canadian in viewpoint. We feel that with a
reliable service on the air, the people would look to the Canadian Press for their
broadcast rather than depend upon these emissions from foreign sources.

Mr. Marrin: I would not want anything I said to be taken as a personal
criticism of the Christian Science Monitor.

Mr. Smrra: I am honorary president of the Canadian Press. I just want to
say a few words. The British parliamentary committee that recently hald an
inquiry in regard to the British Broadecasting Corporation and the powers that
should be given to it, whether its power should be amended, made a reference
in its report to the influence of broadcasting on the mind and the spirit of the
nation. We thought it was advisable that we of the Canadian Press should bring
before a committee of the Canadian parliament a situation that has risen in recent
years, or in the last year tor two. At all times, and it cannot be prevented, the
Canadian people are subjected to broadeasts initiated or emitted from the
United States stations. We can do nothing about that. But we have, at the
present time, organizations coming here and selling their broadcasts to local
stations, to be emitted from local stations; and apparently they are emitted with
the authority of the station that is behind it, of some foreign station. We suggest
to you gentlemen that that is a very serious state of affairs, and we tell you of
some of the things that we are prepared to do to offset that. We do not ask that
you shall exclude these foreign broadcasting associations. We do say that you
should lend us your co-operation; you might perhaps say something in your

[Mr. W. B. Preston.]




8 co-operate with us, not in the exclusion of these things but in the regulation of

them. In the last paragraph it says: “The Canadian Press further suggests
that all broadeasting of news, including its character, volume and periods of
emission, should be subject to regulation by the commission.” I do not think
that the powers of the present commission are sufficient to regulate these com-
mentary broadeasts. Personally I think, and I believe the members of the
Canadian Press are with me, that they should be subject to some form of regu-
lation. To show that we are not seeking a monopoly in any way, shape or form,
the Canadian Press, realizing this dangerous situation, tell you that we are
prepared to supply without any charge, summaries of our news collected at the
expenditure of a very large sum of money. We offer it toe you as an alternative to
these foreign services that are being sold in Canada. It seunds very absurd on
the face of it, and it is an absurd thing that we should offer to do this; that we
should give these stations, not merely commission stations but all stations, this
news of ours without charge at all. We ask your co-operation. That is about
the sum and substance of this memorandum; it is rather to direct your attention
to this news danger that has come and that is liable to offset—well, it would be
very dangerous, having regard to the influence of broadcasting on the mind and
spirit of the nation as referred to in the British parliamentary committee’s re-
port.

Mr. WoopsworTH: By regulation, have you in mind the limitation of the
time on the air? Or do you envisage something in the form of censureship?

Mr. Smrta: No, far from censureship. But there is certain regulation that I
think all reasonable men would agree to. We simply say regulation, that they
should be subject to some kind of regulation. There is no person who realizes
better than a newspaper editor or newspaper publisher the inaccuracy, the
irresponsibility and the misleading nature of some of these broadcasts. In the
newspaper offices we are constantly having to correct, over the telephone, the
most misleading information. We are able to tell you. We are on the spot and
in touch with what is being done. You are not. We are able to tell you, and
urge upon you that it is a great danger.’

Mr. SuacaT: Arising out of what you just said, Mr. Smith, it occurs to me
to invite you to help us in that way, if you can. As I understand it, the present
commission operate their own stations only in the evening. If the present
commission, or such controlling body as may carry on in future, finds it possible
only to operate in the evening, have you any suggestion which might help us
in a recommendation as to how you can still accomplish three or four broadcasts
during the day, bearing in mind that you would have to co-operate with
privately operated stations so to do? If you have any helpful suggestion, I
should like to hear it.

Mr. Smite: You will find it, Mr. Slaght, on the second page of this memo-
randum. We were giving alternatives, and you will find it in the one about
the daytime, to cover the entire broadecasting field. That is a matter of policy
for parliament. We have nothing to do with that. Just as an alternative, if
you had a daytime broadcast our service would undoubtedly go on that broad-
cast; but in case you did not adopt that, which would cost a great deal of money,
we have another suggestion, which is as follows:—

Under telegraph hook-up (¢) each broadeasting station would pay a
small fee to be credited to the cost of administration and be divisible
between the two telegraph companies. There would be no further cost
for a copying operator because the bulletins would be automatically
received on telegrah printers at all radio stations. Speed, accuracy and
continuity of reception thus would be assured.

We have information that it is possible to make some arrangement with the
telegraph companies to do that.
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Mr. BertranDp: From what I have heard this morning about foreign agencies
putting news over the air, I would feel that a great danger exists, a danger so
great as to be essentially bad. I should like Mr. Smith to tell us where the
danger lies. I for one should not like my name to go out as a member of this
committee being in favour of prohibiting foreign news agencies from broad-
casting on the air unless it could be shown that it was bad. This news is
published in the newspapers in the United States, and I should not like to
subscribe to this, unless I can be shown that it is really bad. Can you give me
some practical proof of this, Mr. Smith?

Mr. Smita: I have not come prepared to recite any particular thing.
Anybody who has listened to some of these broadcasts from the United States,
direct or broadcasts emitted from Canadian stations, and who have been follow-
ing the correct news, and who knows something about the news of the world,
realizes that the broadcasts are many times inaccurate and misleading.

Mr. JounsTon: Do you suggest that you should be in a position to censor
that news as it comes in?

Mr. Preston: We are merely asking that some scheme of distribution be
evolved, say by the Canadian Press, through the co-operation of your body,
which would be able to offset that. There are no Canadian news bulletins on
the air during the day at the present time. There is one emission at 10.45 at
night, that is all. News is on the air practically every hour of the day in the
i United States. You can say that some of it is unreliable, but all of it has an
| American viewpoint rather than the British and Canadian viewpoint.

Mr. BertranDp: That is what I wanted to find out. These broadcasts are
not bad because they come from the United States. I am a Canadian myself,
100 per cent; but I should not like at this time, when we are passing a reciprocity
treaty with the United States, to have it known that as a government committee
we consider that all news coming over the air from the United States was bad
and dangerous to us. In a few years when broadecasting is at a more perfect
stage, we shall be getting news casts from England, France, and all over the
continent, and I hope that they will not be all bad.

Mr. McInTosa: Mr. Chairman, there is a question I should like to ask.
On the second page of the memorandum submitted by the Canadian Press this
morning, we find a very important statement, a statement which I think is
practically the essence of the submission made to the committee to-day. That
statement is contained in suggestion No. 5, and reads as follows:—

Believing it is in the national interest news on the air should be
thoroughly Canadian.and British in character, and an effective substi-
tute for foreign services, the Canadian Press invites the co-operation of
your committee and of the government to that end.

Now, I yield to no member of the committee or to any Canadian, as far as
that is concerned, my love for Canada or my love for the British Empire; but
I am particularly struck when I read this paragraph by the words:—

an effective substitute for foreign services.

fIf the idea behind these lines is to build up what you might call an effective
Canadian news service then we are all back of that, and also an effective empire
news service. We are all back of that; but I am just a little bit afraid of how
the Canadian people are going to get news with reference to the world as a
whole. That is very important. I think it is important to get the viewpoint
of the United States and the viewpoint of any other country making up the
world whole in a news way. In getting that news service into Canada, what are
we going to do, and how are we going to control it? How far shall that control
go? 1 think perhaps that is one of the most important questions before this
committee. I should like one of the members who is here this morning to
[Mr. W. B. Preston.]
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lain the idea back of these lines that I have just read. We hear, I may say,
great deal to-day about the danger of breaking down Canadian nationality and
breaking down imperialism by news services from abroad. Personally I am
‘not very much afraid of that. I have an idea that if my Canadianism and
 my British viewpoint can be broken down by a foreign news service I am not

very much of a Britisher or a Canadian. Still, I should like to see news
services controlled in an effective way and consequently I should like to have
these lines analyzed and the viewpoint of the Canadian Press taken up before
~ the committee. '

Mr. Livesay: I shall try to analyze that. In building up, as you know
in the evening, our bulletin of 1,200 words—probably members of your com-
- mittee have listened to it—that bulletin consists of world news service, and
~is built up to cover twenty-four hours, because the people in the north and the
fishermen and so on, do not get newspapers, and this broadcast gives them
the news. It does intentionally and deliberately cover the news of the whole
world, but it puts it in the Canadian focus; that is to say, we do not play
up American news. We do not give the American viewpoint. We recerd
American news on a straight news value; that is all. We like te play up eur
 own news first, then British news and news ef the world afterwards, realizing
of course, the news of our neighbour in the seuth is of perhaps more immediate
~ interest here than the news from China, say. Poes that answer your question?
' Mzr. McIntosu: I think that is a good answer. My thought was this: we

are living in an international era at the present time. Ne person can deny that
- the whole trend of the world to-day is towards the world whole, towards new
internationalism. The point is this: is our news service in Canada going to
interfere with the reorganization of the world?
Mr. Livesay: No.

Mr. McInTosH: As long as we are safeguarded in that direction, Mr.
Chairman, that is satisfactory so far as T am concerned.
i Mr. Livesay: Mr. Chairman, I have here the written proof of the sort of
_thing transmitted to us. We think it is not correct. On October 25th last, Prime
Minister Baldwin said in London:—
I would never sanction this country going in for a blockade unless
I was assured beforehand of the attitude of the United States.

We got that from Reuters. Trans-radio buys Reuters. Trans-radio put this
out—I heard it myself:—

Great Britain will not go to war unless assured of United States
support.

Mr. SvAGHT: Is this whole thing going in the record?

The CaamrMmAN: Gentlemen, have you any further questions to ask the
representatives of the Canadian Press? It is nearly a quarter to one, and if you

- have no further questions we shall go on with Mr. Charlesworth. Is it the
wish of the committee to hear Mr. Charlesworth’s viewpoint of the representa-
tions given this morning?

Mr. CampBELL: Yes.

Mr. SvagaT: Mr. Chairman, I think we should express to our friends of
the Canadian Press our appreciation for the very clear, brief and concise way
in which they have put their important problems before us.

Mr. MclIntosa: Will the Canadian Press appear before us again?

The CuarrMAN: If the committee desires to call the executive at any time
~ they will have the opportunity to do so, and I am sure the Canadian Press will
f be glad to come.

q Mr. Preston: Yes, sir.

v




Hecror CHARLESWORTH, recalled.

May I interrupt the proceedings for a moment? Mr. Buchanan, our director

of publicity and public relations, whose business it is to keep his finger on public
policy, prepared an impartial summary of the complaints and commendations
that have come in, with ample copies for each. It is a summary in connection
with matters in his department.

The CrARMAN: Is it the wish of the committee to distribute those?

Mr. McIntosa: Do I understand that these complaints and commenda-
tions are produced by Mr. Buchanan rather than the commission?

Wirness: Mr. Buchanan is director of public relations. I asked him to
prepare a summary of all matters.

The CuarrmaN: It is headed as follows:—

GENERAL COoMPLAINTS ABOUT AND COMMENDATIONS OF THE COMMISSION:

1. Since its inception;
2. Since June, 1934.
So you have it from the very beginning.

Wirness: Prepared in newspaper form.

Mr. WoopsworrH: We have only a few moments before one o’clock; could
we have Mr. Charlesworth’s comments?

Wirness: Yes. Is there any question you gentlemen wish to ask me on
this matter?

By Mr. Woodsworth:

Q. May I ask whether the presentation as we have heard it from the Cana-
dian Press is a reasonable and practicable one?—A. It is reasonable. Of course,
you can do nothing without money. It is a question of money, as Mr. Massey
has said. We, with our present resources, cannot go in for daytime broadcasting.
At one time, when the commission was in the formative period, I had hoped
to have daytime broadcasting, but it proved to be entirely out of the question
financially. That is at the time I was clearing up piracy on the air in Canada.
There was a great deal of piracy by sponsors. I think Mr. Livesay spoke of the
effective work our commission had done in cleaning up that whole situation.
As 1 say, this would be a very desirable thing in my opinion.

With regard to these Transradio broadecasts, I may say that I have taken the
precaution, both in conversations and in letters to stations handling them, in
view of the charges that they might be anti-British propaganda, to wire the
stations at the first sign of any anti-British propaganda coming on the air
or anything likely to be offensive, to cut them out, buzz them right off. I am
satisfied that most of the stations do watch them pretty carefully for that sort

of thing. I do not know if they have had occasion to cut anything out. These

broadcasts do not come into Ottawa here. I have no opportunity to hear them.
But those are the suggestions, in fact the instruetions given to the stations, to
avoid anything in connection with these news broadecasts that would be detri-
mental to the public interest from our standpoint. It is unquestionable that
the Canadian listener likes the news broadecasts from the United States, especially
the commentary ones,—Walter Winchell, for instance. He does not interest
me very much, but a great many people like him. Then there is Boake Carter
or Lowell Thomas. These broadcasts which generally come into Canada
directly, but which are broadcast on American stations, are much more likely
to give, in the commentator’s point of view, perhaps detrimental suggestions,
than the spot news that may come over the Transradio broadecast. I should
like to see, as I think we all would, some system where people could get more
[Mr. Hector Charlesworth,]
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- Canadian news over the air. It is not altogether a fact that there is no Cana-
~ dian newsecast on the air in the daytime, because in most of the leading cities
~ the stations have broadecasts from their own local newspapers. The policy of the
~ local newspapers differs in different centres. Some newspaper proprietors object
~ to giving their news on the air at all; others do not. But there is a good deal
~ of daytime broadeasting. I do not know whether the Daily Newspaper
~ Association has yet solved the problem, or the Canadian press. At the time
- when I was in Toronto, prior to becoming chairman of the commission, there
- was a great deal of resentment among the afternoon papers of the smaller cities
- of Ontario because papers like the Toronto Telegram and the Toronto Star were
. broadcasting at noon and heard out in places like Oshawa, thus taking the
edge off the news in the afternoon edition that would be coming out, say, at
- three or four o’clock in that city. I think perhaps that situation rather em-
~ barrassed the Canadian Press—I am not speaking with authority when I say
- that,—in dealing with this question at all. I was therefore very glad to see
~ that this is apparently a unanimous opinion of the Canadian Press, that day-
time broadcasting would be a good thing, despite the fact that it might possibly
interfere with the afternoon circulation of Major Preston’s paper at Brantford,
. the Brantford Expositor. 1 welcome that unity of opinion which I assume exists
in Canadian Press at the present time and which did not formerly exist. But
as I say, this is all a question of money. We cannot provide daytime broad-
casting out of our present resources.

Mr. Martin: Just on that point, having in mind what I think is the very
reasonable request of the Canadian Press, what would be the approximate cost
to effect say four daily transmissions, including the one at night? Do you know?

Wrirness: Well, I cannot tell you offhand. We have had no opportunity.
Even this submission was altered last night. We have had no opportunity to
go into the matter. I did ask the representative of the wire companies to let

. me have some figures, and I asked him this morning before I left the office
whether he had them, but he had not got them. I should judge it would be
$100,000 per annum on the basis of the first two proposals. The third proposal
that you will see there from the wire companies, which is entirely new—which
I believe was only arrived at yesterday—puts an entirely new face on the
matter.

Mr. McIntosua: $100,000 would be a mere bagatelle if the future of the
country in the way of news service is at stake.
Wirness: Yes. I am speaking of the $100,000 as wire charges alone, I
should judge.
¥ Mr. SvacaT: I understood the Canadian Press representatives to tell us
that it would cost the country iand cost the commission nothing at all; because
as they indicate in the third paragraph under telegraph hook-up each broad-
casting station would pay a small fee, and it was explained to us that this service
would cost nothing at all.
Wirness: If it would cost nothing at all, I am all for it.
Mr. SuagaT: Perhaps you did not hear him say that.
Mr. Livesay: That is not quite correct. We have had an offer of two
telegraph companies, I do not say which, to distribute these bulletins and collect
a small fee which we think reasonable from each station wanting the service,
- and that would be free. They will divide that fee between them. They might
- make, between them, eventually as much as $30,000 a year. But as you realize,
that would be a very cheap way of distributing.
Wirness: That would be very cheap.
Mr. Livesay: Yes.

) Wrrxess: Mind you, my $100,000 a year is mere guesswork. This thing
- has to be gone into by our men.
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Mr. SuaguT: I personally do not see, -if' :ﬂhéir stateineﬁ;)'is aémiratg, ere &

" it would cost the country anything at all. Y

Mr. Preston: Mr. Slaght, we are talking about two different propositions.
We are talking at the same time about both (a) and (¢). ' <
Wirness: Yes. : 3
Mr. Preston: If the Radio Commission decides to go on the air more
frequently than it is at the present time—in other words, if the Canadian Radio
Commission decides to go on the air during the day, that will undoubtedly

cost the Commission more money, as Mr. Charlesworth says. We are not
asking that.

Mr. SuacaT: No. Assuming they do, what then?

Mr. Preston: If the Commission does go on the air, then we ask you to
make your facilities available to us for news broadeasts. If the Commission
does not decide to go on the air during the day, we offer as a substitute No. 3
and the acceptance of No. 3 would cost the government nothing.

Wirness: That would be most acceptable to us.

Mr. Martin: Why can that not be done?

Wirness: I have got no objection to it.

Mr. MarTin: I am just asking as a matter of information.

Witness: I do not see why it cannot be done.

Mr. MarTin: It has never been proposed before.

WirNess: It has never been proposed before. It is a new proposal, I believe.

Mr. Livesay: We only received the proposal last Friday and it was signed
by both telegraph companies, and provided that our own directors would accept
the bulletins; we are prepared to start, I think, on May 1. The only string
the companies put on it is that there must be a minimum of 30 radio stations
taking the service, paying for the service, and I think that is a very reasonable
limitation. '

Wrirness: T heard nothing of the matter until the submissions were dis-
tributed in the committee room this morning.

Mr. Jounston: How do they expect them to get compensation for their
work? I do not think there is any business organization that is going to give
their time and services for nothing. There must be some way by which they
are going to receive compensation.

Mr. Livesay: They get paid a fee from each station.
Wirness: That is their business.

Mr. Livesay: They get a fee from each station.

Mr. Smita: The telegraph company.

Mr. Livesay: Yes. The telegraph company get a fee from each station.
They will allot it between them.

Mr. Jounston: They are just making that to you?
Mr. Livesay: No.

WirNess: To the public.

Mr. Jouxson: From each station?

Mr. Livesay: They get $10 a week from each station, the telegraph com-
pany, for land lines. There is a possible revenue there of about $30,000 a year,
I would think. At first it would be less than that. They would each get $15,000
a year for setting up three times a day a wire network.

Mr. McIxTosH: There is a question that I should like to ask Mr. Charles-
worth. Just before we launched into this branch of the discussion, he made a
[Mr. Hector Charlesworth.]




statement with regard to the limited financial resources of the Commission.
Could he state just approximately the figure that he is referring to there?

2 Wirness: Well, you see, our total parliamentary vote is only one and a
" half million dollars to cover everything, all services of every kind, and we are
budgeted this coming year. If we contributed to that, it would just add $100,000
to our wire charges. : :

Mr. McIntosu: That is what I thought Mr. Charlesworth was referring to.
Wirness: That would have to come off something else.

Mr. McIntosa: Might I ask him just about what his budget would have
" to be in order to provide service that he might consider adequate?

Wrrness: Well, if the government favoured a plan whereby they should
~go into an expenditure, all they would need to do is put an additional vote in
'~ the supplementary estimates. That is all that is necessary.

By Mr. McIntosh:

Q. Have you any idea just what that vote should be?—A. Well, no. I

cannot tell you offhand. That has to be gone into very carefully. I knew
" nothing about the third one; but in connection with the first proposition, the
- wire companies themselves were not prepared to tell me at 9.30 this morning.
s Q. The whole situation, nationally, would have to be canvassed?—A. I saw
~ the original brief, which has since been extended and amended, for the first
. time yesterday. So I asked the representative of the wire companies in our
- offices for the information, and he had not the information this morning. He
- said that it was necessary to go into this matter and have it accurate, because
- approximate figures would not do in connection with it.

By the Chairman.: ¥

‘ Q. With regard to the news that is broadcast at 10.45 each evening, we get
- that through the stations in a national hookup?—A. Yes.

' Q. Through CKY in Winnipeg?—A. Yes.

1 Q. Do you have to pay CKY in Winnipeg for that news bulletin, for the
. time?—A. Well, you see, we have leased certain hours of its time. It is included
- as a national network broadcast in the leased time that we have.

: Mr. Preston: Perhaps I might explain the mechanies of the situation and
make it a little clearer. At the present time the Canadian Press is on the air
- once only, at 10.45 in the evening. That news bulletin which amounts to,
- roughly speaking, 1,200 words is handed to the Commission at Toronto and
broadcast over its network, by Commission stations, of course, only.
Wirness: Network stations.

~ Mr. Preston: With the Commission not being on the air during the day-
time, we have no means of supplying the stations from Halifax to Victoria with
 a news service, inasmuch as we send these bulletins over the telegraph at great
. cost. The cost would be practically prohibitive to the individual stations. For
= that reason it would solve our problems immediately if the commission should
& decide to be on the air during the day; because then we would do as we do at
night-time merely hand the bulletin service to the commission at Toronto, and
- then it would be broadcast over its network.

Now, then, under No. 3. the telegraph companies have got together and they

_ have suggested a plan at so much per week to each station at which they would
- supply a service. We would broadecast ourselves from Toronto; we would send
. the broadeast over the wires from our office in Toronto to all stations through-
- out Canada that agreed to make this contract with the telegraph companies.
- In that way it would be no cost to the commission and no cost to the government.
The service would be prepared in Toronto by the Canadian Press free of charge




and sent over this telegraph hook—ﬁp to all stations in th; cbunt'ry,. the staﬁdn& :

~ in turn paying the charge at so much per week to the telegraph companies for

the service. Does that explain the difficulty?
Mr. Ryan: It is not correct that you are on the air all over at 10.45?
Wrirness: In the east it is eastern standard time.

By Mr. Slaght:
Q. Before we rise I should like to put this matter before you as chairman

of the commission for your viewpoint, and perhaps direction. A member of the X

-4

committee since the last adjournment asked me how he could get at what money ‘

was being spent in the payment of artists by the commission, and I told him

my view was that the amount was included in your annual report of last year
under the general item of programs?—A. Yes. :

Q. And it totals the second largest expenditure, of which the largest is net-
works, being some half a million dollars. For programs you spent $432,766.
Now, I quite appreciate that to ask you to bring before us even one year’s break-
up or analysis of program expenditure would be a large task, and we could not
wade through it; but I make this suggestion, having regard to what this mem-
ber of the committee had in mind. Can you break down one week’s program
expenditure from your records, say in Toronto, as a typical district? Take the
first week in June of last year. I select that without any object in view. Would
you lay before us the artists you engaged, the fees you paid, and the money you
spent on artists in that station for say one week in June of last year? I think
the first week of June would give a cross-section view of what you are spending
on the artists you are engaging, and what you are paying them. Without that
knowledge we shall know very little about what is wrapped up in an item of
nearly a half a million dollars of expenditure by the commission?—A. I would
suggest, Mr. Slaght, that we make it say a week in February or a week at the
end of November. In the summer months the people are out motoring and
golfing and that sort of thing, and we do not spend as much money on programs.

Q. Whichever you think will give us a typical week.—A. Would you like a
typical week for both Toronto and Montreal?

Q. Both Toronto and Montreal.

By Mr. Bertrand:

Q. If I may divulge a little secret, I am the member who asked for this
information. But I should like to have it for more than one week. I have had
a lot of people in my home during the week-end, and they have been talking
about this committee. One of the most important matters about which the publie
is concerned, is the programs. I myself want to be fair. I do not want to con-
demn the commission if they should not be condemned; therefore I should like
to have information on what is paid artists for more than one week. As you said
before, they are very sensitive people. It may not be very easy to satisfy all of
them. But this is an important thing. We want to know what has been paid
artists?—A. I will give you a typical week.

Q. A week would not be satisfactory. We need more than that. People
from the Maritimes have all talked about this matter, and they want to know
why such and such an artist has been called twenty times or fifteen times and
what has been paid. There are other charges to the effect that other artists
should have been called during this time— —A. Are you asking me to give the
payments of individual artists or the pavments for programs? I do not think
it is fair to give the payments of individual artists.

Mr. StacaT: Yes. I do not see any harm in the committee finding out
what we paid to individual artists.

[Mr. Hector Charlesworth.]
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~ Mr. McIxtosua: There is another aspect to this question. The memoran-
~ dum that you would prepare would largely concern Quebec and Ontario. I
think it should be national in scope. We should have an idea what is paid
~ in the other provinces in the same two weeks.

Mr. Ryan: 1 agree.

Hon. Mr. Howe: As minister in charge of the department I think we
~ should take a little clearer view of this thing. After all, the Canadian Radio
| Broadcasting Commission is a commission set up by parliament to run broad-
casting in exactly the same way as the Canadian National Railways. The
Canadian National Railways refuse to give certain information they believe
damaging to their business. I think if Mr. Charlesworth, as head of this com-
mission, takes the view that the information would be damaging to his business,
it should be privileged. It is not that we want to withhold anything. I think
if he gives a typical week in any one month without disclosing the names of the
individual artists or their salaries, it would be reasonable.

Mr. McIntosHa: Could we have the class, if we could not have the names?

Wirness: My idea would be to give you what a large program costs for
any one week. You see you will have one program supplied by a soloist pianist;
another program would embrace orchestral performers and choristers, and
embraces a program like “It came to pass.” Programs are of so many different
types, and I do not think it is fair to the artists themselves to say that this
artist got so and so in any one week. I do not think it is good business. In
reference to Mr. Melntosh’s suggestion, I shall bring you what our monthly
budget is for each section of Canada, what our allowance is for programs, and
they are not supposed to go beyond that sum.

By Mr. McIntosh: 3

Q. Do you mean that you put that amount at the disposal of that part of
the coutry? You seek to expend that sum— —A. No, we do not seek to expend
that sum. That is the maximum that we have to spend.

Mr. StagHT: I do not think, Mr. Chairman, with all respect that what Mr.
Charlesworth suggests will give us much information. Perhaps this will safe-
guard what the minister has in mind and yet give us information. Can you give
us a typical period across Canada, each of the six or seven districts for a week
or two, whatever the case may be, and give us the expenditure, the names of
the individual artists who were engaged, because there are complaints that there
is discrimination against certain artists owing to the fact that others have the
call, and that sort of thing. Without names we cannot tell anything about
where this money is going. That, surely, is free from objection.

Hon. Mr. Howe: Yes, quite.

Mr. SuagaT: We will have the names and the bulk of expenditures. I want
to get the individual cost of the program plus the name of every artist who
appeared on that program. That is what I should like to have.

Hon. Mr. Howe: Mr. Charlesworth is responsible for arranging these
programs and I suggest it would be objectionable to start a dog-fight here as to
why Mary Jones gets more than Jessica Smith.

Wirness: That is not the point.

Hon. Mr. Howe: That would not be helpful to the committee.

Mr. SuagaT: My suggestion does away with that, because you won’t know
what Mary gets.

Mr. BertranND: Mr. Howe, there is a little more than that in the question.
In Montreal there is a body of musicians known as the Trio Lyrique. They
are very good musicians, as Mr. Charlesworth knows. They used to sing on the




| ‘SPEciAL' COMMITTEE

radio commission. They are now in the United States and have been on ﬂw air
for a year there at a high fee. They sing over station WABC. They went there
because they could get no more engagements in Canada.

WirNess: As a matter of fact, Mr. Bertrand—

Mr. BErTRAND: Sometimes it may not be fair to compare one artist with
another, but these are outstanding artists. 7 :

Wirness: That particular body of artists, as you know, is singing for less
in the United States than they were receiving in Canada.

The CuarmaN: Gentlemen, it is ten minutes past one o’clock, and I think
we should adjourn. I do not suppose we can meet until after Easter, but I
should like to make a suggestion. I think we are going to have a lot of work
after the recess. Would the committee agree to meet on Tuesday, April 21st? -
The house meets on the 20th.

Mr. McIntosu: Could you not make 1t a day later in the week to give a
chance to the members who come from a long distance?

The Cramrman: Would Wednesday be all right?

Mr. Massey: I would suggest Thursday.

Mr. Preston: I want to thank the members of the committee for the
patience with which they listened to our brief, which we intended to be very
short, but which I am afraid extended into a very lengthy one. You agree that
our attitude i is entirely an unselfish one and our interest a national one.

The committee adjourned at one o’clock, to meet Thursday, April 23, 1936
at 11 am.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

House or Commons, Room 375,
TraURSDAY, April 23, 1936.

The Special Parliamentary Committee on the Canadian Radio Commission
met at 11 o’clock a.m. this day, Mr. Beaubien, the Chairman, presiding.

The following members of the Committee were. present.

Messieurs: Beaubien, Bertrand (Laurier), Cahan, Campbell, Cardin, Coch- .
rane, Dupuis, Edwards, Grant, Howe, Johnston (Bow River), McKenzie (Nee-
pawa), Mackenzie (Vancouver Centre), McIntosh, Martin, Massey, Plunkett,
Ryan, and Woodsworth.—19.

In Attendance:

Lt.-Col. W. A. Steel, Commissioner, Canadian Radio Commission, Ottawa.

Mr. Stanley Maxted, Station Manager and Regional Program Director,
Ontario, Station CRCT, Toronto.

Mr. R. Lucas, Supervisor of Studios, Station CRCT, Toronto.

Present: (for call, if necessary)

Officials of the Canadian Radio Commission;

Mr. T. Magladery, Deputy Minister of Immigration;
Officials of the Radio Branch, Department of Marme, Ottawa.
Others concerned with radio matters.

The Chairman submitted the following list of communications, received
since last meeting up to to-day’s date, viz:

Mr. the President, Mount Allison University, Sackville, N.B. April 14.
¢ Mr. W. J. Grummett, Sec., Ansonville Board of Trade, Ansonville, Ont.

pril 4.

Mr. Henry A. Morton, President, Manitoba Motion Picture, 115 Maryland
St., Winnipeg, Man. April 11.

Mr. F. B. Bowles, 10 Chamberlain St., Amherst, N.S. April 10.

W. J. Major, Attorney General, Winnipeg, Man. April 1.

Mr. D. Murray, President, University of Saskatchewan, Saskatoon. April 15.

Mr. Louis St. Laurent, K.C., 65 St-Anne St., Quebec, Que. April 9.

Mr. Alfred J. Wickens, Moose Jaw, Sask. April.

Mr. J. L. Ralston, K.C., Royal Bank Bldg., Montreal, Que. =April 20.

Mr. 8. P. Dunlop, President, Musicians’ Federation of Montreal, Montreal.
April 8.

Mr. H. M. Thurston, 536 14th Avenue West, Calgary, Alta. April 4.

Reverend A. H. McGreer, M.A., D.D., M.C., Bishop’s University, Lennox-
ville, Que. April 8.
A er. Robert A. Falconer, President, University of Toronto, Toronto, Ont.

pril 17.

Mr. G. F. Dewey, Sec.-Treas., Moose Jaw, Musicians’ Association, Moose
Jaw, Sask. April 8.

Miss Enid Johnson, Simcoe, Ont. April 9.

Mr. H. J. Cody, President, University of Toronto, Toronto, Ont. April 14.
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Mr. Wm. O. Findley, Sec., Victoria Chamber of Commerce, Victori;t, B.C.
April 11. i

Mr. Norman Robertson, 4314 West 13th Avenue, Vancouver, B.C. April 8.

Mr. Edward Dusang, 21 Granton Apts., Winnipeg, Man. April 9.

Two petitions from Tadoussac and Ste-Anne de Portneuf, Que. April 15.

Mr. W. J. Humphreys, Waldeck, Sask. April 16.

Mr. V. J. Pottier, M.P., Yarmouth, N.S. April 20.

Mr. Norman Prestley, Vice Pres., United Farmers of Alberta, Calgary.
April 15.

Cecil C. Jones, Pres., University of New Brunswick, Fredericton, N.B.
April 20.

Mr. William H. Fortington, 1238-50 Fullerton Ave., Chicago, I1l. April 15.

Mr. K. 8. Rogers, Managing Director CFCY, 143 Great George St., Char-
lottetown, P.E.I. April 20.

Lt.-Col. R. P. Landry, Secretary of the Canadian Radio Commission, sub-
mitted:—

20 additional copies of Exhibit 4, previously filed.

20 additional copies of Exhibit 5, previously filed. (See evidence for detail).

Filed by Lt.-Col. Landry: Statement prepared by the representative of the
Treasury, Department of Finance, re cost of programs of Commission
for one week in February, 1936 (see evidence).

Considerable discussion took place respecting certain changes to be made
in the personnel of the sub-committee on agenda, but matter was finally left in
abeyance for the time being.

On motion of Mr. Martin;

Ordered: That Mr. Donald Henshaw, Toronto, be advised to hold himself
available for appearance before the Committee, and that his travelling expenses
be provided for.

On motion of Mr. Martin;

Ordered: That Mr. J. J. Gibbons, Toronto, be contacted with, and if he is
not prepared to come before the Committee at his own expense, that his travelling
expenses be provided for.

On motion of Mr. Martin;

Ordered: That a certain file in the Department of Immigration, in con-
nection with the matter of Mr. Donald Henshaw, Toronto, be produced before
the Committee, if possible at the present sitting; and that a request be sent imme-
diately to the Deputy Minister to that effect; and that he hold himself in readi-
ness to appear before the Committee when required.

On motion of Mr. Martin;

Ordered: That the Secretary of the Canadian Radio Commission produce
the following:—

1. A statement of all cheques paid by the Radio Commission to one Donald
Henshaw.

2. All correspondence between the Radio Commission and any other Gov-
ernment or any other body regarding the “ Sage ” broadecasts.

3. The letter given to Donald Henshaw by the Radio Commission in respect
of facilitating his return from the United States to Canada on the occasion of
visits by him from Canada to the United States.
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Lt.-Col. W. A. Steel, called: The witness was examined at some length.
During the examination, Hon. Mr. Howe filed an original letter from Mr.
Charlesworth to the Minister, relating to the “ Sage "’ broadcasts, in accordance
with a request made for same. :

After discussion it was decided that the letter should not be part of the
record, until Mr. Charlesworth could appear before the Committee.

The witness retired.

Mr. Martin read from Hansard some statements made in the House by
Hon. Earl Lawson, in February, 1936.

Mr. Stanley Maxted, called: During the examination of the witness he
produced and filed sheets from the log of Station CRCT, with reference to the
Sage broadcasts, to be marked as Exhibit No. 21. Additional logs to be pro-
duced at next meeting, if possible. The witness retired at 1 o’clock, to be recalled
to-morrow.

On motion of Mr. Campbell, seconded by Mr. MecIntosh, it was resolved:
That this Committee report to the House for leave to sit while the House is
sitting.

After discussion the Committee adjourned by general consent to meet again
to-morrow (Friday) at 11 o’clock.

E. L. MORRIS,
Clerk of the Committee.






MINUTES OF EVIDENCE

House or Commons, Room 375,
s ' Orrawa, April 23, 1936.

The special committee appointed to enquire into the administration of the
Canadian Radio Broadcasting Act of 1932 and amendments, met at 11 am.,,
the Chairman, Mr. A. L. Beaubien, presided.

The CuAlRMAN: Gentlemen, if you will come to order now that we have a
quorum, we shall proceed. I might state that the secretary of the Radio Broad-
casting Commission has handed me a certain number of documents, the list of
which reads as follows:—

LIST OF DOCUMENTS SUBMITTED TO SPECIAL COMMITTEE
OF HOUSE OF COMMONS ON RADIO BROADCASTING
APRIL 23, 1936

1. 20 additional copies of instructions issued by the Canadian Radio
Broadcasting Commission to station managers. (Ex. 4.)

2. 20 additional copies of instructions issued to station managers re use
of records and electrical transcriptions. (Ex. 5.)

3. Statement prepared by the representative of the treasury, Department
of Finance, showing cost of programs of the Canadian Radio Broad-
casting Commission for the week ended February 8, 1936 as follows:—

(a) Summary of program costs by production centres for the
above week and grand total for the Dominion.

(b) Names of participants in each program arranged by location
and the title of each program with the cost of same.

I might inform the committee that before the Easter recess I tried hard
to get a meeting of the sub-committee in order to plan the work for this meeting
and I found it impossible to do so. Several members of the committee came to
me and asked me to do certain things, or to request certain things, which I did.
They requested me to ask the chairman of the Broadcasting commission to have
Mr. Maxted of CRCT, Toronto, and Mr. Lucas, who are employees of the Radio
commission, to be here and bring with them documents concerning the Sage
broadcasts, and so forth. I was also requested to write Mr. Don. Henshaw
of Toronto, asking him if it would be possible for him to be here. .I received a
telegram from Mr. Henshaw telling me that he would be pleased to be here,
provided we sent him transportation and his expenses. He intimated that Mr.
J. J. Gibbons probably could give more information concerning the Sage broad-
casts than he could. As chairman of the committee I had no power to act, and
I did not act any further regarding Mr. Henshaw’s telegram.

I have received a request from the Attorney General of the Manitoba
government, who is supposed to make representations in connection with the
telephone system of the three western provinces before the committee. I also
received a request from Col. Ralston, who is representing the Bell Telephone
company, to be permitted to appear before the committee. The committee were
asked also if it would be good enough to fix Tuesday, May 12, as the day to
receive representations from these gentlemen. The reason the Attorney General
of Manitoba is asking for that fixed day is that he has other business to do in
eastern Canada at that time, and he would like to do both at the same time. I
have not taken any action in regard to the matter; as that will be for the
committee to decide.
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Now gentlemen, judging by the correspondence and requests we “have
received, I do not know how we are going to carry on unless we get permission
to sit while the house is in session; because the requests of different organiza-
tions, some of them very representative, who wish to appear before this com-
mittee, are numerous. I should like to bring that thought before you.

Mr. McInTosu: Have we not permission to sit while the house is in session?
The CHAIRMAN: No. s

Mr. WoopsworTH: It seems to me that long before we ask to sit while the
house is in session, we should determine more or less clearly what our program
is to be. I am a member of the sub-committee. That committee has met only
for organization. I think the sub-committee might as well be relieved of its
duties, if we cannot get together, and a new committee appointed that will get
together. It seems to me that we cannot go on in this haphazard way. The
chairman does no care to assume more responsibility, and yet we are being
called together from time to time to take up special matters that have not been
decided upon by the sub-committee, and have never been before the committee
as a whole. As I see it, we ought to have a very definite program worked out,
or else we will get all balled up in this matter.

The CmamrMAN: I might say that Mr. Howe, the Minister of Railways,
was. appointed chairman of the sub-committee, and he has been such a busy
man that it has been almost impossible for him to call a meeting of the sub-
committee. As far as I am concerned I have done everything in my power to
do so. I was talking to Mr. Howe this morning, and I think it was pretty well
agreed that he should be relieved of his duties on this committee, and that some
one else should be appointed in his place, who would bé more readily available
than Mr. Howe. You can quite understand that Mr. Howe is a busy man, as
he has a lot of legislation on the order paper.

Mr. McIntosa: Could we have Mr. Howe’s idea along that line?

Hon. Mr. Howe: As I have just told the chairman, this morning, it is
almost impossible for me to find time for every meeting scheduled. The Cana-
dian National Railways committee is meeting this morning for organization,
and they will be busy all next week. I have a lot of bills on the order paper
that will keep me busy in the House, and I should appreciate it very much
if I}could be released from the sub-committee. I shall of course keep in contact
with it.

Mr. BerTraND: Whom do you suggest?

The CrHARMAN: I might also inform the committee that Mr. Slaght, who
was a member of the sub-committee was operated on this morning in the Toronto
General hospital, so somebody will have to take his place on the committee.
If you will permit me to choose someone to replace Mr. Howe and Mr. Slaght,
I shall choose somebody who will find it easier to attend the meetings of the
sub-committee in order to plan the work.

Mr. McIxrtosu: I think the chairman should appoint the sub-committee
as he did before.

Mr. BertraND: I agree.
Mr. MclxTosu: The quicker it is done, the better.

: _Mr. Woopswortr: Would it not be better to have some expression of the
opinion of the committee as to the extent of the program that we are to embark
upon; otherwise this will extend almost interminably.

The CHARMAN: At our first meeting, it was decided that the planning of
the work would be left to the sub-committee. I think a sub-committee that
can get together more readily than the one we have had should plan our work.
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Mr. McIntosu: I do not see how you can exactly plan the meetings from
day to day or week to week. New questions will arise as we go along and require
definite decisions. I think it would be wiser to leave that to the sub-committee.

Mr. Epwarps: I agree with Mr. Woodsworth, but it seems to me that we
should have some plan before us. We ought to know whether we are going
ahead at this moment to meet a real situation, or whether it is a matter of
raking over old sores. We should know what we are going to do and what we
‘are here for.

Mr. Ryan: Is not that all settled? Are we not leaving that for the sub-
committee?

Mr. Epwarps: I do not think we should leave that to the sub-committee.
We have our rights as members of this committee; at least, on every committee
I have ever served we certainly have.

.Mr. Ryan: I do not think we are taking any rights from anybody. I am
not on the sub-committee, but I think it must be left to somebody to carry on
the business. The sub-committee is the proper one to do it.

Hon. Mr. Mackenzie: We are governed by the terms of the reference.

The CuamrMAN: I might say that no matter what action the sub-committee
takes in planning the work of this committee, every member of the committee
still has his rights.

Mr. Epwarps: I realize that. I do not care what it is so long as we know
where we are starting from. I am not criticizing in any way anything that has
been done. It is all right just so long as we know where we are starting and
how we are going to get on.

The Cuamrman: Of course we have to stick to the order of reference.

Mr. MarTiN: Mr. Chairman, I had in mind your telegram from Mr. Hen-
shaw. I will move that this committee arrange to meet his travelling expenses,
and that he hold himself available to be here at the committee’s call or at the
Chairman’s call on behalf of the committee; and that the same should apply to
Mr. J. J. Gibbons. :

y ’l;he CuarMAN: Would you mind repeating that, and the clerk will take it
own?

Mr. MagrTin: In view of the fact that Mr. Donald Henshaw has by tele-
gram intimated to the Chairman that he is not prepared to come unless his
expenses are taken care of, I move that the necessary expenses be forwarded to
him, with instructions that he hold himself in readiness to appear before the
committee at the call of the Chairman. Does that require a seconder?

The CramrMAN: No, it does not require a seconder.

Mr. MarTin: Then with regard to Mr. Gibbons, has he signified whether or
not he will come at his own expense?

The Cuamrman: I have not had any contact with Mr. Gibbons at all.

Mr. Marrin: I would move that he be contacted. Possibly he is prepared
to come at his own expense. If not, I would move that he be furnished expenses
to be here at the call of the Chairman.

Mr. BertraND: Every time we need somebody from outside, is it absolutely
necessary that we make a motion for his expenses to be paid? There are some
from Montreal that are going to come. I do not know whether they will come
voluntarily or not.

The Cramman: If it is necessary to pay their expenses, there must be a
motion.

Mr. BerTrAND: In each case?
The CrAmRMAN: Yes.
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Mr. Epwarps: Are we not obliged to pay their expenses 1f we request t,hem
to come here? E
The CuamMan: We are obliged to pay their expenses if we send for them
Mr. Epwarps: Surely. :
Mr. McInTtosu: Why send for a person if he is not a matenal w1tness? If
you send for him you have got to pay his expenses. I think it is more dignified,

if you want him and he is important, to let him know right away and not talk
about expenses at all. 48
o The Cuamrman: Yes. But, Mr. Woodsworth, if you ask a man to be avail-

able— o

Mr. McInTosu: Do not call me Mr. Woodsworth.

The CuamrMaN: T might say I was just looking at the top of the head and
did not see very much difference.

Mr. Massey: I am sure an apology is necessary.

The CuarmaN: In the case of a gentleman whom you wish to have before
the committee who intimates that he is willing to come providing his expenses are
paid, T think that is the proper way to do. -Shall the motion of Mr. Martin
carry?

‘

Motion agreed to.

Just before you go on, Mr. Martin, I might say that this committee must
stick to the order of reference from the House of Commons, unless the committee
decides to ask the House of Commons to amend its order of reference.

Mr. Jounston: Is it the intention that the committee will lay out a program
so that we will know exactly what is coming?

The CuamrMAN: Yes. We have just discussed that. The personnel having
been changed and being more available than in the past, when the minister was
not able to attend, the sub-committee will meet as soon as possible and plan out
the work. The order of reference is to i inquire into the operation of the Canadian
Radio Commission and its administration of the Canadian Radio Broadeastig
Act of 1932 and amendments, and the regulations made under authority thereof:
to advise what, if any, change shall be effected in the existing system of radio
broadcasting; and whether the said statute and regulations should be amended
in whole or in part; and what, if any, additions should be made thereto; also to
inquire into the extent to which there has been any abuse of broadca.stmg privi-
leges, either for political or advertising purposes, and to advise as to what prin-
ciples should govern the regulation or control thereof.

Having gone so far as to ask the Commission to see that Mr. Maxted and
Mr. Lucas be here this morning, and also in view of the fact that Mr. Martin
has made a motion which has carried, is it the wish of the committee that we go
on with clause 3 of the order of 1eference, which is to inquire into the extent to
which there has been any abuse of broadeasting privileges either for political or
advertising purposes?

Mr. BERTRAND: Yes.

Mr. CampBeLL: In view of the fact that previous evidence has shown that
this matter comes to the fore in nearly every case, and we are trying to lay a basis
regarding the business, I think therefore we should dispose of it first and get it
out of the way.

The CuarMAN: Is that the wish of the committee?
Mr. Ryan: Do you want a motion, Mr. Chairman?
The CuamrMAN: No. There is no necessity for a motion if it is agreed.
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Mr. MarTiN: Mr. Chairman, I wonder if we could have production now,
through a messenger, of a file in the Department of Immigration, so that it
would be available to the committee before we adjourn? The file is presumably
entitled “ In the matter of Donald Henshaw.” You could send a messenger
and that could be before the committee before we adjourn.

The CuamrmaN: Have you just what you want there?

Mr. MarTiN: Yes. There is a file. I do not know what the title is, but
it deals with the case of Donald Henshaw. I think the Deputy Minister will
likely know where the file is, and I think a messenger should be sent to him
so that production of the file may be made, and that it may be available to
the committee before we adjourn to-day.

The CramMAN: Does the file contain correspondence with Donald Hen-
shaw?

Mr. MarTin: It is the file regarding Donald Henshaw. I do not know
what is in it. ;
The CramrMaN: Do you make a motion?
Mr. CampBeLL: I shall be glad to move it.
Mr. MarTiN: I move that, Mr. Chairman.

Hon. Mr. Mackenzie: I suppose the Deputy Minister would have to
appear himself.

Mr. CampBerrL: We could ask for production of the file and that the
Deputy (Mr. Magladery) be held in readiness.

Mr. MarTiN: I do not want Mr. Magladery particularly. What I wanted
was the file. I wanted to look through it. If that file does not contain an order
for the deportation of Donald Henshaw, I would ask for the production of
the order for deportation of Donald Henshaw, which document should be in
the Department of Immigration.

The Cmameman: I think, Mr. Martin, we could ask for the file; and if
the information that you desire is not there, we can ask them to produce it.

Mr. MarTin: I just want to facilitate matters. I have certain questions
that I want to ask later on, and to facilitate those questions I wonder if I might
ask for certain other productions?

The CuHAIRMAN: Yes.

Mr. MarTiN: Is anybody from the Commission here? Is the Secretary
of the Commission here?

The Cuamman: Mr. Landry is here.

Mr. MarTin: I wonder if he would be good enough to produce, and I
would make a motion to that effect, all cheques paid by the Radio Commission
to one Donald Henshaw, for the convenience of this committee; also all corre-
spondence between the Radio Commission and any other government or any
other body regarding the Sage broadcasts. I should also like to ask for the
production of the letter given to Donald Henshaw by the Canadian Radio
Commission in respect of facilitating his return from the United States to
Canada on the occasion of visits by him from Canada to the United States.

The CrAlRMAN: Is that all, Mr. Martin?

Mr. MarTIN: Yes.

The CuamMAN: Have you got that, Mr. Landry?
Mr. Lanpry: Yes sir.
Mr. MarTin: There is just one more that I forgot. I should like produc-

tion of all contracts and records showing payments for the Sage broadcasts
that may be in the possession of the Radio Commission.
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The Cuamman: Is that all?
Mr. MARTIN: Yes. : 3
The CramrMaN: Mr. Landry has that. Mr. Charlesworth has sent me

a telegram saying that he would be unable to be here to-day on account of

illness. We have Col. Steel here and we have Col. Chauveau, as well as Mr.
Maxted and Mr. Lueas. What is the wish of the committee?

Mr. MasseEy: Mr. Chairman, before we determine what we are going to
go ahead with this morning, may I inquire what is the purpose of what we are
about to do? This morning there is placed before us the seript which was
used in one of the Sage broadecasts; at least, I presume that is what it is.
We have heard the request this morning for the production of various papers
concerning one Don. Henshaw. I think it is only fair that the eommittee
be apprised of what the purpose of all this is at the moment.

The CmamrMaN: I think the term reference, which it was agreed that
we should take up, covers that, Mr. Massey.

Mr. Massey: By whom was it decided that this one particular broadcast
be the point of investigation?

The CuamrMaN: Just a few minutes ago.

Mr. Massey: This one particular broadcast?

Mr. CameBeLL: No, any broadecast. :

The CuamrmaN: No. I mean any broadcast. Any member of the com-
mittee has a right to ask for the investigation of any political broadcast he
wishes.

Mr. Massey: 1 just wanted to know.

Mr. MclIxtosu: The whole political perspective of the Commission, if
any, should be gone into thoroughly.

The CHAIRMAN: The order of reference covers that. What is the wish of
the committee?

Mr. CampBeLL: I think we should hear from Col. Steel first.

The CuHAmRMAN: Is it the wish of the committee that we should hear from
Col. Steel?

Mr. CampBELL: In view of the absence of Mr. Charlesworth.
The CHAIRMAN; Col. Steel, will you kindly come forward.

Col. W. A. SteEL, called.

By My, Campbell:

Q. Col. Steel, you were appointed to the Commission early in 1933, were
you not?—A. Yes.

Q. In what capacity, at that time?—A. As commissioner.
b Q. Was that the first conneetion you had with the Radio Commission?—A.

es.

Q. What had you been doing previously?—A. I had been with the Natxonal
Research Council.

Q. Are you still connected with any other government department?—A.
I am still a member of the Department of National Defence, seconded to the
Research Council and then to the Broadcasting Commission.

Q. As a member of the Commission, what dutiés have you been carrying
out, mamly‘?——A Largely those connected with the technical side of the Com-
mission’s activities.

[Lt.-Col. W. Arthur Steel, M.C.]
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Q. Is that entirely regarding the matter of station wave lengths and so
on, or does that include business as well?—A. General engineering matters per-
talning to both our own stations and privately owned stations in Canada.
Naturally, in addition to that, I take my own fair share of the Commission’s
work.

By Mr. Dupuis:
Q. Are you an engineer by profession?—A. Yes.

By Mr. Campbell:
Q. Did you practise as an engineer?—A. Yes.
Q. Where?—A. Toronto and Northern Ontario.
Q. As an electrical engineer?—A. Yes.

By Mr. MclIntosh:
Q. You are a graduate of what university?>—A. Toronto University.

Mr. CaMPBELL: In view of the fact that we are going to have the matters
affecting the business a little later, probably it would be just as well if we were
to have the political connections.

By Mr. Martin:

Q. Col. Steel, having in mind that you are one of the members of the
Commission, I wonder if you could tell the committee just what you, as one
member of that body, would have to do, for instance, with a broadcast that is
now commonly known as the Sage broadcast?—A. I had nothing to do with it.

Q. Nothing whatsoever?—A, Nothing whatsoever.

Q. Having in mind that you are more or less on the technical side, did you
have anything to do with arranging for the technical facilities of the Sage
broadcasts?—A. Nothing whatsoever.

Q. Nothing whatsoever?—A. No,

Q. Did the Chairman of the Commission at no time discuss features of any
sort of the Sage broadeasts with you?—A. Yes, he did.

Q. Would you mind relating to the committee the nature of that dis-
cussion?—A. When the Sage broadcast was considered first, and during the
first two or three actual broadcasts, I was away from the Commission on leave.
I came back about the middle of August or perhaps a little later. I have
forgotten the date. Omne or two of these broadcasts had been taken place. I
understood then from Mr. Charlesworth that there had been some complaints
and that he had taken action.

Q. By the way, Col. Steel, can you tell us whether or not the logs of these
broadcasts are in the possession of the Commissien?—A. 1 cannot speak from
personal knowledge.

Q. You cannot speak from personal knowledge?—A. No.

Q. I am sorry; I am afraid I interrupted you there—A. No, I was
through.

Q. Were you informed of the nature of the complaint?—A. Yes. I was
told by Mr. Charlesworth that there had been complaints about certain things
said during the Sage broadcasts. He further told me that he had written to
the responsible parties in Toronto requesting that changes be made, but I did
not see the correspondence,

By Mr. Campbell :
Q. That changes be made—in what way do you mean?—A, I cannot tell
you anything further. I did not see the correspondence.
By Mr. Martin:

Q. Did Mr. Charlesworth ask you to go to Toronto in connection with
complaints that were made?—A. No sir.
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Q. Are you in a position to tell us from what station those broadcéét; et

emanated?—A. No sir.

Q. What is the government station in Toronto?—A. Station CRCT.

Q. Then I take it you cannot tell us whether the Sage broadcasts emanated
from that station or from a private station?—A. No, sir. I cannot tell you.

Q. I take it that you could not tell us who arranged for these broadcasts?—
A. No, sir. I do not normally handle the commercial activities of the Commis-
sion, and any information I might have—

By Mr. Campbell:

Q. Who handles those?—A. They are handled by Mr. Charlesworth directly, f

with the staff, the part of our staff responsible for commercial work.

Mr. McIntosu: I am not just quite clear on Col. Steel’s statement. At

the beginning he stated that he was a member of the Commission. If he is a
member of the Commission, would he not be responsible, individually, for what
the Commission did in the way of the technical workout for any broadcast?

Wirness: There was no special technical work in connection with the Sage
broadcasts of which I am aware.

Mr. Durpuis: If I remember rightly, at the beginning you said that outside
of your technical work as an engineer you took your equal share in the work
of the Commission, as a commissioner.

Mr. McInTosa: That is my point exactly.

By Mr. Dupuis: :

Q. T understand that you sit as a commissioner on any questions that might
arise before you?—A. Correct, sir.

Q. Then as a commissioner, bearing your own responsibility, you cannot
tell this committee personally what the stand of the Commission was?—A. I
have already told you that I was not in Ottawa when this matter came up. I
was not here to take any part in the Commission’s activity.

Q. Did you ever protest or dissent from the decision of the Commlssmn
about the Sage broadcast?—A. No, I did not, because I did not hear the Sage
broadcast. I had no definite information on lt whatsoever. -

Q. This question was never brought before the Commission after you
returned ?—A. Except the report by Mr. Charlesworth to the effect that he had
taken action in my absence?

Q. Did you protest or ask the secretary of the commission to register your
dissent?—A. I did not, I saw no reason for doing that.

By Mr. McIntosh:

Q. Were all of the Sage broadcasts over by the time you returned?—A. No,
sir, I think there were two.

Q. I 1mag1ne that if they were not all over and two were to come that as a
member of the commission you ought to have had some say in connection with
the Sage broadcasts. But you say you did not sit in on the Commission with
regard to any aspect of the question?—A. No.

By Mr. Martin:

Q. Did Mr. Charlesworth tell you that some members employed by the
Radio Commission had participated in these broadecasts; that is, the first two
that you heard of on your return?—A. I do not remember Mr. Charlesworth
tellmg me that, no.

Q. Did anyone tell you that members employed by the Commission were
recerving moneys from the Commission for participating in these broadeasts?—A.
No, I do not think I had that information given to me.

[Lt.-Col. W. Arthur Steel, M.C.]
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By Mr. Edwards:

Q. Do you at any time in connection with these broadcasts have anything
to do with the subject matter, either in your capacity as a commissioner or as a
member of the general commission, or individually?—A. When you say the sub-
ject matter, do you refer to the continuity of the broadcasts? :

Q. No, not the technical part?—A. No, no, I mean the continuity, the
material which is actually broadcast.

Q. That is the idea?—A. No. Ordinarily, that would not come before me;
that would go to Mr. Charlesworth.

Q. So in regard to the Sage broadeasts you would be in the same position?—
A. Yes.

By Mr. McIntosh:

Q. You would not know what the subject or theme of the broadcast was
to be?—A. I would not.

Mr. McIntosu: Well, as member of the Commission that is a rather peculiar
admission.

By Mr. Martin.:

Q. Did you not have a discussion with Mr. Maxted who is now regional
director of the Radio Commission station in Toronto about the Sage broadcast
after your return and before the last broadcast had expired?—A. I do not remem-
ber such a discussion.

Q. Did you have any correspondence with him?—A. No, sir.

Q. Do you know Donald Henshaw?—A. I know him to see him, yes.

Q. Has he ever been in your office in the commission?—A. I do think so.

Q. Have you ever sent Donald Henshaw on Commission business to the
United States?—A. No, sir.

Q. Do you know whether or not he did some work for the Commission in
the United States?—A. No, sir, I do not.

By Mr. Ryan: :

Q. Did Mr. Charlesworth tell you there had been some complaints in con-
nection with the broadeasts?—A. Yes, sir. -

Q. Did you ask him what the nature of the complaints were?—A. Well, he
told me it was what had been said during the broadecasts.

Q. Is that all he said?—A. He mentioned it was personalities.

Q. Did he say anything else?—A. No.

Q. Did you make any further inquiries?—A. Not directly.

Q. Were you not interested?

Mr. Massey: Perhaps, Colonel Steel, there were so many personalities
dealt with at that time—

Wirness: What do you mean that T was not interested?

Q. Interested in the question of broadcasts of that type going over the air?
—A. I knew Mr. Charlesworth was in a far better position to handle the com-
plaints than T was.

Q. But you were a member of the Commission?—A. 1 was.

Q. Were you not interested?—A. I had sufficient confidence in Mr. Charles-
worth to know that if he thought action should be taken and had taken action
I was quite prepared to back him.

Q. You left that to Mr. Charlesworth?—A. Yes.

By Mr. Martin:

Q. Would you give us some more particulars about these complaints? You
told us that Mr. Charlesworth said there were complaints, and your answer to

Mr. Ryan was that there was some discussion about personalities. Would you
17250—2
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kindly elaborate on your statement and give us some detalls as ta what Mr
Charlesworth told you about these complaints, who sent them, were they com

plaints by letters or were they complaints by telephone?—A. As far as how the e

complaints reached the Commission, I cannot tell you that.

Q. Tell us something about the complaints specifically and in detall?—
A. T do not think I can give you any further details, except that Mr. Charles-
worth explained to me that there were complaints about personalities contained
in the continuity of the broadcast itself.

Q. Or about complaints about any other broadcasts?—A. I am afraid your
question is too general.

Q. You told us, Colonel Steel, that Mr. Charlesworth told you there were

complaints about the Sage broadcast?—A. Yes.

Q. Were there any complaints to your knowledge, as related by Mr. Charles-
worth, with respect to political broadcasts other than the Sage broadcasts?—
A. Are you referring now to the entire campaign?

Q. Yes, with regard to any political party, if you want to put it that way,
or any political broadeast whatsoever?—A. I do not think I could put my finger
on any discussion about any particular broadcast.

By Mr. Campbell:

Q. Your Commission were never called together to decide—I take this from
the impression you left—upon any policy regarding political broadcasts during
the campaign? Is that correct?—A. That is hardly correct. Before the cam-
paign began we had a discussion as to how best to handle the matter. We
realized there might be trouble, and we decided that we would have to exercise
such powers as we had in order to see that the time was properly divided. Now,
under the regulations it is the responsibility of the station manager to see that
the broadeasts over his station come within the regulations.

By Mr. McIntosh:

Q. But he would be responsible to headquarters, would he not?—A. He is
responsible for what is broadecast over his station, and if he does not make a
complaint we would not get any information with regard to it until the com-
plaints began to come in from outside.

By Mr. Campbell:

Q. But you were never called together after these complaints? Apparently
there is no doubt that Mr. Charlesworth had eomplaints regarding broadcasts,
not necessarily this one, and you were not called together as a Commission to
set any policy as to what you would do?—A. - Not while I was there.

By Mr. Martin:

Q. At this meeting that you speak of before the campaign when the com-
mission discussed rules that should be employed in giving equity to all political
parties was there any discussion as to the Commission’s responsibility in arrang-
ing for the broadcasts of any political party? Do you know whether or not
the Radio Commission did arrange for broadeasts or portions of broadcasts of
any political party?—A. We did for all political parties.

Q. Well, for instance, did you arrange, let us say for a speech of the present
Prime Minister through the Radio Commission with private stations or with
your own stations?—A. I believe we did.

Q. Or was that done through an advertising agency?—A. Perhaps I could
save time if you would let me explain how these matters are handled.

[Lt.-Col. W. Arthur Steel, M.C.]
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Q. Yes—A. We have a department there that looks after the wire line
service for any broadcast whether it is a political broadcast or any commercial
broadeast. An application is made through that department for certain times.
We investigate to see whether or not stations and lines are available. If they
are not, we try to make adjustments so that the party enquiring can get the
service that he or she requires. If that can be done, a contract is signed for the
time, and that is as far as we go. We do that with any commercial applicant
or with any political applicant. As far as I know, all applications from all
political parties came in the same way.

Q. To be more specific, Colonel Steel, can you tell the committee whether or
not with respect to the Sage broadcast that broadcast was arranged through
the Radio Commission or through a private advertising agency?—A. I cannot
tell you from my own knowledge.

Mr. Epwarps: Mr. Chairman, as Colonel Steel says he cannot answer that
on his own knowledge I think we should have someone here who, from his own
knowledge, can give that information.

By Mr. Dupuis:

Q. Have you a book of minutes of the deliberations of your commission?—
A. The secretary will have the book of minutes.

Q. Is this discussion and decision of the commission about these broadcasts
recorded in that minute book?—A. Such discussion as took place in the com-
mission will, of course, be on the minutes.

Q. Was the question before you decided by the commission as a commission
and recorded by the secretary?—A. What question?

Q. The question of political broadecasts. Each time a political party applies
for a certain limit of time, is that discussed by your commission and a decision
recorded in the minute book?—A. No, sir, we do not (discuss each individual
application for time before the commission itself. That is handled by the depart-
ment looking after the commercial broadcasts.

Q. You stated that you were absent. To be precise, can you tell the date
of your absence?—A. I could get that for you.

Q. You have not that in mind?—A. I have not got it here.

Q. Was it previous to the 14th October?—A. Yes, sir.

Q. Was it due to illness or a holiday, or what was the cause of your absence?
—A. A statutory leave.

Q. I beg your pardon?—A. It was a statutory leave.

Q. Do you know for how long a period?—A. I think I was gone practically
three weeks.

Q. I understand that each party had a certain limit of time for their
political speeches, liberals, conservatives and others; is that true?—A. There was
no definite limit set, no, sir. '

Q. No definite limit set?—A. No definite limit set. I have already said that
we simply decided that we must make an equitable distribution of time, and I
believe that was done.

Q. From the minute book of the commission could we find out what was
allotted to the conservatives and how much time was allotted to the liberals
and the other parties?—A. From the records of the commercial department
of the commission you could get all that information.

Q. Have you that here?—A. I have not.

Q. Could you have these record books brought up at the next sitting?—
A. That information can be obtained, yes, sir.

Mr. Dupuis: It seems to me, Mr. Chairman, that it is very important that
we should know exactly what occurred, as to how much time was allotted to
Mr. Sage.

Q. You cannot tell that from memory?—A. No, sir.
172502}
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Q. We would like to have that information?—A. If I might make a sug-
gestion to the committee, I would suggest that the man in charge of our com-
mercial department, Mr. Powell, would be the man to call. He will have all
this information as he handled not only the Sage broadcast but other com-
mercial and political broadcasts that took place during that period.

By the Chairman:

Q. Mr. Powell is not here?—A. He was here this morning, but I am not
sure that he had this data with him.

By Mr. Martin:
Q. Colonel Steel, I should like to ask you one more question. Having in
- mind that you are a member of the commission, would you think it proper
for the commission to arrange for broadcasts or portions of broadcasts of any
political party in view of the request of private stations or a private station
that all such arrangements should be lodged through a private advertising
agency >—A. I do not know that that request was ever made to the commission.

Q. I am not asking you that. Would you consider, in the light of your
experience on the commission, that that woudl be a proper thing for the com-
mission to do?—A. I do not believe I understand your question.

Q. Well, may I put it to you another way. I have already asked you,
having in mind that we are talking about political broadeasts, whether or not
the commission made it a practice of arranging for the political broadeasts of
any political party. Your answer to that was that the commission did that
for all political parties. Then, if you remember, I was most specific and we
confined ourselves to a portion or to the entire Sage broadcasts. The question
I have now asked you is, in the light of your experience as a commissioner do
you think it is good practice for the Radio Commission—I am not saying that
it did—I am merely asking if you think it is good practice for the Radio Com-
mission to arrange for the political broadeasts of any politieal party, particularly
when a request is made by a private station or stations that such arrangements
should be made by a private advertising agency?—A. If I understand you cor-
rectly I think the only question we would have to settle would be whether or
not the parties approaching us were financially responsible.

By Mr. Campbell :
Q. Regardless of whether they were political parties?

By Mr. Bertrand:
Q. And regardless of what they were going to say?—A. Regardless of who
they were so long as they are financially responsible:for the time they asked.
We would then be justified in making such arrangements as we suggested.

By Mr. McIntosh:
Q. Subject to an analysis of the subject-matter to be broadcasted?—A. That
is the case with every broadcast, sir.

By Mr. Martin: ,

Q. T do not think my question has been understood by Colonel Steel. Do
you think that the Radio Commission, in respect of programs to be paid for
by political parties, should function in that particular as an advertising agency
does?—A. We do not function as an advertising agency. \

Q. I am not asking if you do but do you think the Radio Commission with
regard to political broadcasts should function as a private agency ‘does for
political broadeasts?—A. I see nothing wrong with it.

Q. You see nothing wrong with it—A. No.

[Lt.-Col. W. Arthur Steel, M.C.]
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By Mr. Campbell:

Q. Would you class that with other broadcasts?—A. That has been classed
as other commercial broadcasts. .

Q. You mean the commission does not draw any line in dealing with political
broadcasts and the regular commercial business?—A. It is all commercial
business.

Q. I know that is true; that it brings many to the commission and in that
sense it can be called commercial; but as I understand it you have certain regu-
lations regarding political broadeasts; that in the practice of radio there is
some difference, and I take from what you say now that you consider there
is no difference between a political broadecast and a commercial broadcast?—
A. I might make it a little bit clearer in this way. There are two distinet
points of view from which you have to view any broadcast. One is a pure
matter of timing up a number of stations by line at a certain given time and
date. That is the commercial end of it. The lines must be paid for, and so
must the stations. Now, when we tie that up we must definitely know that
the party with whom we are dealing is financially responsible. In that regard
there is no difference between an ordinary commercial broadcast and a political
broadcast, as both require time, lines and stations, and all three must be paid
for. Therefore they are all together from that point of view.

The other point of view is entirely different, and that is a question of the
content of the actual matter broadcast over that chain. Now, those two functions
of the commission naturally function separately. One is handled by our com-
mercial department, and from that point of view I say there is no difference
between a political broadecast paid for and a comercial paid for. A

When it comes to the question of studying the content, or regulating the
content of that program, that comes under our regulatory functions. In that
regard our regulations say very clearly that the manager of the station is
responsible for assuring himself that the content or continuity of that program
to be broadcast over his station comes within the regulations. If he is in doubt
as to the nature of the broadcast, he will ask for the continuity. If he looks
it over and finds it all right, he will pass it. If he does not he may then go
back to the originator asking for changes, or he may submit the matter to u
The commission, as a commission, would only function in connection with suc
complaints received from a station manager,

By Mr. Ryan:
Q. Has he the sole responsibility?—A. Under the regulations.

By Mr. Edwards:

Q. As I understand it, that is what Mr. Charlesworth told us the other day?
—A. I believe he did.

Q. Speaking about these broadeasts and the manuscripts, do they submit

them to the management prior to the broadcast?—A. They may if the station
manager requests it.

Q. If he has reason to suspect that some undesirable broadcast may be
made?—A. Then it is duty to ask for a copy of the continuity.

Q. Yes. You three could not regulate the thousands of broadcasts going
out all over the country?—A. The commission, a commission of three men, could

not possibly do it. We must have any number of men on the job as station
managers.

Q. Yes, superintendents of particular areas?—A. Yes.

Q. You are the general manager of the whole organization and he is re-
sponsible to you. If he does something that is not right he has to answer for that
to you?—A. That is the system.

i
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By Mr. McIntosh: : ‘

Q. The responsibility of the station doing the broadecasting also implies a
responsibility on the part of the commission as a whole, does it not?—A. Oh, no.

Q. Yes?—A. We depend upon the man at the point; that is, the station
manager to carry out our regulations.

Q. And if you have a station manager there who has made a blunder or a
mistake, that mistake or that blunder must to a very large degree react on the
commission as a whole. There is no getting away from that, is there?—A. Quite
correct.

By Mr. Martin:

Q. So there will be no misunderstanding, Colonel Steel, with regard to your
answer to my question; is the committee to assume from your answer that the
practice of the commission has been to compete with representatives of political
organizations and advertising companies?—A. I do not think the term “compete”
is correct. We are available there, and are prepared to make this arrangement
provided any responsible individual or agency so wishes.

Q. I see; then you actually solicit business?—A. No, sir.

Q. You do not?—A. We have no agencies.

Q. Do you know whether or not one large private company refused to deal
through the commission with regard to political broadcasts on the ground that it
did not think it would receive immediate payment for its services in connection
with broadecasting?—A. No, sir; I never heard of that.

Q. You did not know that?—A. No.

By Mr. Campbell:
Q. Would Mr. Powell know that?—A. He might know it.

By Mr. Martin:

Q. Do you know whether or not there are outstanding accounts owing to the
commission for services rendered in respect of political broadeasts?—A. I think
they have all been settled.

Q. You think they have all been settled?—A. Yes, I think they have all
been settled now. ‘

Q. Why do you think that?—A. Because at a recent meeting of the com-
mission I understand we were told that cheques had come in now to cover the
outstanding liabilities. ;

Q. I see. I would like to ask Colonel Steel one more question: I asked the
Minister of Railways (Hon. Mr. Howe) if he would be good enough to bring his
file in respect to certain correspondence that passed recently between the chair-
man and himself—I wonder if that is available now, Mr. Howe?

Hon. Mr. Howe: I think the chairman has it.

Mr. Martin: We will want to have that put in as one of the exhibits, and I
want to ask Colonel Steele something about it. =

Hon. Mr. Canan: Would the minister explain the nature of the correspon-
dence so that we will be in a position to understand what it means.

Hon. Mr. Howe: I was asked to produce an original letter from Mr. Charles-
worth to myself in connection with the “Sage” broadcasts, written some three or
four months ago. That is the only correspondence I have on the subject, but
one letter from Mr. Charlesworth to myself explaining what happened there.

By Mr. Martin:

Q. Colonel Steele, referring to a letter the original of which I have before
me and which is dated November 20, and purporting to come from Mr. Charles-
worth to the Minister of Railways, can you tell the committee whether or not
that letter was discussed with you by Mr. Charlesworth before being written?>—A.
No, sir, it was not.

[Lt.-Col. W. Arthur Steel, M.C.]
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Hon. Mr. CauaN: One moment, please. Let us have this right.

Mr. Epwarps: Let us get these questions right.

Hon. Mr. Caman: Let us have some of the particulars as to date, and so on.
Is this a letter written to the Minister of Railways prior to October 14 last?

Mr. MarTin: This letter was written under date of November 20, 1935.

Mr. Cauan: This is apparently correspondence between Mr. Charlesworth
and the Minister. If it is the intention to make it a public document it should be
put on the record.

Mr. Martin: That is my intention.

Hon. Mr. Howe: I will be very glad to see that copies of this letter are
available to any member of the committee who wishes to have one. It was not
sent to myself alone, copies were sent to others. It is not a private document
at all, and I may say there is nothing of particular importance in it.

Mr. MarTiN: My intention certainly was that it should be available to the
committee.

Hon. Mr. Hows: I was asked to produce it, and I presume it will be on the
record.

Hon. Mr. Cauan: I would simply say to the minister that if we are to regard
this as documentary evidence in regard to the matter we should have it properly
produced.

Mr. CampBeLL: It will be in the record.

Mr. Epwarps: But, we should have it first.

Hon. Mr. Howe: If any of you gentlemen would like to see it I will be glad

* to pass it over.

Mr. MartiN: I think possibly the best course would be for us to read it
into the record right now.

Mr. WoobpsworTH: Just before you go into this matter: as a member of
this committee I am utterly at a loss to know where we are going.

Hon. Mr. CaaAN: Hear, hear.

Mr. WoobnsworTH: With all deference to my friend Mr. Paul Martin, I am
an ordinary layman, not a lawyer, I am glad to say. We are transforming this
committee into a police court and we have a prisoner in the dock. We are
treating him as if he were a criminal. I really think that as a scientific man
he ought to be allowed to give his explanations in a scientific sort of way; that
we should accept that situation. I think if he tells us that it is not being
considered a part of his duties to deal with these matters we ought to take
that. We may not agree with the policy of the commission in assigning one
type of duty to one man and another type of duty to another; that is another
matter, but so far as the witness is concerned I cannot see why we should
continue to badger him.

Hon. Mr. Mackenzie: Thef® is no “ badgering.” I think witness has been
very fairly treated, and he has given very fair answers. The questions have
been fair too.

Mr. WoopsworrH: That may be. As I said, I am not so familiar with the
procedure of courts as are some of the other gentlemen. It seems to me that
the least Mr. Martin, or any other gentlemen, in prosecuting this matter can
do, is to give us their aim, give us an idea as to just what they want to get at
w1_th regard to this whole “ Sage ” business. I venture to say that because I
think it would facilitate the work of the committee.

The Cmamrman: I might say, Mr. Woodsworth, that Colonel Steel is
certainly not being treated as a criminal; because he is not even under oath yet.

Mr. Marrin: I think the question raised by Mr. Woodsworth is a proper
one, and as I have taken some prominence in the questioning this morning I
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want to. say that I did so simply because I thought that as a member of the

committee it was my duty to know as much about the subject matter involved

as I possibly could.” I have taken some pains to go out and obtain this know-

ledge and information—and at my own expense, incidentally—and it is on this
information that my questions have been based; both with respect to the
questions I have put to this witness and those which I would like to put to
other witnesses. There was no particular intention in my mind to act in the
role of prosecutor; if that applies then I think Mr. Woodsworth is a little worse
than a lawyer, he thought he was acting as attorney for the defence.

Mr. WoopsworTH: I was going to suggest the other day when Mr. Charles-
worth was before us that we really ought to appoint someone to act for the
defence.

Hon. Mr. Mackenzie: Counsel only assist the committee in getting at
the facts. :

Mr. WoopswortH: But I do suggest, Mr. Chairman and Mr. Minister—
and we as a committee perhaps have the right to ask this—just what are we
trying to get at in regard to this thing.

The CuAlRMAN: Just a moment, please. I think what we are doing to-day
is what the committee decided on a few moments ago; that we would investigate
the political broadcasts during the last campaign.

Mr. Epwarps: Does that mean one political broadcast?
Hon. Mr. Mackenzig: No.

The CrAlRMAN: Any and all political broadcasts. What Mr. Martin is
trying to get at is information that would be of value to the investigation. I
do certainly think that Mr. Woodsworth should not use the word “ prosecutor.”
Mr. Martin has been very fair in his questions and Colonel Steel has been a very
good witness.

Hon. Mr. Caman: The suggestion by my friend, Mr. Woodsworth, was
jocular, and it is not intended that Mr. Steel should be considered as a prisoner
in the dock. But, I do suggest, having looked over this letter very hastily;
this is a letter of November 20th, addressed to the Honourable C. D. Howe by
Mr. Charlesworth and is not a letter that can be given in evidence; it is a
letter between an official of what is practically a branch of a department to
his minister. Mr. Charlesworth was a witness here. If it is intended to go into
this Mr. Charlesworth should be asked about it so he could give his evidence
direct. He should not be made to give it indirectly by means of a letter which
he has written to a minister. Mr. Charlesworth should be produced here, and
he alone can give the evidence as to the particulars mentioned in this letter.
He should be here and he should be subject to cross-examination.

Mr. MarTIN: I think that is very clearly settled now. I think the Honour-
able Mr. Cahan is quite right and is suggesting the proper way. Mr. Charles-
worth should appear before the committee, we should ask him to produce the
letter and proceed in that way. One point we should have settled is, if we are
proceeding here in this committee as a court of law—and I think we are
not—and if we are not I think there should be latitude allowed. My purpose in
asking that of Mr. Steel now was that if we did not ask him now we would
have to call him again at a later time, and I was trying to complete this phase
of the inquiry, the political aspect of it. That was my purpose. I think we
should clearly understand whether we are sitting here as a court or as a com-
mittee, so that we will know how to proceed.

Mr. Ryan: I think we ought to settle that question now, whether we are
going to be bound by the strict rules of evidence, or whether we are going to
have a full and open inquiry into all matters that may concern us in dealing
with our reference.

[Lt.-Col. W. Arthur Steel, M.C.]
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Mr. CampBELL: As I see it, Mr. Chairman, and I am only a layman, our
duty as a parliamentary committee is to ask for any information which Colonel
Steel, Mr. Charlesworth or any other officer of the commission may be able to
give us, providing it is relevant to the matter under discussion. We are now
dealing with political organizations. We are asking information from these
men on account of their experience, and because they are officials who know
something about the broadecasting business in Canada. With that information
we should be able to make a report that is going to be of some value to the
House of Commons, and that is our business.

Hon. Mr. CaHAN: I do think Mr. Chairman, while we are not bound by
the strict rules of evidence this committee certainly in the performance of its
duty would desire to obtain evidence in the proper manner. I notice that we
spent half a day, or most of one day, in asking Mr. Charlesworth about the
financial administration and the comptroller’s office, with respect to which he
knows little, and with respect to which his minister would no doubt by reason
of his experience of the last few months know more. The proper thing would
have been to bring in the comptroller and find out exactly what the situation
was, how a certain account would be dealt with. In this case Mr. Charles-
worth apparently has written a letter on November 20th to his minister. It
was perfectly proper for him to write it, and perfectly proper for his minister
to ask him to write it.

The CuHAmMAN: Might I interrupt you right there, Mr. Cahan? When
Mr. Charlesworth as chairman of the Radio Commission writes a letter to the
minister he writes it as chairman of the Radio Commission and not as Mr.
Charlesworth.

Hon. Mr. CaHAN: But, you see, he writes it as chairman; I am not pre-
pared to take that letter as the best evidence, or reasonable evidence. Mr.
Charlesworth should be brought here and he should give this evidence which
is contained in his report to his minister, and he should be subject to cross-
examination about it. I suggest that we should not put in the letter.

The CEAIRMAN: I may say, Mr. Cahan, that Mr. Charlesworth would have
been here this morning but for the fact that he is ill in Toronto.

Hon. Mr. CAHAN: Then we might defer putting his letter in until he is
here. He can testify with regard to it later on, and he can be cross-examined
with regard to it then.

Mr. MARTIN: T am prepared to agree with what Mr. Cahan has said. My
only purpose in putting it in now was to ask Colonel Steel if he knew about the
letter. He has said he did not. That ends it. I think we might call Mr.
Charlesworth back and put the question directly to him.

Mr. BERTRAND: There is no doubt that if this letter is signed by Mr.
Charlesworth it is a letter from Mr. Charlesworth and if he wants to make an
explanation about this letter he ean do so when he comes back; but it is not
for us to say that, he might have some other information.

_ The CramrvaN: I may say, Mr. Cahan, that this file of correspondence
will be available to every member of the committee.

~ Mr. Caman: Quite so. But it is not evidence before this committee. That
is all. T am suggesting that when Mr. Charlesworth is available it can be
properly put in.

The CralRMAN: It is agreed then that we are not to question Colonel Steel
about this letter until Mr. Charlesworth has presented it.

Hon. Mr. Howe: May I say this: apparently someone asked my secretary
for this letter and I did not know that it had to be produced here. It was sent
to me. It was not a letter that I asked for. Mr. Charlesworth in his covering
letters says, at the risk of wearying you I am enclosing a letter giving the com-



‘plete history of the “ Mr. Sage ” broadecasts; I am sending a copy of it to thé

Prime Minister; it just indicates the main facts in connection therewith.
Hon. Mr. CanaN: I am not suggesting any criticism of you at all, Mr.
Minister. ) ,
Hon. Mr. Howe: I will take the letter back if you like. I am in the hands
of the committee.
Hon. Mr. Canan: I do not think it should go into the record until we have
Mr. Charlesworth here. :

By Mr. Campbell:

Q. T have certain questions which I hope to ask you later both regarding

certain phases of administration and also regarding greater power for different
stations, and so forth. At some later date I know that other members of the
committee will have similar questions to ask. You might come prepared with
all this data just to facilitate the supplying of information which will be asked

of you. So far as I am concerned I have nothing more to ask you regarding the

political part of it?—A. I should be only too glad to give you all the information
I have at my disposal. I will bring all the information I can with me and if T
cannot answer your technical questions from that information I will be glad
to get additional information for you.

By the Chairman:

Q. In the absence of Mr. Charlesworth can you give us a list of the officials
connected with your commission who would be able to give us the information
which it has been indicated this morning we will desire?—A. I believe, Mr.
Chairman, T have already done that. Mr. Powell T think is the one man who
could answer most of those questions.

By Mr. McIntosh:

Q. There is just one question I would like to ask before the witness leaves:
you were away when the Sage broadcasts were negotiated I understand?—A. Yes.

Q. Your statement is that you had nothing whatever to do with any of these
broadcasts?>—A. T do not think I made that statement, sir.

Q. Then, if you did not make that statement it naturally follows that you
did have something to do directly or indirectly with those broadeasts?—A. I
believe, sir, that T said that I took my fair share of responsibility in matters
coming before the commission as a whole. All questions of routine procedure
in connection with broadeasts usually go to Mr. Charlesworth,

Q. Yes?—A. And if there is nothing out of the way it is passed on to our
commercial department, who in turn handle it as they do many others. It is
only if something out of the way crops up. If it comes before the commission
I am at liberty to express my opinion.

Q. But the subject matter of the Sage broadecasts did not come before
any commission meeting that you attended?—A. Yes. It may have come
before a meeting of the commission at which I was not present. The secretary
will answer that question.

By Mr. Ryan:

Q. So that the remark with respect to personalities was only a casual
conversation you had with Mr. Charlesworth?—A. I went into his office on my
return to Ottawa and we discussed what had taken place.

Q. Tell us what did take place in regard to the Sage broadcasts?—A. I
think I have already answered it.

Q. And that was all that was said?

The CHARMAN: Are we through with Colonel Steel?

[Lt.-Col. W. Arthur Steel, M.C.]

e adce
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Mr. CampeeLL:  Yes, but we will call him later.

By Mr. Bertrand:

Q. You were in charge of one department of the commission. I want to
bring before this committee the correspondence which was exchanged between
CKAC and the commission in which correspondence the station in Montreal
asked to build a 100,000 Watt station, Can I get that information for the
next sitting?—A. I will do my best to get it. I think what you are referring
to is an application for a 50 kilowatt station.

Q. Yes. And I would like to know why it was refused.

(Colonel Steel retired).

The CualrRMAN: Is it the wish of the committee that Mr. Stanley Maxted
should come forward.

Mr. Martin: Before Mr. Maxted is called T would like to call the com-
mittee’s attention to a statement in the House of Commons made by the Hon.
Barl Lawson which I think should be on record, but as I am an inexperienced
member I am not sure whether this is the proper procedure; but I see no
objection to allowing on the records of this eommittee a statement which is
contained in Hansard proporting to come from Mr. Lawson.

The CuamrMmaN: 1 see no objection to it.

Mr. MarTiN: I refer to Hansard of Tuesday, February 11—

Hon. Mr. Caman: I would ask Mr. Martin if he desires Mr. Lawson’s
evidence why not call him?

Mr. MagrTin: Mr. Lawson does say in the speech he made in the House
of Commons that he is prepared to come before the committee, and I think the
committee should avail themselves of that; but I simply want to read one
paragraph of Mr. Lawson’s speech which may lay the foundation for some
questions that the committee may want to put to Mr. Maxted or some other
witness.

The CaamrmaN: I see Mr. Lawson sitting in the committee, and although
he is not a member I do not think he would have any objection to any state-
ment which he made in the House of Commons being put on the records of
this committee.

Hon. Mr. Lawson: Not a bit.

Mr. MarTin: Referring to Hansard of Tuesday, February 11, 1936, as
reported at page 134, Mr. Lawson said among other things—and I think this
should be in the record:—

I want to say this, that in the rush and hurry and grind of a
campaign some of the manuscripts were never submitted to me. So far
as my recollection goes, there were put into the mouths of one of the
speakers in those broadcasts two statements which, had I seen them, I
would have deleted. I say unhesitatingly to the Prime Minister that
I personally regret exceedingly that they were made, and for this reason;
I have always been, and I hope always shall be, one who in public life
may criticize and assall my opponents with respect to their public
actions and public affairs, but I do not believe I can be accused of ever
having made a reference to their personal affairs or what they may
have done in a personal capacity. Therefore I say that I regret two
statements which were made.

Then at the top of the page he said:—

This afternoon some reference was made by the Prime Minister
to a broadcast which he styled the Sage broadcast, and endeavoured



again to place upon the leader of the opposmon resp ility fgr
I take this first opportunity to say to him and to this House : Go_
mons that again I take the responsibility.

Mr. StaNLEY MAXTED called.

The CuarmaN: Is it the wish of the committee that the witnesses should ’_
~ be put under oath?

Hon. MemBERS: No, no.

By Mr. Campbell :

Q. According to the list of the employees of the commission which we
have, you are in charge of the station at Toronto and, I take it, of all Ontario
stations, is that correct?—A. No, sir, just the commission programs produced
at any point in Ontario other than Ottawa itself; but for the stations them-
selves I have no responsibility.

By Mr. McIntosh:
Q. Where do you reside?—A. In Toronto.

By Mr. Campbell:

Q. You were appointed September 1 of last year, and previous to that
you were connected with the commission, were you not?—A. Yes.

Q. In what capacity?—A. Regional director of programs.

Q. Could you explain to the committee how it was that you along with
several others were not appointed to the commission until September 1st of last
yvear?—A. I do not know. I cannot explain that.

Q. The station was functioning—

By Mr. Massey:

Q. Were you appointed on September 1st, or as of September 1st?—A.
As of September 1st, yes, sir.

Q. What was the date of vour appomtment‘?——A I could not just vouch for
that. I have a letter in Toronto.

Q. Was it late in September?—A. It was somewhere in the middle of
September.

By Mr. Campbell:

Q. I was asking you what your connection was: how is it that none of
you were appointed to the commission previous to that date? You were workmg
for the commission, the Canadian National Carbon Company; am I right in
that?—A. We were, or rather I was working without appointment. I was work-
ing on contract from June, 1933.

Q. To when?—A. Up until September 1st.

Q. A contract with the commission direct?—A. Yes.

Q. For a yearly contract, or indefinite?—A. No, it was not a yearly con-
tract, it was an indefinite period.

Q. Until previcus to June what was your business or occupation? Previous
to your connection with the commission what. was your occupation of business?
—A. A musician in a free lance w ay, and I was also vocal director for CKGW.

Q. And when the CKGW ctatlon was taken into the commission—is that
how you happened—A. No, I did not go with it. Mr. Maher came down and
engagcd me.

Q. Himself? On anyone’s recommendation, or did you——A I do not know,
sir.

[Mr. Stanley Maxted.]

Y v
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Q. You made no other application?—A. I have never made an application
in my life.

Q. Could you explain to the committee without taking too much time the
nature of your duties and your responsibilities?—A. Now or then?

Q. Well, now—well, during the time you have been holding this position?
—A. Since my duties now include my duties then, perhaps I had better go on
with that. I am responsible for the administration of CRCT. It is up to me to
collect the ideas for and put into operation any programs that I am asked to
produce for the commission at any point in Ontario, excepting Ottawa.

Q. Excepting Ottawa?—A. Yes.

Q. You have no connection with this station?—A. None at all.

Q. Your salary is $4,750. Now, was that the same previous to September
1st?—A. No. i

Q. What were you paid then?—A. I was paid on a contract basis.

Q. What was that?—A. $125 a week.

Q. Less any deductions?—A. No. I was paid as an artist as well.

Q. Does your work as station manager and program director entail full-
time work?—A. Very definitely so I should say.

Q. Do you take any other engagement outside?—A. Incidental ones, sub-
ject to the approval of the chairman, and on an understanding I made when I
took on this job. I sing over a sustaining program with Rex Battle in the Royal
York every noon and I am permitted to retain my church. I have done this for
some years, and have kept that.

Hon. Mr. Caran: Would you please speak a little louder.

By Mr. Campbell:

Q. Do you get paid for the program at the Royal York?—A. No.

Q. Are there no perquisites or remuneration?-—A. Yes. I have a room
there.

Q. Free?—A. Yes. May I make a word of explanation?

Q. Absolutely.—A. You will appreciate, gentlemen, that this job of mine
has never had any assurance of permanence at all, and for that reason in my
business it was absolutely necessary in order to obtain my living if at any other
time I went back to being a free lance musician—it was absolutely necessary I
should not lose touch with the Canadian public. Fatuous as it may sound, it
is a definite fact as far as I am concerned. By virtue of this program which
goes from coast to coast T am able to retain that contact.

Q. Have you been engaged by any of the theatres recently?—A. Yes.

Q. By payment or contract?—A. No, I received no money for that.

Q. You did it gratuitously for some association?—A. Yes.

Q. With the knowledge of the commission that your time is given there?—
A. Yes; and my work suffers not at all. T am on tap at the station all day long
or all night long.

By Mr. Dupuis:

Q. Will you give the names of those theatres?—A. It is not “those”; it is
just the Imperial for two weeks—the Imperial theatre in Toronto.

Q. As a musician?—A. Singing.

Q. Without pay?—A. As far as I am concerned, yes.

Q. As far as you are concerned. What does that mean?—A. That I did
not receive any pay.

Q. Did somebody receive it for you?—A. Pardon?

Q. Did somebody receive it for you?—A. Not for me, no.
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By Mr. Campbell: ko 5

Q. With regard to your responsibilities in connection with the business of

the station—you look after programs—you heard Mr. Steel’s evidence and you
have read the evidence of Mr. Charlesworth, will you explain what is the

procedure in the case of any business, whether commercial or political that

comes_to you; what happens in the case of accepting it or rejecting it?—A. 1
submit it to Ottawa.

Q. You mean that you submit all applications to Ottawa?—A. Not all
applications, no. There are some which by their very nature would indicate
right away that they would not need to be submitted to Ottawa; it is obvious
right away that they would not need to be submitted to Ottawa.

Q. And you accept them?—A. Yes.

Q. And could you give us an example of what you do submit to Ottawa?—A.

All our political broadcasts are submitted to Ottawa.

Q. And all large programs. Naturally you would submit them to Ottawa.
Once they are accepted here you are in charge of seeing that the regulations
are carried out?—A. Yes.

Q. What are Mr. Lucas’ duties?—A. Mr. Lucas’ duties are hardly outlined
by his title, studio supervisor. Actually he is a versatile man, and his duties
are to do anything that he is asked to do.

Q. Do you ask his advice regarding programs and regarding business?
In the case of any decision having to be made with regard to programs or their
acceptance, did you ask his advice, or go into consultation with him?—A. On
our own programs?

Q. Yes—A. Or those that we accept?

Q. Yes—A. Yes. I ask the advice of all my staff.

Q. All of them?—A. Yes. That is all—when I say all of the staff you under-
stand what I mean.

Q. That would be Mr. Lucas?—A. Mr. Luecas and Mr. Jennings, the
chief engineer. :

Q. Now, I do not want to bother you too long. I have some questions I
would like to ask you about the business and about political broadeasting.

By Hon. Mr. Cahan:

Q. May I intervene. You were at one time, were you not, engaged or
employed by the Canadian National Carbon company which was operating
CKNC Toronto?—A. Yes, sir. .

Q. Mr. Lucas was employed by the same company, was he not?—A.
Yes.

Q. Mr. Lucas was subsequently—you and Mr. Lucas were engaged by the
Canadian Radio Commission at about the same time, were you not?—A. About
the same time, yes, sir. I cannot answer that specifically without referring to
some records which I have not with me.

Q. Well, would you please ascertain the date you were employed which
you said was about September 15, and if Mr. Lucas was employed at the same
time—you can definitely state that—would you give the exact date of his
employment so that we will know when you became employed by the Cana-
dian Broadcasting Commission. g

Q. It was as of September 1st?—A. Yes.

Q. From September 1st to September 15th you were not an employee of
the Canadian Broadcasting Commission?—A. Actually I suppose not.

By Mr. Campbell:
Q. You were carrying on the work though?—A. Yes.
Hon. Mr. Mackenzie: That is surely a matter for argument.
Hon. Mr. Canan: Yes, but I wanted to get the facts, that is all.
[Mr. Stanley Maxted.]
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By Hon. Mr. Cahan:
Q. You will supply the date, or perhaps you will supply the letter, or copy

of the letter— —A. T shall be glad to.
Q. —on which you were employed?—A. Yes, I shall be pleased to.

By Mr. McIntosh:
Q. The date may not be September 15th?—A. It may not.
Hon. Mr. Cauan: The letter will speak for itself.
Wirness: But as far as carrying on the duties during that time is concerned,
if that question is with a view to finding out if I am responsible for what was
done during that time, why certainly I was.

By Mr. Massey:
Q. On what basis, Mr. Maxted? Did you have any assurance that it was
coming through?—A. No, none at all.
Q. Out of the goodness of your heart you were carrying on the job?—A. It
is rather a nice way of putting it sir; that is what I was doing.

By Mr. McIntosh:
Q. You were paid for that time?—A. Yes.
Mr. Duruis: September 1?

By Hon. Mr. Cahan:
Q. You were subsequently paid?—A. Yes.

By Mr. Campbell:

Q. A few moments ago I asked you about your engagement previous to
September 1, and your answers to me and Mr. Cahan leave a different impres-
sion. You told me, I believe, that you had a contract from June, 1933, until
the engagement with the Commission, at $125 a week?—A. Yes.

Q. I took the impression from your answer to Mr. Cahan that you were
engaged with the Canadian National Carbon Company. Explain that.—A.
Yes. At the time of June, 1933, I was engaged on a contract basis by the
commission, the studios and officers were down at CKGW and the station
started, you see. Then when they moved up to the Carbon Company premises
I was being engaged by the Canadian National Carbon Company.

Q. But the commission still paid you $125 a week?—A. The Carbon
Company paid me.

] Q. They accepted the commission’s contract with you, or how did they do
it?
Hon. Mr. Canman: I think Mr. Campbell, you will have to speak louder.

By Mr. Campbell:

Q. Did you have a contract with the commission or the Canadian National
Carbon Company at $125 per week?—A. With the commission.
Q. With the commission?—A. Yes.

Q. Then you were an employee of the Canadian 